A meeting of the CABINET will be held in THE CABINET ROOM,
PATHFINDER HOUSE, ST MARY'S STREET, HUNTINGDON PE29 3TN
on THURSDAY, 26 APRIL 2007 at 11:30 AM and you are requested to
attend for the transaction of the following business:-

APOLOGIES
=
Contact
(01480)
1. MINUTES (Pages 1 -4)
To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held Mrs H J Taylor
on 5™ April 2007. 388008
2. MEMBERS' INTERESTS
To receive Members’ declarations as to personal and/or
prejudicial interests and the nature of those interests in relation
to any Agenda item. Please see notes 1 and 2 below.
3. FINANCIAL MONITORING — REVENUE BUDGET (Pages 5 -
8)
To consider a report by the Head of Financial Services S Couper
outlining spending variations. 388103
4. CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING - 2006/07 (Pages 9 -
20)
To consider a report by the Head of Financial Services S Couper
highlighting variations from the approved Capital Programme 388103
for 2006/07.
S. MEDIUM TERM PLAN - REQUEST FOR THE RELEASE OF
FUNDS (Pages 21 - 24)
By way of a report by the Head of Financial Services to S Couper
consider a request for the release of funding for a Corporate 388103
ICT Systems Officer..
6. HINCHINGBROOKE HOSPITAL CONSULTATION
FEEDBACK (Pages 25 - 30)
With the assistance of a report by the Head of Environmental & S Lammin
Community Health Services to consider a response to the 388280

Cambridgeshire Primary Care Trust's consultation: ‘Seeking
Sustainable Health  Services for the People of
Huntingdonshire’.



10.

11.

Notes

1.

DOG CONTROL ORDERS (Pages 31 - 34)

To consider a report by the Public Health Manager regarding
the introduction of Dog Control Orders to replace existing dog
control provisions and the implications for the District Council.

PLAY STRATEGY (Pages 35 - 38)

To consider a report by the Head of Environmental and
Community Health Services seeking approval for the Council’s
Play Strategy.

ISSUES AND OPTIONS FOR CORE STRATEGY,
DEVELOPMENT CONTROL POLICIES DEVELOPMENT
PLAN DOCUMENTS AND HUNTINGDON WEST AREA
ACTION PLAN (Pages 39 - 206)

To consider a report by the Head of Planning Services seeking
approval for the Council's Core Strategy and Development

Control Policies Development Plan Documents and the
Huntingdon West Area Action Plan.

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC
To resolve:
that the public be excluded from the meeting because
the business to be transacted contains exempt
information relating to terms proposed in the course of
negotiations for the acquisition or disposal of property.
CALL-IN: LAND AT WESTWOOD ROAD, ST. IVES
To receive a oral report by the Director of Central Services on
the outcome of the call-in, by the Overview and Scrutiny Panel
(Service Support), of the decision of the Cabinet relating to the

sale of land at Westwood Road, St lves.

Dated this 19 day of April 2007

D

Chief Executive

A personal interest exists where a decision on a matter would affect to a

greater extent than other people in the District —

J Allan
388281

Mrs S Lammin
388280

R Probyn
388430

P Watkins
388002



(@) the well-being, financial position, employment or business of the
Councillor, a partner, relatives or close friends;

(b) a body employing those persons, any firm in which they are a
partner and any company of which they are directors;

(c) any corporate body in which those persons have a beneficial
interest in a class of securities exceeding the nominal value of
£5,000; or

(d)  the Councillor’s registerable financial and other interests.

2. A personal interest becomes a prejudicial interest where a member of
the public (who has knowledge of the circumstances) would reasonably
regard the Member's personal interest as being so significant that it is
likely to prejudice the Councillor’s judgement of the public interest.

Please contact Mrs H Taylor, Senior Democratic Services Officer, Tel No.
01480 388008/e-mail Helen.Taylor@huntsdc.gov.uk /e-mail: if you have
a general query on any Agenda Item, wish to tender your apologies for
absence from the meeting, or would like information on any decision
taken by the Cabinet.

Specific enquiries with regard to items on the Agenda should be directed
towards the Contact Officer.

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers
except during consideration of confidential or exempt items of business.

Agenda and enclosures can be viewed on the District Council's website —
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk (under Councils and Democracy).

If you would like a translation of
Agenda/Minutes/Reports or would like a
large text version or an audio version
please contact the Democratic Services Manager
and we will try to accommodate your needs.

Emergency Procedure

In the event of the fire alarm being sounded and on the instruction of the
Meeting Administrator, all attendees are requested to vacate the building via
the closest emergency exit and to make their way to the base of the flagpole
in the car park at the front of Pathfinder House.




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 1

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

MINUTES of the meeting of the CABINET held in the Council
Chamber, Pathfinder House, St Mary's Street, Huntingdon PE29 3TN
on Thursday, 5 April 2007.

PRESENT: Councillor | C Bates — Chairman.

Councillors P L E Bucknell, Mrs J Chandler,
A Hansard, Mrs P J Longford,

Mrs D C Reynolds, T V Rogers and

L M Simpson.

174. MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 15th March 2007
were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

175. MEMBERS' INTERESTS

Councillor Bates declared a personal and prejudicial interest in
Minutes Nos. 181 and 182 by virtue of his family relationship with the
company involved and his membership of the Cambridgeshire County
Council respectively. Councillor Bucknell declared a personal and
prejudicial interest in Minute No 181 by virtue of his friendship with the
applicant. Both Councillors left the meeting for the duration and voting
on the respective items of business.

176. INTERIM PLANNING POLICY STATEMENT

Further to Minute No. 06/170 and by way of a report by the Head of
Planning Services (a copy of which is appended in the Minute Book)
the Cabinet was invited to consider the content of an interim planning
policy statement.

Having been reminded that the statement would provide the
framework for continuity of the development control function, whilst
changes to the core strategy were made, the Cabinet

RESOLVED

that Council be recommended to endorse the content of the
Interim Planning Policy Statement.

177. GENDER EQUALITY SCHEME
By way of a report by the Head of Policy and Strategic Services (a
copy of which is appended in the Minute Book) the Cabinet was
invited to consider the contents of the Gender Equality Scheme
together with an associated action plan..

Members were advised that the Sex Discrimination Act 1975 (as



178.

179.

180.

amended) would place a duty on public bodies to promote gender
equality with effect from 6th April 2007. Having been informed that
the scheme would integrate with current Race and Disability and
Equality Schemes, the Cabinet

RESOLVED

that the contents of the draft Gender Equality Scheme and
associated Action Plan be approved.

MEDIUM TERM PLAN: REQUEST FOR THE RELEASE OF FUNDS

With the aid of a report by the Head of Financial Services (a copy of
which is appended in the Minute Book) the Cabinet considered a
request for the release of funding for three Medium Term Plan
schemes.

In considering a request to release £67,000 for flexible working,
Executive Councillors intimated that they would welcome further
information to be circulated separately on revenue costs for this
project. Having referred also to the need to ensure that spending
projections for projects were regularly reviewed, the Cabinet

RESOLVED

that the relevant funding be released for the installation
of broadband for Members and the award of disabled
facilities and discretionary housing repair loans/grants.

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC
RESOLVED

that the public be excluded from the meeting because the
business to be transacted contains exempt information
relating to negotiations for the disposal of land or property.

PRIORY PARK, ST. NEOTS

The Cabinet considered a report by the Head of Legal and Estates (a
copy of which is appended in the Annex to the Minute Book) seeking
approval for the proposed disposal of Council-owned land at Priory
Park, St Neots as part of the Urban Design Brief and Masterplan for
the Longsands Quarter. Whereupon, it was

RESOLVED

that the disposal of the land at Priory Park, St Neots be
approved and the Director of Central Services authorised,
after consultation with Members of the Cabinet, to approve
terms for the sale.



181.

182.

STUKELEY ROAD, HUNTINGDON

The Cabinet considered a report by the Head of Legal and Estates (a
copy of which is appended in the Annex to the Minute Book) seeking
approval for the proposed disposal of Council-owned land at Stukeley
Road, Huntingdon.

RESOLVED

that the Director of Central Services, after consultation with
the Executive Councillors for Resources, Welfare and IT and
for Finance and for Leisure, be authorised to approve terms
for the sale of land at Stukeley Road, Huntingdon.

WESTWOOD ROAD, ST. IVES

By way of a report by the Head of Legal and Estates (a copy of which
is appended in the Annex to the Minute Book) the Cabinet considered
the proposed disposal of Council-owned land at Westwood Road, St
Ives.

RESOLVED

that the disposal of the land at Westwood Road, St Ives be
approved and the Director of Central Services authorised,
after consultation with Members of the Cabinet, to approve
terms for the sale.

Chairman



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3

AGENDA ITEM No :
CABINET 26 April 2007

FINANCIAL MONITORING — REVENUE BUDGET
(Report by the Head of Financial Services)

1. 2006/07 Budget — As at March 2007

1.1 Cabinet received its last revenue monitoring report at its meeting on
11" January 2007. This report updates that forecast but, despite the
year having ended, it is still only a forecast because a number of year-
end adjustments still need to be made.

1.2 It is now expected that the outturn will be lower than reported in
January, giving a forecast outturn of £16,086k against the original
budget of £18,305k. The main variations are shown in the table in
Annex A and include continued efforts to minimise spending. Revenue
reserves will consequently rise from their opening balance of £18.1M
to £18.8M.

1.3 A significant variation was due to the Government’'s announcement in
March of the allocation of the Local Authority Business Growth
Incentive Scheme Grant (LABGI) for 2006/7 of £454k compared with
£33k for 2005/6. This Grant has been received as a result of our
success in supporting the economic development of the district as
measured by increased rateable values.

14 In the last few days notification of a reduction in the rateable value of
Pathfinder House has been received which reflects the lower “rental”
value of the building. It is backdated to when the scaffolding was
erected and amounts to £170k.

15 Part of the lower net spending this year will be off-set by the carrying
forward of funding for specific projects to next year in accordance with
the Code of Financial Management. Last year this amounted to £139k.

2 Budget Monitoring

2.1 In the report to Cabinet on 20" July 2006 there were recommendations
as to how the budget monitoring process could be improved. Quarterly
meetings between Directors and their Heads of Service to review both
revenue and capital spending to date and the forecast for the year are
now operating routinely and COMT discussed the overall position
earlier this month.

2.2 This greater emphasis on budget monitoring has encouraged Heads of
Service to be more realistic about their forecast outturn; this is
reflected in the size of the item in Annex A for “other variations” which
it is made up of numerous adjustments on many services. Whilst
improvements are emerging there is still a need to identify some of
these variations earlier in the year so they can be reflected in the
financial forecast.



3 Recommendation

3.1 It is recommended that the Cabinet note the variations in the Council’'s
income and expenditure.

ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT 1985
Source Documents:

1. Cabinet and Council Reports
2. Budgetary control files.
Contact Officers: Eleanor Smith, Accountancy Manager (01480 388157)

Steve Couper, Head of Financial Services (01480 388103)



Annex A

Expenditure| Income | Recharge Net
to capital |Expenditure
£000 £000 £000 £000
Original Budget 59,421 | -40,334 -782 18,305
Unspent budget brought forward from 2005/06 139 139
Less reimbursed expenditure 23,788 | -23,788 0
Adjusted Budget 35,772 | -16,546 -782 18,444
Items reported up to 11 January 120 -394 -219 -493
Subsequent Variations
Increased recharge to capital -167
Reduced interest 92
LABGI 2006/7 -454
LABGI 2005/6 (received 2006/7) -33
General contingency not required -140
Deferred projects -365
Reduced commutation adjustment 120
Increased recovery of summons costs -45
Less maintenance required on waste
collection vehicles -100
NNDR rebate on Pathfinder House -170
Other variations -603
total -1,258 -440 -167 -1,865
Total variations -1,138 -834 -386 -2,358
-3.2% -5.0% -12.8%
Forecast net spending 16,086
FUNDING
Government Support -10,891
Collection Fund adjustment 74
Council Tax -5,961
Surplus taken to reserves 692




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 4

CABINET 26 APRIL 2007

CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING - 2006/07
(Report by the Head of Financial Services)

1. PURPOSE

1.1 This report highlights the variations between the February 2006
approved capital programme and that approved at the February 2007
Council meeting. It then assesses the level of subsequent scheme
deferrals and other necessary adjustments. This is still only a forecast
of the outturn as various year-end adjustments still remain to be
finalised.

2. MONITORING INFORMATION

2.1 The Budget approved in February 2006 and subsequent adjustments
are shown below:-

| 2006/07 Capital Expenditure
Gross External Net
Budget Contributions  Budget
£000 £000 £000

Approved Budget (February 2006) 20,389 5,924 14,465
Deferrals from 2005/06 +3,110 +40 +3,070
Supplementary Estimate (June 2006)
Mobile Home Park - Remediation +437 0 +437

23,936 5,964 17,972
Variations Already Reported -5,045 -1,759 -3,286
Approved Medium Term Plan — February 2007 18,891 4,205 14,686
Further Forecast Variations
Disabled Facilities Grants — saving (para 2.3) -450 0 -450
Repair Assistance Grants - saving (para 2.3) -37 0 -37
Heart of Oxmoor — capital receipt timing (para 2.4) 0 -1,414 +1,414
Huntingdon Tourist Kiosk (para 2.5) +30 0 +30
Non-reclaimable VAT saving (para 2.6) -123 0 -123
Increase in revenue funded staff charged to capital (para 2.7) +173 0 +173
Adjustment to deferrals (Annex B) -1,535 -1,535 0
Current Forecast 16,949 1,256 15,693

2.2 Annex A provides comments about individual schemes. If more
information on specific schemes is required it can be obtained from the
relevant Head of Service.

2.3 As a result of recruitment and funding problems of Occupational
Therapists at the Primary Care Trust, referrals to the Authority for
Disabled Facilities Grants have slowed considerably and it is now
expected that a further £450k will not now be required. The Repairs
Assistance Grants budget has also been adjusted to reflect the
expected outturn.

2.4 The external contribution (capital receipt for the land sale in
Moorhouse Drive, Huntingdon) of £1,414k for the Heart of Oxmoor
project included in the MTP for 2006/07 was actually received at the



2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

3.1

4.1

end of 2005/06 and therefore included in that years accounts. The
MTP needs to be adjusted to compensate for this.

The Huntingdon Tourist Kiosk project approved by Cabinet on 5"
February 2005 was omitted from the Tourism Services Review Bid
(659) in the 2006/07 MTP. A £30k adjustment is therefore required.

The provision for non-reclaimable capital VAT has been reviewed and
can now be reduced in both this year (£123k) and future years.

Recharges of revenue funded staff to capital are now expected to
amount to £392k, £173k more than in the MTP. This is marginally
offset by the interest on the increased capital sum.

The deferrals to 2007/08 that have been identified since the MTP was
prepared are shown in Annex B. The net position is already
approaching the £1.5M provision included in the MTP.

REVENUE IMPLICATIONS 2006/07

The impact of the deferrals and the other variations, described above,
since the budget was approved in February 2007, reduce the net
revenue expenditure by £112k in 2006/07 but then lead to the
subsequent increases shown below.

2006 2007/ 2008 20091

-22

-2
71
2

-20

9
38

Para. 2007 2008 2009 2010

£000 £000 £000 £000
Disabled Facilities Grant 2.3 -11 -22 -22
Repairs Assistance Grant 2.3 -1 -2 -2
Heart of Oxmoor 2.4 71 71 71
Huntingdon Tourist Kiosk 25 1 2 2
Non-reclaimable VAT 2.6 -3 -11 -17
Revenue transferred to Capital 2.7 -167 9 9
TOTAL FORECAST VARIATION -112 47 41

RECOMMENDATIONS

It is RECOMMENDED that Cabinet:
)] Note the monitoring report at Annex A.
ii)  Note the latest variations and their estimated capital and
revenue impact.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Capital programme and monitoring working papers.
Previous Cabinet and Committee reports on capital expenditure.

Contact Officer — Steve Couper @& 01480 388103

10




/ 10 T abed

0 0 0 xxxx 0F S0-P0-0€  SGO-'BN-TE ABarens uodsuesl umol 1axe uopbununH  TO'TIE/E0
"919|dwo)d 0 T T xxxx CCT 90-/'eN-90  €0-190-0€ uopbunuUNH ‘UOWWOD SMIIA - 3IN0Y dPAD  V/99€E/€0
0 6¢ 6¢ 14 L0-1eN-8C¢  L0-094-8¢ (20790) subis/syuawanoidw] ANqISsSady  #0°€00/00

Co_uﬁtoawcm‘_._.

suoneoso| mau Buipsebal AiJuno)d pue
s|1ounod ysired yum pjay Buleq uoissnasiq - 0 14 9¢ 10-d9S-0€  L0-Ten-0€ (£0/90) uoisinoid BNIXT - S1I8YBYS SNG  £0°00%/€0
1oddns uodsuel] o1gnd

'100Z Arenigad
U1G UO paduswwod SI0aN 1S ‘opisianty

pue peoy shinqqgal o4 10enuo) bulp|ing 16- 0ST YAZ4 T 10-keN-TE  90-98Q-T€ S8JUBIUBAUOD Jl|gnd MaN  V/Z0€E/E0
S99UBIUBAUOD 21IgNd

118U} UMBIPYIM BARY D SBA| 1S pue

Aaswey ‘paalbe sylom [euonippe ssalboid
Ul sy1om yiomred “219|dwod swjoH 0 99 99 0 L0-TeN-TE  L0-JeN-TE (£0/90) apiM 1011SId - sdw| 8[eas |leWS  #0°LST/TO

pais|dwod Buiaq saseyd [euly

- 9002 1snbny ui palsdwod - 90 |udy 8T

1UN0Y S1IPauUdg 1S U0 PAIUSWIWOD HIOM 0 ¥8Y ¥8y 0 L0-TeN-TE  L0-TeN-TE Z 9seyd - anuad umo | uopbununy  v/6%0/T0
8T9T 620T 685- 14 10-INC-82  L0-uer-8z loowxQ Jo uesH  g/T¥2/20

/0 Uer [un Lels 10U ||Im
awiayos ‘feroidde Ory yum skejep 01 ang 0 ¥9T ¥9T 98 10-feN-08  S0-dos-0g Ud dwj Auz - Aeswey ‘slkym sI/s1AuM 18l v/050/20
Aunod Aq pauBisep Buleq sswayos 0 493 Z1t 0 L0-"eN-0€  L0-/eN-0€ (£0/90) sdwy 8[eas [leWS S8WWWOD JUIOL B3IY  ¥0'TEV/E0
0 o€ o€ xaxx 0 90-eN-TE€  90-1eN-TE (90/50) sdwy 8[eas [[eWS d8WWOD JUIOr BaIY  £0'TEV/E0

sjuawanosdwi |leluswuoldiAug

alIs siy1 Jo diysiaumo 0}

Se snuiwnT yum pjay Buiag are suoissnasig ov- 0T 0S 12 10-Bny-08  20-"eN-0E SYIOM JuBWIeal| abemas uoiep\ POOM 102
80/2002 01 >2eq paddi|s swayds siyL
"panjosal Buiag syiom sy jo diysisumo T T 0 80-094-8¢  10-0°94-8¢ wwaoeldey MLS - sAiei 1S Aeswey ‘pd dUIBH  V/SEZ/20
yijeaH [eiuswuoliAug
0 12 Iz 0 10-JeN-82  L0-Uer-0g slalleq - S108N 1S “led JeD apIsIany 08y
‘passasse Bulag ABarens ‘umeipyum
uopedydde Buiuueld - sred Jed apisiany zzt- 85 08T 9z 10-d9S-08  L0-TeN-TE uonejuswaldwi ABsrens Buped e 08v
0 0 0 0 SI09N 1S “ied JeD peoy abpuqued  g/991/20
S)led led

podsuel] ® JuswuoldiAUg  :0O1T704.1H0d

aouelle  1SeJ8104 Ieak 10} (sxeam) [enmoy/
SININNOD paldaloid pu3 Jeap panoiddy uoljelep  1sedalo4  panosddy
S,0007 3JNLIANIdX3 L3N NOIL3TdINOD 10/900¢ SaWBYIS aAlNdY
L00¢ Yydare\ 92 140d3d ONIJOLINOW SINTIHDS TVLIdVD - d1LIN

V X3aNNV

11



/ 10 g abed

",0/T0/€T J0 Bunasy preog 108foid
Y} ul Juswabeue S92IAISS aNUBASY
Aq paaibe asoyy ase papinoid sareq

sJainsul Ino o} passed MON ‘painal
1Ng paAlgdal usaq sey Yoiym saiuedwod
9ouRINSUI WOJJ Wrejd uo Juepuadaqg

Buissaiboid
uBisap - AemajoAd uowwo) pue|s|

Ul 1els - sWway9ds 0} UoNNQLIUOD dJe saluow
- Aluno) Aq paubisap Bulaq sawayos

*Aluno) Ag paubisap bBuiaq sawayds

Auno) Ag
Ae|ap - 184 10 paued Bulaq jou ABarens

JusWaalbe [rey YIoMIBN aARY aM
MOU /00 Yorew ul uels o} pauueld Y10

uswWaalbe |rey YIoOMIBN aAey am
MOU /002 Yorew ul uels o) pauueld YIopn

Juawaalbe [rey YI0MIBN aAeY aM
MOU /002 Yyosew ul pels o) pauueld 310/

al19|dwo)

2002 Ya1eN 9¢

€¢T-

€¢I~

Geot

ST
00¢-

aduellepA
SINIWNOD parosloid pud fesp

ove

€97

LT
09T

(/A 724

14

18

(0]
G¢

/8
LT
14

1sedalo

$.000F 3dNLIANIdX3 13N

€97 01]0j110d 10j [e10L
€91 g9 L0-unC-0g  90-"eN-T€
orT 0
09T 0
ST 01]0j110d 10j [e10L
(A% 9GT L0-felN-0€  v0-TeN-0g
18 9GT 80-18eN-0E  SO-1eN-TE
0 s 60-1eN-0€  80-1eN-0€
G- s 80-1BN-0€  LO-1eN-0€
Gee 9z 10-d9S-0€  L0-TeN-0€
0 Zs 80-JelN-0€  LO-teN-0E
9T g9 L0-unc-0g  90-"eN-0€
ST Zs ,0-unc-0g  90-'eN-0g
ST Tt ,0-unc-8¢  S0-094-8¢
.8 €T L0-unc-0g  L0-TeN-0g
LT wxxx 0 90-/elN-0€  90-TeN-0€
ot €T L0-unc-0g  L0-TeN-0g
0 wexx 0 90-/elN-0€  90-1eN-0E
Ieak 10} (sxeam) [enmoy/
panoiddy uonelep  1sedalo4  panosddy
NOIL3TdNOD

BupjIopn ssalaliM - siyauag BuisnoH

929

s1yauag BuisnoH

(£0/90) rended 1dwax3 1VA
(£0/9002) wawisnlpy uoneNwwod

Q2dueulq

[rem Buiurelay - s109N 1S YooiquaH

(50/70) ABarens uodsuel] sloeN 1S

sabplg uelisapad S1oaN 1S
(20/90) ABarens yodsuel] umo] 19xJeN SaA 1S
(£0/90) sanoy 8jokD ajes

(90/50) ABarens uodsuel] UMO] 19)IeN Aaswey
(20/90) swuswanoidw| - suonels Aemjiey
(90/50) swuawanoidw] - suonels Aemjrey

(S0/70) swuawanoidw - suonels Aemjiey
(£0/90) ue|d Hodsuel] [e207

(90/50) ue|d Hodsuel] [e207

ABarens uodsuel] umo] 1xle uopbununy
ABarens uodsuel] umo] 19xJeN uopbununy

£0/900¢

¥0'666/€0

uonensiuIWpyY

:0I1704.1Ld0d

S9SIN0JIa)ep\

¢0°05¢/20

VITSE/E0
T0'C9€/E0
¥0¢ST/10

¢0'€9€/E0

¢0'¢ET/20

T0¢ET/C0

VI2ETI20
¥0'S60/10
€0°560/10
€0'T9¢€/€0
¢0'T9E/E0

SaWaY9S aANdY

140d3d ONIHJOLINOW SINTFHIS TVLIdVO - d1IN

Q\
i



. Jo € abed

pue sBuip|ing pajsi| 10y WiojuN
0] SJUBWIBdURYUS 81em)os Bunemy

80-200¢ ul usxel aq
01 10801d Jo Z aseyd Jo aininj uo uoisioap
- T aseyd 10 uona|dwod 3as [|IM SIyL

0} 3|ge|leAe Jou ||is a|npow sburjooq
auluQ "ade(d uaxel sey uonadwod
[fenuelsqgns pue sjoafoid |elanss jo

Ppajsisuod pig Siy L *20/90 Ut uons|dwod o}
Aoud 1ng dn uess Joj jeaosdde Bunreme
‘playbuipag sor Aq pabeuew aq |1
199loud sbBupjooq auluo -1das Joy pauueld
uona|dwod - (sawer ) Aemiapun si 3Iom
juswdolanap [eusalu| “(F) aoepa1u| Jo}
auolspe[9 yum padeld sem Japlo aseydind

219 ‘|INa3 Aq pasn ag 01 Loyd

vd 2002 40 TO Ul 81US9 |[ed 3y} O
HoJjs ul uononpal e si aisuyl reyl pue 20/90
Ul 811U9 |[ed Y} 0] Ul aseaal I1se| sy}

sI Buluue|d 1ey) os|y Jom suswAed aul|
-uo dn syoid 186png Juswaoe|dal waisAs
Teyl SaWNSSY 9ua) |[ed ayl 01 SBDIAISS
Mau Janlap 01 Aemapun sjoaloid //9002
‘Buipiing OH mau sy} ul ausd

92IAIBS JaWoIsn) e Jo uoneluswaldwi ay
01 anp Ayuoid pabueyd ayi 109384 sabueyd
2J]U2 |[BD BY} OJUI € asea|al = € alep Aa)
911UBJ [[ed OJUI Z BSedjal = Z arep Aoy

JI0M OSD pue

uonelbaiur 82O >oeg “joul ‘20-900¢ 104
pauue|d aJe s)oaloid Bunioddns jo abues v
196pnqg 1ey) 01 panow JaAo ALed pue

dn 18s DSDL 10} BP0OI M3AN "PASOI ¥9TIN

OH MaU 8y} ul 811U 3JIAISS JBWO0ISND
e Jo uonejuawsajdwi ayy 01 anp Alioid
pabueyd syl 199|ja1 sabueyd ‘|1ouNod

Aq ajjoid mau jo [enosdde Bunreme

2002 Ya1eN 9¢

TT-
8G-

€0T-

0c¢-

aduellepA
SINIWNOD parosloid pud fesp

1T
8¢

8T
8T

0TT

TET

Ll

4"
0T¢

1sedalo

[44
98

44
8T

01T

vee

LL

4"
(054

Ieak 10}

panoiddy

$.000F 3dNLIANIdX3 13N

70T 90-1eN-TE€  v0-1eN-TE
98 L0-unf-0g  S0-10-TE
1T L0-TeN-TE  LO-JeN-TE
16 10-ReN-TO  SO-TeN-TE
0
S6 60-uer-0g  LO-feN-TE
s 80-1eN-TE  LO-1eN-TE
wex LT 90-933Q-50 L0-"TeN-T€
96 60-uer-T1e L0-TeN-TE
6€ 80-99Q-T€ 80-1eN-TE
(sx108m) [enioy/
uonelep  1sedalo4  panosddy
NOIL3TdNOD

mainay uofresljddy Buluueld 0 TOE/E0

wasAs |oiked/|auuosiad 80 TOE/E0
walsAs ssauisng suonelado

JjuswdojaAag WaSAS ainsia TT TOE/E0
(20/90) swaisAs ssauisng Jo MaIASY [edNDAD ST TOE/E0

Alanlja@ uonoesuel] - 1sli4 JIawoisnd 0T TOE/E0

aimonJlselju| [eoluyda] - 1S4 Jawolisnd 0L TOE/E0

saniioe pue adoad - ISii4 JAWOISND  0Z'TOS/E0

SpIM dwwelboid - 1siid 1BWOISND 00 TOE/E0
Juawabeuey Juswnd0q d1uoNd8 3 arelodio)D 4
ABojouyda] uolnewuoju|

ABojouyoal uonewloju| % sislenbpesy :01704.140d

£0/900¢ SaWBYIS AV

140d3d ONIHJOLINOW SINTFHIS TVLIdVO - d1IN

13



. J0 7 abed

‘PaoUBWILLIOD 3J1Ud2 suonelado
Uo }IoA\ auld)yoBRIN UM 13] 10BU0D

‘uonaipaud

0] 92U8PLUOI YINW ydene o} a|qeun

0s ‘padoas 194 10U 103l01d "Sajeasawn

ul 919]dwod |Im 108foad JUBpLUO %GZ

‘OH mau jo uonajdwod

01 ybnoiyy sn axel |m uoneuswsa|dwi
paseyd ‘AbBarelis UoePOWIWOIY 01 payul|
a4 [|IM yd1ym ‘mno-|jos dIOA 104 pasn aq

01 Aj@17 "Buipjing OH Mau 1o} sijuawalinbal
Jo uoneoyoads Buipuad pakejaqg

2002 Ya1eN 9¢

6€G-

[4<h
c-

18¢-

06-
0

2ouelIeA
SINIWNOD pa1dafold pu3z Jesp
S.000F 3dNLIAN3IdX3 L3N

TL/2

Syl
JAZ4
S8
€97
9¢¢

9¢

0T

Tv0L

€8€9

T€
ct

1sedalo

oTee

avet
Lye
14}
00¢
9.9

€¢

Zs
€T

8ceL

€8¢€9

et
4

Ieak 10}

01]0J110d 10} [BI0L

0
0
0 10-Bnv-0e  20-Bnv-0g
0 L0-JeIN-TE  LO-TeN-TE
0
0 90-/e|N-0E  90-1eN-0€
werx V- 90-98Q-8¢ LO-1eN-TE
0 ,0-094-8¢  L,0-9°4-8¢
FXXN O NOJ_G_\/_lOm” NOJ_m._\/_uOm
oljoj1iod 10} [e10L
0T 80-1eIN-TE  90-1eN-TE
60-09Q-T€  LO-JeN-TE
0
(sx108m) [enioy/
panoiddy uonelep  1sedalo4  panosddy
NOIL3TdNOD

(20790) (AouabunuoD) wers BuisnoH [e10s
sa)S BuisnoH JoowxQ /€9
uoleipaway - Mied aWoH 9|IqoN
(20/90) SN pue sydH 00°T8E/E0
(20/90) siuels sanioe4 pajgesid 00'60€/€0
1918169y BuisnoH uowwo) I Ta%
1oddns BuisnoH

sjuswanoidwi BunyBi - Jepiosig pue swld  +0°9£0/00
uononpay awud

$90IMIBS [eNbig - ALOD  V/ZTE/E0
(£0/90) siuswaoe|day elswe) - ALDD £0°020/00
ALDD

YieaH a1jand ' BuisnoH :01704140d

doys dois auQ pue sdw| 8snoH Japuyyred  V/00€/€0
uolrepowwoddy adlo

alnoniselu| ereq pue aloa V61
wiojun  gT'T0E/E0

£0/900¢ SaWBYIS AV

140d3d ONIHJOLINOW SINTFHIS TVLIdVO - d1IN

14



/ 10 G abed

‘Buipun4
diysiauned uo juepuadap sawayds 8z-
‘Bunured Bunreme ‘pasiuenied
pue palajdwod uonealqe ‘padeld JapiO 6-

paubisap Bulaq sswayds 0

*J0 Judy ul @ouswiWwod
01 Buiping "1296pnqg ulyuM pauinial siapua ]
‘uoirepuNoS [[eqlo04 WoJ) papieme jueio
sied Alold - S109N 1S

(S8A| 1S % S1I08N 1S) Sawayds om| €9T-

'90 JaqwianoN Ui 818|dwod 198foid 0

14

,00¢

Buuds ui pjay aq 01 anp bBuiuado feo

‘sisanbal [elonas

a)dsap |1I9un0D AUN0D WOJ) 92I0AUL
Bunreme |ns 1nq palejdwod si 109lold 0

youd on8YIuAs 8zis |y puz o1 usnlb

Bulaq uoneIapISUOI - UoIEPUNOS |[eg100H

wioJj Buipuny juelb feuonippe Jo AljiqiIssod

'siadojanag

Aq suonesiddy Buluue|d Buipuad pjoy uQ
anua) 100pINQ - OAl 1S <]

QduelleA

144

06

GE

Gt

0¢

1se%9.104
SINIWNOD pa1dafold pu3z Jesp

$.000F 3dNLIANIdX3 13N

2002 Ya1eN 9¢

0S 0 LO0-TeN-TE  LO-TeN-TE
e 0 L0-TeN-TE  90-JeN-TE
6 €T 90-InC-T€E €0-983a-0¢
S 0 LO0-TeN-TE  LO-1eN-TE
14% 6€ 90-98@-T€ 90-1eN-TE
€e wxxx OCT 90-1dv-0€  €0-AON-0E
€9¢ [4°] L0-TeN-TE  LO-JelN-TE
GE 1474 90-bny-0g  20-1eN-TO
08 0 L0-TeN-TE  LO-JeN-TE
0 Zs L0-JelN-TE  90-1eN-TE
0c 70T L0-TeN-TE  SGO-1eN-TE
0 0

Ieak 10} (sxeam) [enmoy/

panoiddy uonelep  1sedalo4  panosddy

NOIL3TdNOD

(£0/90) sx1ed Ananoy s,sjdoad BUNoA  +0'700/20
(90/50) sxied Auanoy ss|doad BUnoA  €0°'%00/20

subIS - syied snoleA  Vv//0T/TO

(20/90) wawdinb3 Lejld  ¥0'69¢/€0
(90/50) wawdinb3 Aejld  £0'69¢/€0
Juswdojanaq Yied Jesu1olid  V/TZT/TO

SJ09N 1S - sluswanoidw] |[eqioo4 Y4
saoeds uadQ pue syied

diysiauured aAieniul sjuua s10aN 1S 4/T00/00
juawdojanag pue Ao110d 9Insia]

(£0/90) siuelD 108f01d BINSIa] [0 ¥0'666/00
(90/50) siuelD 103f01d BINSIaT [0 €0'666/00

uonnqLIuoD diysiaulied aua Jafem Weyeld  /850/20

SaA| 1S - Sjuswanoldw| ||leqio04 opy
sa

Je- pue SslusaAl ainsia’]

2InsId7  01704140d

£0/900¢ SaWBYIS AV

140d3d ONIHJOLINOW SINTFHIS TVLIdVO - d1IN

15



. 40 9 abed

LvE-

90/,0/9T pauado

90/20/20 uo uons|dwo)

‘uoneoljdde ueib abajj0D uo

ssalboid ou yum xred yoeoos/ed uo sanssi

1S "SI0M BuIp|ing 01 SaA0W UsY) ‘eale

Ae|d prey juswade|dal yum suelS 10B1U0D

X99M Of "GO 1d8S UIZT pasuswwod
919|dw o9 sispua] 0.-

9002 0E aunC paAladal synsal Aaning

‘ugyeuapun pue painsoid A8AINS uonipuod 0

S109N 1S e palinbai

puads [enuassa - 3TTZ 4O parewnsy

£0/90 0} pwy paliied 3 0} anpisal Auy

"2 Jeak wouy panledal SadI0AUI [[e

1IN pakejap awayos jo uoneyuawaldwi ||n4

slapinoid [eulalxa pue ‘swea)

DdH eusaiu] quswabeue|y anuad usamiaq
ag 01 (90/50) awuwrelboid jo Alaniag 0

"premio) paLued aq 0] spuny pasnun Auy
'sanua) e uo suodal uoisiroid pajgesiq
10 uinjas Buipuad premioy paLed 36T 0

paJinbal premio} Ared
'80//0 PaisaAul aq 0} [ended Jo Japureway
'90/G0/0T 9/m pajfelsul Juswdinba maN
‘a19]dwoo Apnis Aljigiseaq

dn umelp Bulag sue|d uoisuedxa [eulaiu| 0

‘pasinpe
|un premioy Aed - Jeak siy pajs|dwod
a0 JouuRd S)0aN 1S ‘panoidde si awsyos
[eul} usym sjoaN 1S 1e suawanoidul
10} pareoo|fe Japureway 90 Alnc

anp uonajdwod - Anmes uo ainypuadx3 T-

QduelleA

2002 Ya1eN 9¢

147

(41

CEET

65€

8¢

0T¢

qct

4"

1se%9.104
SINIWNOD pa1dafold pu3z Jesp
S.000F 3dNLIAN3IdX3 L3N

viT

c9€

L/9T

6¢v

8¢

0T¢

ST

€T

Ieak 10}
panoiddy

sxxx O 90-1eiN-TE 90-1elN-TE
0 LO-TeN-TE  LO-1eN-TE
oljojiiod 1oy} [eroL
waxe L9 90-INC-9T  S0-1dv-TO
0 LO0-TeN-TE  LO-1eN-TE
e O L0-JeIN-0E  90-TeN-TE
8. 90-98Q-0€ V0-TeN-TE
8 10-d8S-0€  90-1eN-TE
6€ 80-unr-0¢  SO-INC-TE
(sx108m) [enioy/
uonelep  1sedalo4  panosddy
NOIL3TdNOD

sa|qe[oAday Aiq Joy suig pajeaym feuondo 209
juswabreuel a1sep

(£0/90) wawaoe|day 193]4 S9PIUSA  70°Z6T/20
S99IAISS suonelado

suonesado :01704.L40d

oIpNIS ssaulld - Ames  g/292/20

(£0/90) @2urULIUR BINMINS - SBAUSD aINsIe]  €0°'VET/Z0

(90/50) @oUEUBIUIRIN ININS - SBAUSD BINSIOT  20'VET/Z0

Sallljide4 pajgesI - Saljua) aInsia TO'SET/TO

suoissaidw| - 8nua) ainsia uopbununy  V/9EE/E0

sanua) ainsia 1e sjuawanoldw| - A1DD  V/220/00
Sallua) uOoljealday

£0/900¢ SaWBYIS AV

140d3d ONIHJOLINOW SINTFHIS TVLIdVO - d1IN

16



. Jo / abed

19%- 8¢SST
€9- 1201
0 0
0 yx4
‘a|geAalyoe
paJapisuod si pue (SdyD)Janddns ay)
yum paaibe uaaq sey arep siyl '20/S0/60
uo anl| 0b 01 Bupjoo| ate sabrey) pue 0 €9
0 8¢6
sdwi pasieoo] Joj sed ay) ul sawsyds
|lews ye Bupjoo| osje pue plefieog
3y} 01 S92INIBS JO uoisinoid 8y Jo4 €9- e
0 0T
€EeT- 6L
Ot 0
0 14
0 144
€6- 0¢
0 VA%
aouelleA  1SeJaloH

SINIWNOD pa1dafold pu3z Jesp

$.000F 3dNLIANIdX3 13N

2002 Ya1eN 9¢

G66ST 01]0J110d |[e [ej0L

7801 0110j110d 10j [e10L

0 wenr VE €0-AON-0E  €0-1elN-TE

lC sxxx O 90-10-0¢ 90-1eN-TE

€S8 €GT L0-TeN-60  ¥0-teN-TE

8¢6 wexx LT 90-InC-8¢ 90-1elN-0€

99 09T 10-bny-8z  ¥0-994-82

0T 0 80-1BN-0€  80-1eN-0€

cte 01]0j110d 10j [e10L

[0)% 0 L0-TeN-0€  LO-1eN-8¢

°14 0 L0-TeN-0€  LO-1eN-0€

144 sxxx GE 90-AON-0€ 90-1eN-0€

(XA 0 L0-TeN-0E€  LO-telN-0€

SVA% 0110j110d 10j [e10L

Ieak 10} (sxeam) [enmoy/

panoiddy uonelep  1sedalo4  panosddy
NOIL3TdNOD

swaisAsuawdinbg Bunuud jo wuawadedey  V/yZT/T0
juswaoe|day siaidoooloyd 0S¥

MaInaY uonedlddy sabreyd puet 0 TOE/E0
ABojouyda] uolnewuoju|

uopBununy loowxQ a1ua) YiesH 8ail Yeo €79

sjuswanoidw| preAreog uopbununH  W/S9E/€0
SJ08N 1S ‘e)ua) SalIsSNpu| aAnealI) 1G9
1wawdojaAaQg 21Wwou0o3

Ao1j0d 7 s824n0say  :0IT704.1H0d

suawdojana@ auad UMol  V/¥2z/20

(20790) Buiwiud dwnd - sjunH IN [emausy [einy  Z0'8SE/E0

(90/50) Buiwiud dwnd - sjunH 3N emausay [einy  TO'8SE/E0

sanss| AaQ Buluue|d - A8 JUdD UMO] UNH  V/./0/T0
uolleAlasuo) pue Aoijod Buluue|d

AbBarens Buluueld :01704140d

£0/900¢ SaWBYIS AV

140d3d ONIHJOLINOW SINTFHIS TVLIdVO - d1IN

17



pa1oIpald B aAey yoiym Jo sarejal 1odal syl yoiym 01 Jeak ay ul (1au Jo ssoub) Buipuny panoidde yum sswayds ||y 20/900Z SeWayds aAlldY

L 10 / abed

SNOILINIZEA - 140d3d ONIJOLINOW STINTFHOS 1VLIdVO - dLIN “XINNV

€69'GT 9891 (1°z eured) sje101

6¢ 9T 1BYI0

0¢ 0 YSOIy 1suno uophununH

GG GG welo Alaaaq buluueld jo asn

89- 89- el Aoualoyg 7 aouewlopuad dISep

T9¢E 88T Xauuy Ul papn[oul Jou [ended 01 anuanay

ve- 00S'T- Xauuy Ul papnjoul Jou uoisiaoid sfesssaq
papnjoul JoN

82S'ST G66'ST [e10] Vv Xauuy

000F 0007
196png
1Se29104 panoiddy

140d3d 13INIFVO HLIM NOILVITTIONOO3d

18



‘g0ueLIeA
feloueuly Jo abeddis
‘reJjopp Aue Buigliosap
aAlfelteu jBlig

SINIWNOD

"awayos ay)
BAIRp 01
aJinlipuadxe
»BU

fenioe ay1
pue aweyds
ay jo

1500 Jau [e]0)
panoidde
3y} usamiaq
20U BYIP
parnloud
ayL

souel e
pa1efoud

#

Aqg 1ode
ayrul
paredipul
ake
asay] Auo
Buipuny
Teak
W12 8y}
SISIYlswns
Bul1inoa
Ajrenuue
104

‘panoJdde
ainny

pue sfenioe
olosy

uo paseq
awayds ayy
40 3500 U
|feenoayL

ov

felol
pano iddy

" reak
snowa.d ay;
wo.j abeddis
panodde

Aue Jaypbol
Jeak Jue1und
ay) Jof dIIN
uipspnioul
junouwre BN

ov

90/S00¢
pano iddy

S.000F 3d4NLIANIdX3 L3N

Aqg 1odasayy ul
paysinbuisip a.se
alep uov|dwod
J[enioe,

ue uo paseq S|
abeddifs/e 1P
3.JoyYMm SaWweys

"pas1ioyine usaq
sey .[ellejep, e
yoym Joj potsed
ay3 puofeq puepe
10 arep pano.dde
ay1 wouy Aren

[11M Uo 100D
youym Aq sxpem
urawi renpe

Jo paypipa.d
Apusainoayl

(S>0m)
abeddiis

“(J21H0 1D
©S9pN[oUl YoIym)
pJeoq 109/o.d

e Ag aouenpe

ui pano.idde

usa(q aney isnw
uo(re.e jpade/Aepp

‘U0 palIoda
Buieq Jeak

3y} Joj yorey
Jo pus ayise
pawnsse s| ajep
pano.dde ayy
wns Bu11unos .
Alrenuue

ue o} arepl reyl
s[esre.dde 104

aus elepp, “festedde
esefjienbo) | 19fo.id pesiel
pano.idde
‘afep ponoudde | Ahuenbesanse
ayjwolyAren | U0 fesreidde
[11m uo e |dwiod 1eloud
yoym Ag sxpam feuiB1io ay)
uraw (Sauweyds u1309fo.d ayy
po[dwod Joy) Jo uone(dwod
fenjoe Jo paipa.d ay) Jo}
Apeunoay) | UenbarepayL

g 200a-Te

©pom) ok

ellRd pono.ddy

NOILITdINOD

aWsyos Jo aweN

uolisod ejewe) paenny we|y - ALDD

ININNOHIANI

‘uopouNy
Ag padnoJb uay) pue
sJopjoy oljop.iod 0}
parRd0|[e 8te s19l0.1d

ERlICY=TEY]
resre.dde 109014

610
ALDD

‘01104 140d

“1eak ay) uiyum arep uonajdwod enioe, J0 ,Juaiind,

19



ANNEX B

Expected deferrals to 2007/08 Gross External Net
Budget Contributions Budget

£000 £000 £000

Wood Walton Sewage Treatment Works -40 0 -40
New Public Conveniences -97 0 -97
CCTV - Digital Services -52 0 -52
Sawtry Leisure Centre - Impressions -70 0 -70
Local Leisure Project Grants 45 0 45
Play Equipment Replacement -50 0 -50
Activity Parks -78 0 -78
Football Improvements -1,384 -1,226 -158
Business Systems -74 0 -74
Corporate EDM -20 0 -20
Customer First -103 0 -103
Voice and Data Infrastructure -90 0 -90
Automated Form Processing in Benefits 3 0 3
Flexible Working 10 0 10
Town Centre Developments -40 0 -40
Huntindon Town Centre Development -93 0 -93
Huntingdon Boatyard Improvements -63 0 -63
Sapley Square 0 -204 204
Bus Shelter Provision -4 0 -4
Car Parking Strategy -122 0 -122
Safe Cycle Routes -305 -105 -200
Huntingdon Transport Strategy -100 0 -100
St Ives Transport Strategy 15 0 15
Railway Stations Improvements -46 0 -46
Provision for further deferrals 277 0 -277
-3,035 -1,535 -1,500

Less provision already made in MTP -1,500 0 -1,500
TOTAL ADJUSTMENT -1,535 -1,535 0

20




Agenda Item 5

CABINET 26 APRIL 2007

MEDIUM TERM PLAN
REQUESTS FOR RELEASE OF FUNDS

(Report by the Head of Financial Services)

1 PURPOSE

1.1 The purpose of this report is to allow Cabinet to decide whether to
release funds for the MTP scheme detailed in the attached annexes.

2 BACKGROUND

2.1 The Council agreed in December 2005 that, having regard to the
implications for future spending and Council Tax levels, Directors
review with appropriate Executive Councillors the need for
schemes/projects included in the MTP but not yet started and that
specific prior approval be sought and obtained from the Cabinet
before such schemes/projects are implemented.

2.2 Officers have identified the schemes that they wish Cabinet to consider
releasing funding for and have discussed them with the relevant
Executive Councillor.

2.3 Annex A summarises and the following Annexes detail these requests.

3. RECOMMENDATION

3.1 The Cabinet is recommended to release the funds shown in Annex A.

ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT 1985
None

Contact Officer:
Steve Couper
Head of Financial Services ‘& 01480 388103

21



€C €e €C €e 14

palsanbal MOU 8Seajal YdIYM J0J JUNOLWE [210 |

¢10¢
1TT0¢

T110¢ 0T0¢ 600¢  800¢
/0T0C  /600¢ /800 /L00C

L00¢
1900¢

€e €e €e €e S¢
¢l0¢  T10¢ 0T0¢ 600Cc  800¢
/TT0C  /0T0C /600¢ /800 /L00C

L00¢
/900¢

(000.3) rended 19N

(000.3) 10edw| 8nuUaAay 18N

19921JJO SwalsAs 1D arelodio)d - 98/

AIVINNNS

d
Xauuy

22

V X3aNNV



"(9g/) uoissiwgns 41N [eulblo ay) ass asea|d s|re1ap Jayunj 1o

o1gnd ay1 ‘Apuanbasuod ‘pue siasn 01 uondnisip BuLNIUI Se [|am Se |IDuNoD ay) 0}

1509 Jarealb Jo aq ||am Aew yoiym Ind20 swajqosd uaym siseq 20y pe ue uo a9IA1as Aoueynsuod poddns e asn 01 8q pjnom 1sod Siyl 0] aAeuldle ayl
‘Juswade|dal e Buninidal ul SIS0J pue B2IAIBS

01 uondnusip Buipioae snyi ‘AjoAndaye Bunesado pue paurel) MOU SI OYM Jagquuiaw Jeis e Jo uonualal ayl puny 0l sl 1sanbal asesjal siyl jo asodind ay
19210 Jejnaiued Siy) JO SB2IAISS 8y} ulelal 0] S1SaJdlul S |Iouno)

3y} ul yonw AIBA 8q pinom JI pue 3[04 8y} Ul 8Adale Alan aq 01 j|asiay panoid sey Japjoy 1sod Aresodwal sy ‘1sed ayl ul (Jeinaiued ur) siasn wliojun
Sdv) pa1daye sey 1eyl uondnisip J1asn juanbasgns pue awnuMop ayl pasiwiuiw Sey pue |njssadans Alan panoid sey juswuiodde Jeak auo syl
‘1eak T Jo pouad e 10} 1sod e puny 01 pabeuew ‘Buipun) anuanal 7 Juelb wial-110ys JO ainixiw e Buisn ‘pue Jayiabol paggn|d siuawiedap

[e19A8S paau SIYl Jo uonubodal u] “pasinbal S| Juswabeuew walsSAs paledipap pue pasierdads alow (ANQ3 % wuoj-lun Ba) swalsAs aresodiod
able| 10 ‘JaASMOH uonNeAISIUIWPE 19SN-pPUd pue Juawabeuew walsAs [eiauab QNI JO aimxiw e ybnoiyl pasaiyoe si Juswabeuew SwWalsAs ‘WalsAs
sujouag ay) ‘sjdwexa 10} ‘swalsAs pasielnads sawos 104 “pauoddns Apadoid jou are SwalISAS wWIo)-IUN SAVYD ayl ‘oidwexs 1oy ‘JI sieak aininy
ul Ysu 1e aq Aew (spJepuels 999,Sg se yons) sabueyd uone|siba| juswulanob Bunsaw pue (luels AldAllaqg Buluue|d ayl se yons) siuelb [eulaix3
10848 wnwixew 0} palojdxa s wawdol|aAsp pue Aljeuonouny Jisyl ainsua djgay 01 pue Apuaioiye uni o} Juswabeuew walsAs alinbal swaisAs yonsg
"(DAH Jo sued 1aylo Auew pue

Aoueunooay ‘Buluue|d ul JuswAoljdap Jo) painpayods pue Buisuadl] ‘BuisnoH ‘siiyauag ul Aualind — YIOp@BMUY) WaIsAs Juswabeue|y Juswnoog
21U0J1938|3 8y pue (sarels3 pue suonesadQ ul pajuswsadwi Buiaq Apuannd pue [oiuo) Bulpjing 7 sabreyd pue ‘9d77 ‘SS822V dl|gnd ‘Buisusdi
‘Buiuue|d) wiol-1UN SAVD Ag papinoid asoyl se yons swiaisAs 1aindwod arelodiod uo asuaspuadap Buimolb usag sey alayl Sieak maj 1se| ayl JanQ

asea|ay J10j uoneoynsne

paisanbal mou

ee ee ee ee ee G2 asea|al YdIym Joj Junowy
0 0 0 0 0 0 paseajal Apeally
e €e €€ €e ee 74 196png 19N panoiddy

000F | 000F| 000F| 0O00F| 000F| 000F| O000F] 000F| O0O0F | O000F| O000F | 000F| O000F| 000F
€T0Cc | <Z10¢| T10Z| OTOCZ| 600C2) 800C| LOOCZ| €T0C| <Zt0Cc| TI0Z| OTOC| 6002 | 800C | L0O0OC
/¢10C | /TT0C | /0TOC | /600¢ | /800¢ | /.00 | /900¢ | /¢T0c | /TT0C | /OTOC | /600C | /800¢ | /L00C | /900¢

[ende)d 1oedw| anuanay 19N 10edw| eloueuld

(@) 1reH s1yd — 182110 108(oud 1991JJO swalsAs 1Dl arelodiod - 9¢/ — 'ON pid d1IN

g XaANNY

23



24



Agenda Iltem 6

CABINET 26 APRIL 2007

HIINCHINGBROOKE HOSPITAL CONSULTATION FEEDBACK REPORT
(Report by Head of Environmental and Community Health Services)

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek Members' approval for the
proposed wording of the response to Cambridgeshire Primary Care
Trust’s consultation: ‘Seeking Sustainable Health Services for the
People of Huntingdonshire'.

2. THE CONSULTATION PROCESS

2.1 The consultation document sets out a range of proposals for the future
services currently provided by Hinchingbrooke Health Care NHS Trust
(HHCT). It also explains how the proposals may fit with the financial
recovery plans of both HHCT and Cambridgeshire Primary Care Trust
(the PCT).

2.2 Formal consultation started on Tuesday 20 February 2007 and
concludes on Tuesday 22 May 2007.

2.3 In addition to the published consultation documents, Members have had
the opportunity to hear presentations about the proposals: on 1 February
and 15 March 2007. These presentations formed part of the PCT’s
effort to consult widely on the proposals. The PCT has also arranged
seven public meetings during the course of the consultation process
(between 20 March and 20 April 2007).

2.4 The consultation process allows for views to be submitted on-line, in
writing or in person. It is intended to provide feedback in writing. The
PCT has included within the consultation document a tabulated
guestionnaire which allows free-text. This format has been used and is
intended to be attached to a covering letter to help the PCT in the
analysis of the numerous responses that are expected.

3. THE PROPOSED RESPONSE

3.1 A draft of the proposed letter is attached (Annex 1). This letter has with
it suggested comments within the completed questionnaire.

3.2 The letter states that Huntingdonshire District Council (HDC) is anxious
that any service changes in relation to Hinchingbrooke Healthcare NHS
Trust should not, as far as possible, reduce the quality and accessibility
of services for residents in Huntingdonshire. It also confirms that it is a
key objective of HDC that the future of the hospital be secured.

3.3 The questionnaire return confirms that of the four options offered the
Council's preference is for Option 2. Both the letter and the
guestionnaire raise some reservations in relation to the proposals within
Option 2. These reservations include the dissolution of HHCT as a
Trust.

25



4. RECOMMENDATIONS

4.1 Members are RECOMMENDED to agree the content of the consultation
response (attached) and consent to the response being submitted to the
PCT before 22 May 2007.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Consultation documents:

Seeking Sustainable Health Services for the People of Huntingdonshire — Formal
Consultation Document (February 2007) Cambridgeshire PCT
www.hinchingbrooke.nhs.uk/future

Seeking Sustainable Health Services for the People of Huntingdonshire —
Summary Consultation Document (February 2007) Cambridgeshire PCT
www.hinchingbrooke.nhs.uk/future

Notes of briefings:

Outcomes from the briefing on Hinchingbrooke Hospital, Huntingdonshire DC,
1 February 2007.

Briefing for elected Members at Huntingdonshire District Council: Consultation on
Hinchingbrooke Hospital NHS Trust, 15 March 2007.

Contact Officer: Dr Susan Lammin - Head of Environmental and
Community Health
= 01480 388280

26



Annex 1

FAQO: Ms. Karen Mason

Acting Director of Communications and Public Involvement
Heron Court

Ida Darwin

Fulbourn

Cambridge

CB15EE

27 April 2007
Our Ref: SL/
Dear Karen,

SEEKING SUSTAINABLE HEALTH SERVICES FOR THE PEOPLE OF HUNTINGDONSHIRE.

Thank you for opportunity to, comment as part of the formal consultation process, on the range
of proposals for the future of services currently provided by Hinchingbrooke Healthcare NHS
Trust (HHCT). | should say at the outset that Huntingdonshire District Council (HDC) is anxious
that any service changes in relation to Hinchingbrooke Healthcare NHS Trust should not, as far
as possible, reduce the quality and accessibility of services for residents in Huntingdonshire.
The recent petition to preserve services at Hinchingbrooke Hospital attracted in excess of
50,000 signatures. Therefore it is a key objective of HDC that the future of the hospital be
secured. The Council is mindful that the future of the hospital hinges on the Cambridgeshire
Primary Care Trust’'s (PCT) commissioning plans and their willingness to commission services
from HHCT.

There is considerable demand for reassurance about the process, the nature, and robustness of
data informing the PCT’s proposals. For example:

e The £14.5M identified savings are dependant on increased efficiencies at the
Hinchingbrooke site but there is no indication, within the consultation document, of the
robustness of the estimate nor the difficulties that must be overcome in realising the
savings.

e The £2.5M PCT investment in community-based services is said to be based on
projected commissioning costs yet no allowance has seems to have been made for any
structural alterations to buildings that may be necessary to host these services within the
community.

e No allowance seems to have been made for costs incurred during any lag in the
implementation of the plan, to allow recruitment of adequate numbers of community-
based staff.

There is also a desire for evidence that consideration of the wider social impact of decisions
relating to hospital services has been as inclusive as possible. Hinchingbrooke Hospital is part
of a wider network of interdependent services and support. For example: the established public
transport links to the hospital are unlikely to be available to all of the community-based clinics.

In relation to process, serious concern has been expressed that in considering Hinchingbrooke

in isolation and in advance of the comprehensive strategic review by the Strategic Health
Authority (SHA), a situation is being created whereby HHCT could be subject to two stringent

27



reviews in a very short period. The cumulative effect of implementing adjustments from serial
reviews could have a serious negative impact on hospital services. Reassurance is sought that
any modifications to services arising from this review will be accepted by the SHA and not
subject to further reductions in the context of the strategic review. It is possible that if the
strategic impacts of the Hinchingbrooke review-recommendations could not be demonstrated to
have been properly considered then elected-Member(s) may formally object and may ask the
Scrutiny Panel to call in any relevant decision(s).

There are some unresolved concerns around any future dissolution of the HHC Trust. A
significant amount of saving has been attributed to this dissolution in the proposals; yet no firm
proposals for alternative governance arrangements have been offered. Members are concerned
that and amalgamation with either Peterborough or Addenbrookes Hospital Trusts is not
attractive for preserving the local interest. A merger with the PCT Provider Trust may be more
attractive but the provider arm of PCT does not have Trust status yet and there are no
indications of the investment that would be required to achieve such an arrangement.

It is also a matter of concern that no assumptions about future population growth have been
made, yet Huntingdonshire is in a growth area. Both of the new settlements: Cambourne and
Northstowe are within Hinchingbrookes catchment. Northstowe in particular has seen the
planned development increase by a further 2000 homes. It is expected that west-of-Cambridge
communities will rely on Hinchingbrooke Hospital services as Addenbrookes Hospital relieves
pressure from Hertfordshire’s growth. Huntingdonshire is an area included in the Regional
Spatial Strategy as a growth-area post-2021. Members would wish to have some reassurance
about the robustness of the forward-planning included in the proposals. In order to keep
Members informed we would welcome periodic briefings as work progresses.

The templates for responses are attached to this letter as appendices. | hope this information
proves useful to the PCT in planning for services for residents in Huntingdonshire.

Yours sincerely

IAN BATES
LEADER
HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

28



Annex to letter from Huntingdonshire District Council in response to the Formal
Consultation Document “Seeking Sustainable Health Services for the People of
Huntingdonshire: February 2007’

Huntingdonshire District Council has the following comments to make on Option 1:

The financial affordability of this option has not been demonstrated, as Option 1
delivers a shortfall of £4.1m in cost reductions over the next 3 years. Therefore, this
Option is not compatible with Huntingdonshire District Council’s key objective that the
future of the hospital be secured.

Please circle below the statement that bests represents your view of the level of support you

feel for these proposals
Strongly agree / agree / no opinion /strongly disagree

Huntingdonshire District Council has the following comments to make on Option 2
(the PCT'’s preferred option which includes the principle of dissolution of HHCT as a
corporate entity):

The option of remodelling the service is the one, of the four options offered, that is
most appealing to Huntingdonshire District Council. The provision of broadly the
same range of services at lower volumes by changing the emphasis of service
delivery between hospital and community settings is the proposal that comes closest
to the Council’s wish that service changes in relation to Hinchingbrooke Healthcare
NHS Trust should not, as far as possible, reduce the quality and accessibility of
services for residents in Huntingdonshire.

There are some unresolved concerns around any future dissolution of the HHC Trust.
A significant amount of saving has been attributed to this dissolution in the proposals;
yet no firm proposals for alternative governance arrangements have been offered.
Members are concerned that and amalgamation with either Peterborough or
Addenbrookes Hospital Trusts is not attractive for preserving the local interest. A
merger with the PCT Provider Trust may be more attractive but the provider arm of
PCT does not have Trust status yet and there are no indications of the investment
that would be required to achieve such an arrangement.

There is considerable demand for reassurance about the process, the nature, and
robustness of data informing the PCT'’s proposals. There is a wish for reassurance
that implementation of this option will significantly improve the financial viability of
Hinchingbrooke Hospital. There is also a desire for evidence that consideration of the
wider social impact of decisions relating to hospital services has been as inclusive as
possible.

It is also a matter of concern that no assumptions about future population growth
have been made, yet Huntingdonshire is in a growth area. It is expected that west-of-
Cambridge communities will rely on Hinchingbrooke Hospital services as
Addenbrookes Hospital relieves pressure from  Hertfordshire’s  growth.
Huntingdonshire is an area included in the Regional Spatial Strategy as a growth-
area post-2021. Members would wish to have some reassurance about the
robustness of the forward-planning.

Please circle below the statement that bests represents your view of the level of

support you feel for these-proposals
Strongly agree o opinion / disagree [/ strongly disagree

Of the options offered this is the preferred option of HDC however the Council has
reservations

29




Annex to letter from Huntingdonshire District Council in response to the Formal
Consultation Document “Seeking Sustainable Health Services for the People of
Huntingdonshire: February 2007’

Huntingdonshire District Council has the following comments to make on Option 3
(which includes the principle of dissolution of HHCT as a corporate entity):

Proposals which include the transfer of significant elements of patient services to
other hospitals and significantly reducing activity on the hospital site is not compatible
with Huntingdonshire District Council’s key objective that the future of the hospital be
secured. It is the Council’s view that such a change would reduce the quality and
accessibility of services for residents in Huntingdonshire.

There are some unresolved concerns around any future dissolution of the HHC Trust.
A significant amount of saving has been attributed to this dissolution in the proposals;
yet no firm proposals for alternative governance arrangements have been offered.
Members are concerned that and amalgamation with either Peterborough or
Addenbrookes Hospital Trusts is not attractive for preserving the local interest. A
merger with the PCT Provider Trust may be more attractive but the provider arm of
PCT does not have Trust status yet and there are no indications of the investment
that would be required to achieve such an arrangement.

Please circle below the statement that bests represents your view of the level of support you
feel for these proposals
Strongly agree / agree / no opinion /

disagree /)strongly disagree

Huntingdonshire District Council has the following comments to make on Option 4
(which includes the principle of dissolution of HHCT as a corporate entity):

Proposals which include the closure of all services on the hospital site (except
Treatment Centre activity) is completely opposed to Huntingdonshire District
Council's key objective that the future of the hospital be secured. It is the Council’s
view that such a change would reduce the quality and accessibility of services for
residents in Huntingdonshire.

There are some unresolved concerns around any future dissolution of the HHC Trust.
A significant amount of saving has been attributed to this dissolution in the proposals;
yet no firm proposals for alternative governance arrangements have been offered.
Members are concerned that and amalgamation with either Peterborough or
Addenbrookes Hospital Trusts is not attractive for preserving the local interest. A
merger with the PCT Provider Trust may be more attractive but the provider arm of
PCT does not have Trust status yet and there are no indications of the investment
that would be required to achieve such an arrangement.

Please circle below the statement that bests represents
feel for these proposals
Strongly agree / agree / no opinion /

view of the level of support you

disagree /)strongly disagree

The statement that best represents the basis on which you are responding:

Organisation: (approx. no. of people your organisation is responding on behalf of: Residents
of Huntingdonshire likely to require Hinchingbrooke Hospital services (population base:
167,000)

30



Agenda ltem 7

CABINET 26 APRIL 2007

DOG CONTROL ORDERS
(Report by Head of Environmental & Community Health Services)

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 The Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005 (CNEA)
introduced the concept of Dog Control Orders to replace the present
system of byelaws and the enforcement provisions of the Dogs (Fouling
of Land) Act 1996 which is repealed.

1.2 In addition to replacing the existing dog control provisions the CNEA has
extended the powers available and established two levels of
enforcement authority; primary authorities such as the District Council
and secondary authorities such as Town and Parish Councils.

2. SUPPORTING/BACKGROUND INFORMATION

2.1 The use of dog control orders is governed by two sets of regulations, the
Dog Control Order (Procedures) Regulations 2006 and the Dog Control
(Prescribed Offences and Penalties, etc) Regulations 2006. The former
sets out the procedures to be followed when making, amending or
revoking dog control orders and the schedules to the latter describe the
form of the orders and the five offences that can be the subject of a Dog
Control Order:

* Failure to remove dog faeces;

* Not keeping a dog on a lead;

. Not putting, and keeping, a dog on a lead when directed to do so
by an authorised officer;

. Permitting a dog to enter land from which dogs are excluded; and

* Taking more than a specified number of dogs onto land.

2.2 Primary and secondary authorities must consult each other before
making dog control orders and proposed orders must be advertised in a
local newspaper. If a dog control order is likely to affect open access
land, the relevant authority must also be consulted.

2.3 All responses/representations following consultation/advertisement must
be considered before dog control orders are made and the orders
cannot become effective until at least 14 days after they are made. A
further advert must be placed in a local newspaper at least seven days
before the orders come into force and the orders must be placed on the
Council website.

2.4 Preliminary discussions with Town and Parish Councils have established
that all secondary authorities in Huntingdonshire wish the District
Council to make the orders and they, as the secondary authorities, will
be consulted on the draft proposals. In any event, any dog control order
made by the District Council has supremacy over an order made by a
secondary authority for the same land.

31



2.5

2.6

2.7

3.1

3.2

3.3

Guidance from DEFRA emphasises that Councils should adopt a
balanced approach when making dog control orders, carefully
considering the needs of both dog owners and others. DEFRA consider
that failure to do so would leave the orders vulnerable to challenge in the
courts. In practice, they say that dog owners should have access to land
where they can exercise their dogs and that other people should be able
to enjoy reasonable access to land without interference from dogs.

It is proposed that the Council makes four dog control orders designed
to repeat all existing dog controls and extend the areas covered to new
developments that have been established since the previous controls
were put in place. The four dog control orders that are considered
necessary and proportionate to the needs of the area are:

¢ Failure to remove dog faeces;

. Not keeping a dog on a lead;

. Not putting, and keeping, a dog on a lead when directed to do so
by an authorised officer; and

. Permitting a dog to enter land from which dogs are excluded.

Copies of the four draft orders and associated maps are located in the
Members’ Room.

Advantages of the new system of dog controls are that, unlike byelaws,
it is not necessary to have the orders confirmed by the Secretary of
State and orders can be amended, subject to further consultation
procedures.

IMPLICATIONS

All existing Byelaws and designations made under the Dogs (Fouling of
Land) Act 1996 remain in force until the new orders are made. When
the new dog control orders are made any existing dog control byelaws
(for the same offence on the same land) and designations made under
the Dogs (Fouling of Land) Act 1996 lapse and are replaced by the new
orders.

It is a legal requirement that, where practicable, warning signs
summarising the order must be placed on land to which a new order
applies and where an order applies to a large area of land, for example,
in relation to dog fouling, warning signs must be provided at regular
intervals. This will require the replacement of existing warning signs
throughout the District and the Environmental Health budgets can cope
with this necessity in respect of District Council signs. Secondary
authorities will be responsible for replacing their existing signs.

The new orders can be enforced by prosecution or by fixed penalty
notices. The penalty for an offence established in dog control orders is a
maximum fine of level 3 on the standard scale (currently £1,000).
Alternatively, the opportunity to pay a fixed penalty may be offered in
place of prosecution. The level of the fixed penalty notice can be set
locally but there is a default level of £75 and many local authorities are
adopting that level, with the incentive of a reduction to £50 if the fixed
penalty is paid within 10 days of issue.

32



3.4

3.5

4.1

5.1

5.2

53

54

There are defences/exemptions in all dog control orders of:
(@ Having a reasonable excuse for failing to comply with an order; or

(b) Acting with the consent of the owner or occupier of the land, or of
any other person or authority which has control of the land.

There is no specific exemption for working dogs but clearly they will
normally be working on land with consent. Specific exemptions are
made in particular cases for assistance dogs such as those used as
guide dogs for the blind.

Being unaware of a dog’'s defecation, or not having a device or other
suitable means of removing the faeces is specifically excluded from the
definition of reasonable excuse under the regulations.

Fixed penalties for offences under dog control orders can be issued by
authorised officers, including:

. Employees of primary and secondary authorities who are
authorised for this purpose but employees of secondary authorities
must first satisfy certain conditions linked to training before they
can be so authorised.

* Any person authorised (including employees of that person) in
writing by a primary or secondary authority in pursuance of
arrangements made by that person and the relevant authority.

. Police Community Support Officers and other persons accredited
by the Chief Police Officers under the Police Reform Act 2002.

CONCLUSION

The four proposed dog control orders are necessary and proportionate
to the needs of the area and will provide effective dog control measures,
if adopted.

RECOMMENDATIONS
Itis RECOMMENDED that Members:

Note the content of this report and approve the form and content of the
four dog control orders and the associated maps attached to the orders.

Delegate authority to the Director of Operational Services to appoint
authorised officers to enforce the dog control provisions of the Clean
Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005, including the issue of fixed
penalty notices.

Authorise the Head of Environmental & Community Health Services to
advertise the draft orders and to confer with all statutory consultees on
the content of the draft orders.

Authorise the Head of Environmental & Community Health Services, in
consultation with the Executive Councillor for Housing and Public Health,
to make the dog control orders subject to consideration of consultation
responses and representations.

33



5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

Authorise the Head of Environmental & Community Health Services, in
consultation with the Executive Councillor for Housing and Public Health,
to amend or revoke dog control orders, subject to the necessary
advertisement and consultation requirements of the CNEA.

Authorise the enforcement of dog control orders by either prosecution or
by the issuing of fixed penalty notices.

Authorise the Head of Environmental & Community Health Services, in
consultation with the Executive Councillor for Housing and Public Health,
to initiate legal proceedings for offences under dog control orders.

Authorise the adoption of a fixed penalty notice of £75 for offences under
adopted dog control orders with an incentive of a reduction to £50 if the
fixed penalty is paid within 10 days of issue.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005
The Dog Control Order (Procedures) Regulations 2006
The Dog Control (Prescribed Offences and Penalties, etc) Regulations 2006

Dog Control Orders and associated maps in the Members’ Room

Contact Officer: John Allan

=2 01480 388281

34



Agenda Item 8

CABINET 26 APRIL 2007

PLAY STRATEGY REPORT
(Report by Head of Environmental and Community Health Services)

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 This report is a preliminary report with outcomes clearly dependent upon
funds been made available by the Big Lottery. The purpose of this report
is to seek Members’ approval for the proposed Play Strategy and also to
seek approval in principle for the submission of a bid to the Big Lottery
Fund, in October 2007, for funds to allow implementation of some of the
proposals.

2. THE STRATEGY

2.1 This ‘Play Strategy’ will form part of the District Council’'s Culture
Strategy, which is currently being developed. The Culture Strategy will
also include strategies and action plans for Open Spaces, Arts and
Culture, Recreation and Leisure Development and Recreation Centre
Services.

2.2 The ‘Play Strategy’ provides an opportunity for the authority to access
The Big Lottery funding where it identifies schemes that meet the
funding criteria. Additionally it will enable the authority to communicate a
vision for future play development that will enable access to funds
arising from the growth agenda.

2.3 Presently there is no lead officer within the authority for ‘play’ and no
capacity to take on additional work in this area has been identified. If the
strategy and action plan submitted to The Big Lottery are not successful
so that it proves impossible to fund a Play Co-ordinator post, then many
of the proposed actions cannot be delivered. In the absence of the
necessary external funding the strategy will provide a vision. The vision
will serve as a guide to those developments that can still be delivered as
part of the authority’s normal business, eg allocation of capital via S106,
grant aid for play/village hall provision.

2.4 The Big Lottery Fund announced details of its new £155 million
children’s play initiative in March 2006. The amount of funding made
available for Huntingdonshire District Council to access is £300,184.
The aim of the fund is to create, improve and develop children’s and
young people’s local play spaces.

2.5 It is a condition of The Big Lottery Fund award that prior to any funds
being made available to an authority that local authority must have in
place a play strategy. The ‘Play Strategy’ must identify and establish
clear policies for play. These policies will be the basis on which access
will be created and improved and by which all children will be provided
with the chance to enjoy a range of quality play and recreation
opportunities.

2.6 This strategy has been informed by a range of consultations with
children, young people and parents (see Appendix 1) and takes account
of local and national policy initiatives and organisational priorities (see
Appendix 2). The strategy has to be submitted to The Big Lottery Fund

35



2.7

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

by the end of October 2007 with an action plan detailing how the
allocated funds will be spent over a three-year period.

The attached strategy document sets out the following:-
* Purpose of the Strategy;

* Vision for the strategy;

* Definition of play;

. Core values; and

. Key points identified.

THE ACTION PLAN

The strategy has to be submitted to The Big Lottery Fund by the end of
October 2007 if funding is to be sought from this source. The
submission must include an action plan detailing how the allocated funds
will be spent over a three-year period. Following the various
consultation exercises and workshops undertaken with individuals and
partner agencies a number of initiatives were identified that could be
undertaken with The Big Lottery funding.

The ideas that may be necessary to develop in the action plan include:
appointment of a Play Co-ordinator; further engagement with children
and young people in specific areas; continued support for successful
established schemes; and an improvement programme for those areas
identified as lacking suitable play equipment.

Play Co-ordinator: For delivery of the ‘Play Strategy’ there is a need for
a co-ordinator to work with partners to move the initiative forward.
Currently there is no corporate officer-lead for play issues and therefore
it is proposed the authority appoint a Play Co-ordinator. This post-holder
will be able to lead the implementation of the strategy and support
council officers in developing other projects; particularly those related to
spatial planning and linked to the growth agenda. The proposed post
would be Full-Time with an initial contract linked to the length of the Big
Lottery funding award.

Further engagement: To refine proposals to meet identified needs
further engagement will be needed with children and young people, in
specific geographic areas, eg Yaxley, Sawtry and Ramsey (OCYPS
area). This work will be necessary to involve them in refining the needs
assessment and generating and testing proposals for delivery of
improvements.  This work could be commissioned from partner
agencies.

Continuation and support for successful established schemes: There is
already some specific play provision; either mobile/portable equipment
or holiday schemes already established in key priority areas, eg Oxmoor
and Eynesbury. The Action plan would seek to retain and build on this
success rather than replace schemes with new initiatives.

36



3.6

4.1

4.2

4.3

Improvement programme: For those areas identified as short of
equipment consideration will be given to an improvement programme,
eg Stilton and Stukeley Meadows skate park initiatives.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Members are requested to agree the content of the draft play strategy
(attached).

Members are requested to agree in principle the proposed main points
for the action plan, as set out in points 3.3 to 3.6 of this report. Also to
consent to officers costing the initiatives, being mindful of the limits of
the Big Lottery Fund award.

Members are requested to accept that a further report be provided to
Cabinet this summer. This report to set out an action plan (with costs)
detailing how allocated Big Lottery funding would be spent over a three-
year period.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Consultation documents set out in Appendix 1 of strategy document.

Contact Officer: Daniel Smith — Community Manager

= 01480 388377

37



This page is intentionally left blank

38



Agenda Item 9

CABINET 26 APRIL 2007
ISSUES AND OPTIONS FOR CORE STRATEGY, DEVELOPMENT CONTROL
POLICIES DEVELOPMENT PLAN DOCUMENTS (DPDs) AND HUNTINGDON
WEST AREA ACTION PLAN

(Report by HEAD OF PLANNING SERVICES)

1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek approval to consult on the attached
documents.

2 BACKGROUND

2.1 It was intended that proposed amendments to the Core Strategy 2006
were to be considered by Cabinet in February and were to address the
concerns expressed by Go-East and the Planning Inspectorate. Members
will be aware the Core Strategy submitted in April 2006 is now going to be
issued with a direction to withdraw. We have been advised that we need
to split the document into two separate development plan documents: one
to address the core strategy and one to provide development control
policies. A revised timetable has been incorporated into the local
development scheme to accommodate this which was approved by
Cabinet on 15 March 2007. It is now our intention to proceed to regulation
25 Issues and Options consultation in May on two DPDs:

o Core Strategy DPD
o Development Control Policies DPD

2.2 This will be followed by regulation 25 Issues and Options consultation in
June on the Huntingdon West Area Action Plan (AAP). This should avoid
overloading consultees and will focus on a smaller area.

3 CORE STRATEGY AND DEVELOPMENT CONTROL POLICIES
DEVELOPMENT PLAN DOCUMENTS

3.1 The Issues and Options consultation on the first two documents will be
closely based on material in the previous Core Strategy which has
already been subject to considerable consultation.

3.2 The Core Strategy will comprise chapters 1-3 of the previous Core
Strategy to which we are proposing the addition of issues relating to
affordable housing, energy and water use, redundant airfields and large
scale military sites and areas of strategic green space enhancement. The

39



Development Control Policies DPD will basically comprise chapters 4-10,
plus appendices of the previous Core Strategy with the possible omission
of issues which are addressed by other legislation such as conservation
and listed buildings.

A few further changes are proposed in response to issues which gave
rise to significant representations during the previous consultation periods
as follows. Details are to follow.

Core Strategy DPD

Issue Change

Settlement hierarchy | Potential replacement of the categories of Key
Centres (potential growth) and Key Centres
(limited growth) by a single category of Key
Service Centre in line with the hierarchy in the
Regional Spatial Strategy (RSS).

Scale of Revising the settlement hierarchy would have
development implications for the scale of development
allowed in different settlements. Potential
introduction of another category of scale of
housing permitted, for instance moderate
growth of 10-60 houses. This could be applied
to Key Service Centres to form a distinction
between them and Market Towns.

Redundant airfields Potential incorporation of the issue of the most
and large scale appropriate scale and nature of use of former
military sites airfields and military sites . The Panel Report
into the RSS concluded Alconbury is one of a
number of candidate locations for future
development and that its solution needs to
emerge through the first review of the RSS
which could be highlighted in this consultation.

Development Control Policies DPD

Sustainable design Potential incorporation of up to date guidance
on sustainable construction and design for new
homes following the launch of the Code for
Sustainable Homes in 2006.

40



4.2

4.3

5.1

HUNTINGDON WEST AREA ACTION PLAN

An Area Action Plan is scheduled in the Local Development Scheme for
the western part of Huntingdon as significant land use changes are likely
to come forward over the next 15 years. These include: mixed use
redevelopment of the Ermine Street/ George Street area, potential
changes to the road system as a result of the A14 improvements, and the
need to guide development of the Hinchingbrooke Community Campus
including an extension to the country Park. It is a very sustainable
location for additional growth to be focussed and could provide
opportunities to incorporate facilities ranging from additional retall,
employment and housing to recreational space.

The Huntingdon West AAP sets out a draft vision and objectives for the
area which draw on work towards the Core Strategy, the Corporate Plan,
the Community Strategy and national guidance. The majority of the
document sets out a series of issues relating to potential ways of
developing the area and options concerning material that could be
incorporated into the Huntingdon West AAP. These are complemented by
a succession of questions throughout the draft consultation paper
designed to elicit people’s opinions.

It is intended to progress this document to regulation 25 consultation in
June. This is only required by regulations to involve key stakeholders.
However, the Statement of Community Involvement advocates greater
public consultation for DPDs containing site specific proposals including
the possibility of using exhibitions and presentations to reach a wider
audience.

NEXT STEPS

Regulation 25 consultation will be undertaken throughout May and June
accordingly. The representations received will then be considered,
responses considered and preferred options consultation material
prepared. It is intended that preferred options consultation on the Core
Strategy and Development Control Policies DPDs will commence in
November 2007 and on the Huntingdon West AAP in December 2007.

41



6 RECOMMENDATION

6.1 That the Cabinet approve the following documents for consultation with
stakeholders :-

e Core Strategy DPD 2007- Issues and Options
e Development Control Policies DPD- Issues and Options

e Huntingdon West AAP- Issues and Options

Background papers:

Core Strategy Development Plan Document 2006

Planning Policy Statement 12: Local Development Frameworks
A companion guide to PPS12

CONTACT OFFICER- enquiries about this report to Richard Probyn 01480
388430

42



Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and
Options

Huntingdonshire District Council

43



44



Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

Introduction 4
Role of the Core Strategy 5
Linkages to other documents 6
Vision and Objectives 9
The need for a vision 9
Objectives of the Core Strategy 9
The overarching issue of sustainable development 12
Spatial strategy 13
Other strategic issues 29
B Glossary 41
Appendix One 46
Housing Completions and Commitments 46
Employment Land Completions 47

45



1

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

1 Introduction

1.1 In April 2006, Huntingdonshire District Council published a Submission Core Strategy as part of its Local
Development Framework (LDF). The Submission Core Strategy set out the spatial vision, objectives and policies
for managing development across Huntingdonshire. The Core Strategy was submitted to the Secretary of State
for examination, with a six week period allowed for representations to be made with regard to the document.

1.2 Following prolonged discussion on the content of the Core Strategy with the Government Office for the East
of England and the Planning Inspectorate, and in the light of further guidance issued on the required spatial content
of Core Strategies, the Secretary of State made a direction under Section 22(2) of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004 for the Council to withdraw the document. We have been advised to replace the Submission
Core Strategy (2006) with two separate documents: one to address the core spatial strategy and one to provide
development control policies.

1.3 To ensure compliance with the requirements of Planning Policy Statement 12 and the Town and Country
Planning (Local Development) (England) Regulations 2004 these replacement documents will be subject to full
consultation. Within the parameters set by national and regional guidance all issues, options and approaches to
be taken to managing development in Huntingdonshire are re-opened for debate.

1.4 The representations received during the previous consultation periods cannot be brought forward to this
document. However, they have been used to inform some of the options put forward in this consultation paper.

1.5 This Issues and Options paper is the first stage in the preparation of a completely new Core Strategy. It aims
to seek opinions on the issues that need to be addressed in the Core Strategy and what the objectives of the
document should be. It raises many potential options on how issues could be tackled and seeks suggestions on
alternative options and approaches that could be adopted.

1.6 Regulation 25 consultation will be undertaken throughout May and June with key stakeholders. The
representations received will then be considered and used to guide preparation of preferred options consultation
material for full public consultation. This will be followed by:

Public consultation on preferred options (November 2007)
Submission of the Core Strategy to the Secretary of State (April 2008)
Consultation on the submission document (April-May 2008)
Independent Examination - Hearing (November 2008)

Adoption (June 2009)

Sustainability Appraisal and Appropriate Assessment

1.7 Sustainability Appraisal is a systematic process which is carried out during the production of Development
Plan Documents to ensure that policies and proposals contribute towards relevant environmental, social and
economic objectives. Sustainability Appraisal incorporates the 'Strategic Environmental aAssessment' (SEA)
required as a result of the European Directive 2001/42/EC for plans and programmes that are likely to have a
significant effect upon the environment.

1.8 The Council has produced an Initial Sustainability Appraisal of the options included in this Issues and Options
report. This accompanies the Issues and Options report and will assist the consultation process and test and
refine any policies and proposals prior to preparation of the preferred options.



1

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

1.9 In addition to Sustainability Appraisal, amendments made to the UK Conservation (Habitats and etc)
Regulations 2006 require an Appropriate Assessment under Article 6(3) and (4) of the Habitat Directive 92/43/EEC
for all land use plans likely to have a significant effect on a European site. To satisfy the requirements Appropriate
Assessments should be undertaken before adoption of a DPD. European sites consist of Special Conservation
(SACs), Special Protection Areas (SPAs) and Offshore Marine Sites (OMS). This will be carried out if it is considered
that any aspect of the Core Strategy warrants it.

How to get involved

1.10 ltis important that we get your views on the issues and options in this report. Copies of the document have
been sent to key stakeholders and are available at the District Council Offices at Pathfinder House. An interactive
version of the document is also available on the Council's website.

1.11  You can comment on the document on-line via our interactive version at http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk or
e-mail your comments to us at Idf@huntsdc.gov.uk or write to us at the following address:

1.12 Planning Division
Huntingdonshire District Council
Pathfinder House

St Mary's Street

Huntingdon

PE29 3TN.

Role of the Core Strategy

1.13 The Core Strategy will set the framework for how Huntingdonshire will develop up to 2021 and beyond. It
will contain strategic policies to manage growth and guide new development. This paper sets out Huntingdonshire
District Council's initial thinking on what it considers are the key issues for the Core Strategy to address and what
we may need to do as a consequence. We would like to receive your comments on this paper. We understand
that there may be other issues that are important to you which you consider need to be addressed in the Core
Strategy and would be pleased for you to raise them with us.

1.14 Huntingdonshire District Council will be preparing a series of planning documents, collectively known as
the local development framework, to guide growth and change in the district up to at least 2021. The main
components will be:

Core Strategy Development Plan Document

Development Control Policies Development Plan Document
Huntingdon West Area Action Plan

Planning Proposals Development Plan Document

Gypsy and Traveller Sites Development Plan Document

1.15 These will be complemented by Supplementary Planning Documents on specific issues such as developer
contributions to affordable housing and planning obligations as appropriate.

1.16 The Core Strategy will set out the key elements of the planning framework for Huntingdonshire to 2021
and beyond. It will have:

° a vision of how Huntingdonshire will develop to meet the needs of our residents and business communities,
now and in the future



1

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

° strategic objectives for the area to achieve the vision - to help guide and manage the growth at an acceptable
level

o a spatial strategy which will help direct growth to locations where it can be sustainably accommodated and
will identify an area of significant change

° core policies to establish overall development principles and to set the scene for more detailed policies to
be used in assessing proposals for development - planning applications will be considered against the core
policies as well as the detailed ones

° details of how the local development framework will be monitored and how the implementation of the Core
Strategy will be assessed

1.17 1t will not include detailed development control policies or identify specific potential development sites.
These will be dealt with separately as identified above.

1.18 The Core Strategy will provide the local context for considering the long term social, economic, environmental
and resource impacts of development. The key role of the Core Strategy will be to guide the spatial aspirations
of the District Council and other service providers and stakeholders to ensure that the needs of our residents,
businesses and visitors are met and a sustainable future is ensured for Huntingdonshire.

Linkages to other documents

1.19 The spatial vision for Huntingdonshire will be informed by the regional and local context set by other policy
documents including the Regional Spatial Strategy and Huntingdonshire's Community Strategy.

1.20 The proposed changes to the Regional Spatial Strategy sets out the overall spatial vision for the east of
England as:

'By 2021 the East of England will be realising its economic potential and providing a high quality of life for
its people, including by meeting their housing needs in sustainable and inclusive communities. At the same
time it will reduce its impact on climate change and the environment, including through savings in energy
and water use and by strengthening its stock of environmental assets.'

(Modified text of Regional Spatial Strategy incorporating proposed changes, paragraph 2.2, December 2006)

1.21 The Huntingdonshire Community Strategy was produced by the Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnership
and adopted by the Council in 2004. The Community Strategy sets out the long-term vision for the development
of communities in Huntingdonshire as:



1

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

'A place where future generations have a balanced and good quality of life and can enjoy:
° continued economic success;
° opportunities for all; and

° an environment that is protected and improved.'

1.22 The Community Strategy sets out a framework for delivering this vision. It identifies outcomes needed to
achieve the vision, these are:

1.23 Supporting continued economic success

° a stable, buoyant and balanced local economy;

° a balanced housing market; and
° improved and sustainable infrastructure for communities

1.24 Promoting opportunity for all

° a healthy population;

easy and affordable access to services and facilities;
good opportunities for learning;

good cultural and leisure opportunities; and

vibrant, confident and effective communities

1.25 Protecting and improving our environment

° a high quality built and natural environment;

° low crime; and
° low fear of crime

1.26 For each of these outcomes the Community Strategy sets out measures to assess success, headline
targets, short term objectives to achieve the outcomes and priority actions needed. The vision will be delivered
by public, private and voluntary organisations. This Core Strategy will play a key role in delivering the aspects of
the Community Strategy that concern the development and use of land. The Community Strategy will be updated
during the preparation of the Core Strategy and revisions will need to be taken into account at subsequent stages.

Other plans and strategies

The Core Strategy’s vision, objectives and policies seek to address the spatial implications of a wide range of
environmental, social and economic concerns, so that it provides an overall framework for managing the pattern
of change in Huntingdonshire. This ‘spatial planning’ approach demands that a wide range of other plans and
programmes are considered during its production. The most significant influences include: the Cambridgeshire
Local Transport Plan, Housing Strategy for Huntingdonshire, Local Economic Strategy for Huntingdonshire,
emerging Huntingdonshire Environment Strategy, emerging Huntingdonshire Cultural Strategy, 50 Year Wildlife
Vision for Cambridgeshire and Peterborough and a series of visions, action plans and urban design frameworks



Introduction

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

for Huntingdonshire's market towns which contain proposals for the redevelopment and enhancement of selected
areas. These have been produced by the council in consultation with local communities (or, in Ramsey, by the
coalition of local organisations that form the Ramsey Area Partnership).

Analysis of environmental, social and economic issues

In addition to the research that underpins these other documents, the Core Strategy has been informed by a range
of studies being produced by the District Council to support the Local Development Framework. Those of most
relevance to the Core Strategy are listed below, and the completed studies can be viewed on the Council’'s web
site:

Housing Land Availability Assessment (forthcoming 2007)
Employment Land Review (forthcoming 2007)

Urban Capacity Study (2003)

Housing Needs Survey (2003) and Update 2006

New Homes Survey (2003)

Landscape & Townscape Assessment (2004)

Huntingdonshire Design Guide (2004)

Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (2004)

Huntingdonshire Retail Assessment Study (2005) and Update 2007



2

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

2 Vision and Objectives

The need for a vision
2.1 The spatial vision for Huntingdonshire should flow from the visions sets out in the Regional Spatial Strategy

and Huntingdonshire's Community Strategy. The Core Spatial Strategy will provide the spatial expression of these
for the district and will direct future development to help achieve their visions and objectives.

The need to define a vision for Huntingdonshire to guide the overall philosophy of the Core Strategy.

The spatial vision for Huntingdonshire could be:
'Huntingdonshire will continue to provide a good quality of life as a place which offers:

° continued economic success;

° opportunities for everyone to gain access to suitable homes, jobs and services; and
° an attractive environment which is conserved and enhanced.'

Do you consider this an appropriate vision for the district?

Are there other aspects it should incorporate?

Objectives of the Core Strategy
2.2 A series of spatial objectives will be required in the Core Strategy. These will summarise its key policy

directions and help provide a framework for developing appropriate indicators and targets for monitoring purposes.
The objectives will be devised within the context established by the Regional Spatial Strategy's objectives.

To define a series of objectives for the Core Strategy to provide a focus for what it aspires to achieve.



2

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

To minimise the impact on climate change by:

° enabling required development to be accommodated in locations which limit the need to travel whilst
catering for local needs

° promoting developments that conserve natural resources and minimise greenhouse gas emissions

To increase housing opportunities for people by:

° ensuring that the quantity and types of dwellings built meet the requirements of local people

° ensuring that an appropriate proportion of new housing is affordable to those in need
° enabling the specialist housing needs of particular groups to be met in appropriate locations

To realise the economic potential of Huntingdonshire and its residents by:

. facilitating business development in sectors that have potential to meet local employment needs and
limit out-commuting

° enabling business development in rural areas, in locations and on a scale which helps to provide local
jobs, limits commuting and avoids adverse environmental impacts

° strengthening the vitality and viability of Huntingdonshire's town centres as places for shopping and
leisure

To improve the quality of life for local people by:

° providing a framework for securing adequate land and infrastructure to support business and community
needs

° increasing opportunities for pursuing a healthy lifestyle by maintaining and enhancing recreation
opportunities and encouraging walking, cycling and horse riding

To improve and conserve Huntingdonshire's environment by:

° enhancing the distinctive identities of our villages and market towns

° enhancing our characteristic landscapes, habitats and species
° promoting areas of strategic greenspace enhancement

52
10



Vision and Objectives

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

Reasonable alternatives?

2.3 There are an infinite number of objectives that could be proposed for the Core Strategy. However, once it
is adopted the Core Strategy and the Regional Spatial Strategy will form the development plan for the district.
Therefore, it is logical that the objectives of the Core Strategy form a local interpretation of the Regional Spatial
Strategy's objectives.

Do you agree with the suggested objectives?

Are there any additional objectives we should include?

53

11



3

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

3 The overarching issue of sustainable development

3.1 The promotion of a sustainable future is a key responsibility for the Council. It is now a legal requirement
that plans reflect the overarching objective of promoting sustainable development. It should influence all aspects
of the Core Strategy to shape our approaches to managing growth to ensure that the needs of our residential,
business and interest communities are met whilst not compromising the ability of future generations to meet their
own needs.

The requirement to promote sustainable development to ensure that the needs of our residential, business
and interest communities are met whilst not compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own
needs.

3.2 The Core Strategy will provide the local context for considering the long term social, economic, environmental
and resource impacts of development for at least the next 15 years. It will contribute to the promotion of sustainable
communities and provision of opportunities for local residents and businesses to adopt sustainable practices.

Policies will indicate that all development proposals should contribute to the pursuit of sustainable development.

Criteria could be set out to assess how a development proposal will achieve this. These could reflect social,
economic and environmental issues including how the proposal would contribute to minimising the impact
on climate change.

An assessment could be required to accompany any proposal for major development to demonstrate how
these have been met.

Reasonable alternatives?

3.3 None. The promotion of sustainable development is required by national and strategic guidance, and criteria
are necessary to indicate how this objective will be interpreted.

What criteria do you consider most important in assessing how a development proposal will contribute to
sustainable development?

Should those promoting a major development be required to complete an assessment to show how they
have addressed these criteria?

54

12



4

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

4 Spatial strategy

4.1 Huntingdonshire is at the centre of the Cambridge to Peterborough growth area and managing the opportunities
and pressures from growth will be a fundamental issue for the Core Strategy. Our towns, villages and countryside
offer diverse and attractive environments in which to live and work, each having their own distinctive character
and role in the district. Huntingdon and St Neots are major housing, employment and service centres for the
district, with St lves and Ramsey playing similar roles at a smaller scale. The District Council has withessed
considerable growth in the towns and villages during the 1970's, 80's and 90's and regeneration opportunities in
the older estates and in the town centres are now apparent.

4.2 The district's location between Cambridge, Peterborough and Bedford gives rise to both opportunities and
constraints providing competition for employment, retail and leisure facilities. The Core Strategy will be a spatial
representation of the most sustainable options arrived at from the interplay of infrastructure and transport together
with housing, employment and retail requirements. It will be one where a fair proportion of previously developed
land is utilised. The amount and direction of growth will then feed into the proposed Huntingdon West Area Action
Plan (an area of change/ redevelopment) and the Planning Proposals DPD.

Infrastructure

4.3 Significant enhancement is proposed of the transport links between Cambridge and the market towns that
surround it, achieved through the implementation of the County Transport Plan. High quality public transport
services will be developed in the Cambridge-Huntingdon corridor (to include a guided bus route between Cambridge
and St Ives and on street bus priority measures between St lves and Huntingdon) and along the A428 between
Cambridge and St Neots. These measures will be complemented by major road improvements in these corridors,
including a new route for the A14 between Ellington and Fen Drayton. The District Council supports the route
which will pass to the south of Brampton and Godmanchester, improving traffic flows and road safety on this key
strategic route. Removal of the railway viaduct at Huntingdon as part of the scheme will also enable improved
local road access to Huntingdon town centre. The District Council and County Coouncil are also working towards
promoting improvements to the A428 between the A1 and Caxton Gibbet. Delivery of these improvements will
influence the distribution and phasing of residential and employment development.

4.4 Market town transport strategies exist to promote packages of integrated highway, public transport, cycling
and walking improvements in Huntingdon, St Neots, St Ives and Ramsey. A park & ride site will be developed at
St Ives (in association with the proposed guided bus route). Consideration may be given to a second site serving
Huntingdon and Godmanchester. At Yaxley, traffic on the A15 will be relieved through construction of a western
peripheral road at Hampton, joining the A15 south of Yaxley with the Fletton Parkway in the north.

4.5 Improved access will be made from villages to the market towns and Peterborough, with better public and
community transport services and further development of local and long-distance cycle routes. At the same time,
significant improvements in the accessibility of services will be made possible through the increased availability
and use of information technology (such as broadband internet access).

Housing requirements

4.6 The draft Regional Spatial Strategy has confirmed an allocation of 11,200 new houses to be built in
Huntingdonshire for the period 2001 — 2021. The housing numbers allocated to a district should be regarded as
a minimum target to be achieved. Of these 8,500 houses have already been built or committed for the period
2001-2006 (of which 5,350 are in Huntingdon, St Neots, St Ives and Ramsey), see appendix one.This leaves a
balance of 2,700 homes to be found. The thrust of settlement policy set out in the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough

55

{8



4

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

Structure Plan (2003) and the draft Regional Spatial Strategy (December 2006) has shifted towards an urban
focus with greater emphasis on re-using previously developed sites. This stance will need to be followed through
in the Core Strategy.

4.7 PPS3 specifies that local planning authorities should set out their policies and strategies for housing delivery
that will enable continuous delivery of housing for at least 15 years from the date of adoption. It is anticipated that
the Core Strategy will be adopted in mid-2009. To ensure a 15 year supply the strategy would need to consider
housing delivery up to 2024. The draft Regional Spatial Strategy addresses this issue and advises that the annual
average rate of housing required for 2006-2021 should continue to be sought during the early years after 2021.
For Huntingdonshire this means that provision of a further 550 homes per year would be required from 2021 until
2024. To achieve this, land for a further 1650 homes will be required over and above the balance of 2700 homes
to be found as advised by the Regional Spatial Strategy.

Employment requirements

4.8 To support continuing economic growth, the strategy must address the requirement to bring forward sufficient
land of a suitable quality in the right locations to meet expected needs for industrial and commercial development,
taking into account accessibility and sustainable transport needs and provision of essential infrastructure. However,
the scale of employment land needed for the period to 2021 will be the product of a complex series of factors
shaping the demand for new accommodation and supply of new and existing employment land and property. It
is anticipated that the main factors will concern: overall national economic growth; local labour supply and demand
and changing conditions for business competitiveness, most notably the need to reduce CO, emissions and
unsustainable modes of transport for employees and the distribution of goods. Appendix one shows employment
land completions since 2002.

Retail requirements

4.9 The spatial strategy will need to set out the relevant centres in which the search for sites for retailing will
take place together with an indication of the quantity needed in each centre to ensure their continuing viability
and vitality. At present a high proportion of money spent by residents on comparison goods goes to Cambridge,
Peterborough and Bedford rather than being spent in shops in our market towns and villages. The Huntingdonshire
Retail Assessment Study (2005, as updated 2007) suggests a target of 20,000 sq m net additional comparison
floorspace and 3,900 sq m net additional convenience floorspace. This proposed figure allows for a slight increase
in the proportion of expenditure retained locally as a result of more attractive retail opportunities being offered.

4.10 Opportunities for regenerating and strengthening the role of town centres exist and can be achieved by
policies to promote further retail development. Where necessary in planning for growth up to 2021 it may be
appropriate to extend the town centre after exhausting redevelopment sites in the centre.

Spatial planning areas

Identification of areas where development could be focused to promote sustainable opportunities for access
to jobs, services and facilities.

4.11 Huntingdon and St Neots are identified in the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003) as
locations for future growth in the Cambridge sub-area. In spatial planning terms the relationship between market
towns and nearby settlements is an important consideration. The following descriptions reflect the economic and
social relationships between settlements within the district.

56
14



4

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

4.12 Huntingdon area: this includes Huntingdon, Brampton and Godmanchester and had 31,000 residents in
2005. The area is a key driver of the local economy. The Housing Land Availability Assessment (HLAA) recently
completed by the Council identified that this area offers significant opportunities for development. The realignment
of the A14 could have implications for development opportunities, particularly post 2015.

4.13 St Neots area: this includes St Neots and Little Paxton and had a population of 31,200 in 2005. Coupled
with land in Bedfordshire around Wyboston, the area is also a key driver of the local economy. The HLAA recently
completed by the Council identified that this area offers significant opportunities for development.

4.14 St lves: is smaller in scale than Huntingdon and St Neots with a population of just under 16,000 in 2005.
It offers fewer opportunities for sustainable development options. The HLAA identified a limited number of suitable
sites with flooding being a major constraint. However, St Ives is within the prosperous Cambridge sub-region and
will see significant changes in accessibility with the completion of the guided bus route.

4.15 Ramsey area: this includes Ramsey and Bury, but excluding Ramsey Forty Foot, Ramsey Heights, Ramsey
Mereside and Ramsey St Marys, and had a population of around 8,000 in 2005. Major housing growth was
discounted by the Inspector during the 2002 Local Plan alteration due to Ramsey’s poor sustainability. It has
relatively poor transport infrastructure and, despite previous allocations, has limited employment opportunities.

To use the spatial planning areas described above when identifying strategic directions of growth. These
would be used for assessing potential development sites for allocation within the Planning Proposals DPD
or the Huntingdon West AAP.

Reasonable alternatives?

4.16 Strategic growth allocations could be focused only within the four largest towns in the district. However,
the HLAA has identified limited brownfield land availability in some of these settlements. Limiting allocations only
to sites within and around these settlements would limit the opportunity to maximise the re-use of brownfield sites
which are located within the spatial planning areas but outside the market towns.

Do you agree with the approach of considering potential Market Towns in conjunction with the adjoining
settlements identified above solely for the purpose of assessing strategic development allocations?

Settlement hierarchy

417 The settlement hierarchy will provide a framework for managing the scale of new development in different
locations. Its purpose will also be to preserve the character, scale and form of villages and to protect the openness
of the countryside. It will steer most new development towards those larger settlements that offer the best access
to services and facilities (both now and for the foreseeable future). This could help reduce the need to travel, as
well as making good use of existing infrastructure and previously-developed land in urban areas.

57

15



4

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

The need to define an appropriate settlement hierarchy to manage non-allocated growth in different types
of location.

4.18 The Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003) identifies four settlements in Huntingdonshire
that merit Market Town status: St Neots, Huntingdon, St lves and Ramsey. These are designated on the basis of
the range of facilities and employment opportunities they offer compared to other settlements in the district.
Huntingdon, and parts of adjoining neighbouring parishes, provide far more jobs in comparison to the size of its
potential workforce than elsewhere in the district, making it the most sustainable location for any further housing
growth.

4.19 Although Ramsey and Bury clearly supports its designation as a Market Town, the availability of employment
is comparatively poor (although efforts to address this are being made through the Ramsey Area Partnership).
This is reflected in the Structure Plan and draft Regional Spatial Strategy which indicates that the scale of any
new housing development in Ramsey should be relatively small.

4.20 Guidance to assist the identification of Key Service Centres is contained in the Regional Spatial Strategy
(proposed changes, December 2006) and the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan. Key Service
Centres are defined as large villages with a good level of services such as a primary school within the village, a
secondary school within the village or easily accessible by public transport, primary health care facilities, a range
of shops and services that can meet day-to-day needs, local employment opportunities and a frequent public
transport service to higher order settlements. Several of the potential Key Service Centres are closely associated
with potential Market Towns and could offer particularly sustainable opportunities for access to jobs, services and
facilities. Others are more free-standing and further development could help make them more self-contained. The
HLAA showed considerable variation in the number of houses different settlements in this category could
accommodate. The Employment Land Review identified available allocated employment land in Fenstanton,
Yaxley and Sawtry.

The Core Strategy will need to identify a settlement hierarchy for use in determining the scale of non-allocated
development appropriate in different locations.

The hierarchy could:

° identify Huntingdon, St Neots, St Ives and Ramsey and Bury as 'Market Towns'

° identify Brampton, Buckden, Fenstanton, Godmanchester, Kimbolton, Little Paxton, Sawtry, Somersham,
Warboys and Yaxley as 'Key Service Centres'

. list other villages as 'Smaller Settlements'

Reasonable alternatives?

4.21 The hierarchy could be changed in a number of ways to facilitate a wider or tighter distribution of growth.
This was an issue which raised significant responses to consultation on the original submitted Core Strategy (April
2006). Various suggestions have been raised involving more or less different categories within the hierarchy. A

significant alternative is the previously proposed distinction between two categories of Key Centre in an attempt
to distinguish further between additional growth and ease of access to shops, services and employment facilities.

58
16



4

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

4.22 A further alternative is to base the settlement hierarchy on the physical capacity of different settlements to
accommodate growth, taking into account their form, character and land availability, rather than access to services
and facilities. However, this would not ensure that national and regional policies to reduce the need to travel are
being addressed most effectively.

Do you agree with the overall approach taken to the settlement hierarchy?

Do you agree with the identification of Huntingdon, St Neots, St lves and Ramsey and Bury as 'Market
Towns'?

Do you agree with the identification of Brampton, Buckden, Fenstanton, Godmanchester, Kimbolton, Little
Paxton, Sawtry, Somersham, Warboys and Yaxley as 'Key Service Centres'?

Options for growth

4.23 We need to make fundamental choices on whether the district should pursue a very intense urban focus
for new growth or a more dispersed approach; whether priority should always be given to re-use of brownfield
land or whether in some circumstances developing greenfield land with very good access to services and facilities
is preferable. Rather than put forward a particular choice the options are deliberately left wide open to incorporate
a number of possible alternatives.

The need to identify strategic directions of growth to guide where sites will be allocated for development.

4.24 A series of maps follows in this section which indicate possible directions of growth from each of the larger
settlements in the district. These are coded alphabetically and provide an indication of the possible scale of
development that could be accommodated. The maps indicate a wide range of alternatives not all of which will
be needed to achieve the scale of growth required in the Regional Spatial Strategy. They show possible directions
for housing, employment and mixed use development.

4.25 ltis likely that many growth areas will accommodate a mixture of housing and employment uses to help
develop balanced, sustainable communities and provide viable transport choices. However, to best ascertain
people's preferences housing, employment and retail are discussed separately below.

59

17



Spatial strategy

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

Housing options for growth

Huntingdon and St Neots areas

Option 10

Policies could propose that the Huntingdon area should get most of the growth.

Option 11

Policies could propose that the St Neots area should get most of the growth.

Option 12

Policies could propose both areas to grow at a similar rate.

What proportion of growth should be focused in the two main urban areas?

Which of these options would you prefer and why?

Are there any other options which should be considered?

To achieve your chosen option which of the directions of growth shown on the maps would you rather see
developed?

60

18



Spatial strategy

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

Map 4.1 Huntingdon

HunTng oo

H H\ [

Huntingdon Tobal potantisl = 1944 | ©. Development of senall scale
E3% Brownfiald - 37% Greenfield | stag wihin o adjacer o tha

£ Devalopmant of small scals
siten within or acacent 1 the

) crrncmncs SRR ke within or adjacen o the
ramgton Total potertal - B30+ ,J' | Godmanchester - Total palentisl = 660+ I existing buifl up franssok
49%% 51% Geeanfisid |/ | 3% Brownfiakd - FT% Greanfieid E D

e R S

dz Croracs Soprprigid . A sy sensnved | Hursngooneers Dieved Cousrd bceres bo 1027117

61

19



4

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

Map 4.2 St Neots

21 Neods NE. Arrows inabhcans the poramés ovections of growsth.

K. Greanfsld mixed use
; dewelopmeent

L. Developmend of small scale
| Lt Paxton Talal patential = 370+

0% Browrifiekd - 100% Greerfield i .y “‘::: “m‘“""“"‘ L
F uilt up e

L i M. Greenfeh] Emplaymeant
! deselopmaent
K }
o M h M. Greanfald devalopment
.!' & Davelopment of smail scale
Y witecs within or adg@cant 1o the
y buill up Tramesark

A

5t Neots Total polontial = 4360+
4% Brownlield - 95% Greanlield

| Crivees Goprmyil. Al o sededvial | Hurdingoonsting Dol Cotod Boenos Mo 10002230

St Ives and Ramsey

4.26 Strategic guidance indicates that St lves and Ramsey should receive a smaller level of growth. When
considering development in these two locations the following options have been identified.

Strategic directions of growth could allow growth only within the existing built framework in Ramsey and/ or
St Ives.

Strategic directions of growth could allow growth within small-scale extensions to Ramsey and/ or St lves.

62

20



4

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

Which of these options would you prefer and why?

Are there any other options which should be considered?

Which of the directions of growth shown on the maps would you rather see developed?

Map 4.3 St lves

"_1 [ Ivas NE. Ao indicale The podevalis direc i of ot
P Grosnfield mood-wdss
Mevalaprmang
0. Developmes of smail scale
siies within or adjacerd o the
5t hvas Tatal potential = 156 bl iy Framevwork
. & 6% Brownfiedd - 56% Greanfield . _ ksl
davelopmend
L5 e
P n ]
2] Crram Cigrpesghl. &0 g mesrmml . Hurdingsremesrs Dien== Clansl ewees Wo 500700

63

21



4

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

Map 4.4 Ramsey

FJ,[.II'JF e 4! Kam S8y Al Arrows feclicate the pofemiisd direchone of growth

5. Groendeld mixed use
dewsbapirsnt

Teaal poiential = 180 T. Greenfisld housing
449% Broswnfield - 51% Greanfield Dervalopment

U. Brownheld mixed usa
s development

\ W, Develapment of small scale
EREE Wilhin o adjacent 1o the

..;_L v bl up Frarewark

o Corpmen Cuppavigil. Al reghis rrseresd. Hendragdoreheie Danon Counod sossoe Mo 8500350
Key Service Centres

4.27 When considering development in possible Key Service Centres that are not closely linked with a Market
Town the following options have been identified.

Development could be distributed across all Key Service Centres broadly in proportion to their existing size
and level of facilities.

Development could be more limited in those settlements which have recently received high levels of growth.

64

22



Spatial strategy

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

Which of these options would you prefer and why?
Are there any other options which should be considered?

Which of the directions of growth shown on the maps would you rather see developed?

Map 4.5 Fenstanton

Fenstanton ME.Arrcw s indicyde the podevdis! direchioms of prosm!

‘ W. Davelopmenl of small scale

sites within ar adjacent to the
emigling buillug framesork

Fanstanton Total potental = 1204
17% Brownfield - 83% Greenfield

(i) Coriras Capeyragsl. Al Apiis ] e Dareet Counval Boasee Mo, WR00RESED

65

23



Spatial strategy

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

Map 4.6 Sawtry

Sawitry Talal polential = 338+
0% Brownfieid -100% Greanfield

/

(1 Crosn CopamigRl A Aghts reseresd Henlngaoraie Dano Sounsd woes S, 10021320

66

24

disvalapmant adjacent to A1




Spatial strategy

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

Map 4.7 Yaxley

[ ¥axley Tolal polertial = 240% |
| 50% Brownfeld - 50% Greeriaki |

- sam=mSEE

(i o Caapayrighvl. A0 righis Hunbrogaerahiss Dhancl Con e M, 103022352

Employment options for growth
Overall scale

4.28 There are a number of ways in which the overall scale of employment land need can be calculated. One
approach is to project recent trends; the most significant alternative is to take into account the impact of changing
economic, social and environmental conditions.

Option 17

The Core Strategy could plan for a net requirement of 130 ha. This is based on a projection of development
trends over the five years from 2002. It assumes continued relatively high rates of economic growth, no
constraints on the availability of labour and no concessions to climate change.

67

25



4

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

The Core Strategy could plan for a net requirement of 70 ha. This is based on an acknowledgment of
constraints to the availability of labour and the impacts of climate change: the policy, business and
environmental imperatives to site large scale warehouses at multi modal locations and replace older CO,
emitting stock with zero carbon buildings.

Which of these of options would you prefer and why?

Are there any other options which should be considered?

Overall distribution

4.29 There are many ways that the additional employment land could be distributed across the district. We need
to consider how much of the total should be located to follow population growth and how much should be located
in accordance with market demand for locations in the Huntingdon area, the St Neots area and St Ives as opposed
to other areas where a number of allocations remain either undeveloped or not brought forward for development.

Development could be distributed in locations to follow population growth.

Development could follow the market preference for location in the Huntingdon area, the St Neots area and
to a lesser extent St lves.

Which of these options would you prefer and why?

68

26



4

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

Are there any other options which you think we should consider?

To achieve your chosen option which of the directions of growth shown would you rather see developed?

Retail options for growth
Overall scale

4.30 The Retail Assessment Study Update (2007) suggested that the Core Strategy should endeavour to increase
the proportion of available expenditure which is spent locally. One way of encouraging this is to provide a greater
quantity and choice of shops for people to use which has the added benefit of reducing the need to travel further
afield for certain purchases. A target is suggested of 20,000 sq m net of additional comparison retail floorspace
and a further 3,900 sq m net of convenience floorspace in the district for the period 2006-2021. This is based on
the aspiration of a slow, steady increase in the proportion of expenditure being retained locally.

The Core Strategy could plan for a target of 20,000 sq m net additional comparison retail floorspace and
3,900 sq m net additional convenience floorspace.

The Core Strategy could plan for a higher target.

The Core Strategy could plan for a lower target.

Which of these options do you prefer and why?

69

27



4

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

If you prefer a lower or higher target what should it be and why?

Overall distribution

4.31 Atarget of 20,000 sq m net additional comparison floorspace is suggested above. The Retail Assessment
Study identified comparatively strong demand from retailers wishing to open in Huntingdon and an encouraging
level of interest in St Neots which has traditionally been considered less attractive by investors. The distribution
given in the option below was suggested by the Retail Assessment Study. Government guidance dictates that
new retail facilities should be in town centres and edge of centre and out of centre locations only considered where
this cannot be reasonably achieved. The Retail Assessment Study suggested that although the level of quantitative
need for convenience floorspace appears low there may be opportunities for provision based on qualitative grounds
in order to increase the range of facilities available. In particular it noted the need for a discount foodstore in
Huntingdon town centre. Compared with other centres Huntingdon is the higher order centre where pressure for
further retail development is greatest. It also has more opportunities to regenerate and thus strengthen the range
of uses on the back of retail expansion with sites in the town centre and sites beyond the town centre.

Development could follow the market preference resulting in around 12,000 sq m net of comparison retail

growth in Huntingdon, around 6,000 sq m net in St Neots and 2,000 sq m net in other settlements.

Development could be distributed equally between St Neots and Huntingdon and a lesser amount allowed
in St lves and Ramsey

Which of these options would you prefer and why?

Are there any other options which you think we should consider?

70

28



5

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

5 Other strategic issues

A clean, 'green’, attractive place

Areas of strategic greenspace enhancement

Corporate Plan Objectives: 1) to lower carbon emissions, 2) to protect and improve wildlife habitats

Community Strategy Objectives: 1) improve the diversity of our natural environment, 2) improve access to
the countryside, 3) improve the understanding of the countryside and the heritage of the landscape, 4) support
communities in protecting and valuing open spaces and historic sites, 5) improve access to opportunities for
physical and cultural enrichment that promote good health and mental well-being, 6) develop the tourist
product

5.1 Huntingdonshire's countryside needs to respond to changing economic and environmental circumstances.
Improving the biological, visual and recreational value of the countryside brings obvious environmental and social
gains, but can also benefit the local economy through increased visitor spending. It is something that should be
addressed by all proposals within or adjoining the countryside and some particular opportunities for significant
enhancement have been identified.

5.2 These possible areas of ‘strategic greenspace enhancement’ reflect the target areas for habitat creation
identified in the Structure Plan and the Biodiversity Partnership for Cambridgeshire and Peterborough’s 50 Year
Wildlife Vision. They include:

° the Great Fen Project area (wetland habitat creation)

° the Fen Edge Woodland (woodland and hedgerow creation)

° the Grafham — Brampton Woodlands (woodland and hedgerow creation)

° the Ouse Valley (wet grassland and hay meadows creation)

° the South Cambridgeshire Boulder Clay Woodlands (woodland and hedgerow creation)

The need to identify areas of 'strategic greenspace enhancement' and to promote environmental, economic
and social gains within these areas.

5.3 Focusing countryside enhancement efforts on these areas will give maximum scope for consolidating and
linking important habitats, and enable complementary access improvements to be pursued. Within the defined
areas, it will be important to ensure that development proposals do not conflict with this vision and, when

development does occur, that the design, landscaping and any community benefits contribute to its realisation.

71
29



5

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

Policies will define areas of Strategic Greenspace Enhancement and identify green corridors connecting
them and indicate how development proposals could contribute to improving their biodiversity, landscape
and recreational value.

Reasonable alternatives?

5.4 None. The identification of areas for large-scale habitat enhancement is required by strategic guidance,
while ensuring that development proposals contribute positively to its achievement is necessary if the objective
is to be achieved.

Energy Use

Corporate Plan Objective: to lower carbon emissions

Community Strategy Objectives: 1) increase sources of renewable energy, 2) promote a more sustainable
use of natural resources

5.5 The Governmentis committed to a 20% reduction in CO, emissions (over 1990 levels) by 2010, and a 60%
reduction by 2050. The design and construction of new development can make an important contribution to
meeting this objective, both in terms of using energy efficiently and by making appropriate use of renewable energy
technology. In this context, it is appropriate to ask that all development schemes incorporate measures to maximise
energy efficiency, so far as scheme viability and proven available technology permit.

The need to reduce CO,emissions

5.6 National planning policy allows local authorities to include policies in local development documents that
require a percentage of energy to be used in new residential, commercial or industrial developments to come
from on-site renewable energy developments.

Policies will promote energy efficiency and will set a requirement for the percentage of energy to come from
on-site renewable energy developments

Reasonable alternatives?

5.7 None. This approach is required by regional and national policy and guidance.

12
30



5

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

5.8 The draft Regional Spatial Strategy sets out a requirement for 10% of energy to be produced from on-site
renewable energy sources.

Should the plan require 10% of energy requirements to be met by on-site renewable energy sources or
should a higher target be required? If a higher target should be required what should this target be?

5.9 Asize threshold needs to be set to identify which developments the requirement for on-site renewable energy
will be required. The draft Regional Spatial Strategy sets a threshold of 50 dwellings or 1,000m2. However a lower
threshold of 10 dwellings or 500m? would increase the number of schemes which would utilise renewable energy
technologies and would increase the contribution made to reducing CO, emissions.

What size threshold should be used to determine whether on-site renewable energy technologies will be
required?

Housing that meets local needs

Scale of growth

Corporate Plan Objective: to ensure an appropriate supply of new housing

Community Strategy Objectives: 1) ensure the availability of a range of decent housing to meet local needs,
2) realise the benefits to economic, social and environmental well being from housing and employment
development

5.10 To encourage the development of sustainable communities within Huntingdonshire policies need to allow
for a variable scale of residential development in settlements of different types in line with the settlement hierarchy.
This will promote the greatest levels of development in locations offering the most sustainable choices for future
residents.

To identify the appropriate scale of housing permissible on unallocated sites to ensure development is
concentrated in sustainable locations.

5.11 Avariable scale of residential development in accordance with the settlement hierarchy could be promoted
to encourage the development of sustainable communities within Huntingdonshire.

73

31



5

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

Policies will define the scale of housing development of different types. This could be defined as:

Major development: 60 or more dwellings

Moderate development: 10-59 dwellings

Minor development: up to 9 dwellings

Residential infilling: development of a small site within the built-up framework or defined limits of a
settlement by up to three dwellings.

Reasonable alternatives?

5.12 In the previously submitted Core Strategy just three categories of housing development were proposed:
major - 10 or more dwellings, minor - up to 9 and infill up to 3. This could be simpler to interpret, but allows less
flexibility. A significant number of representations opined that the major category was too broad and the minor
category too restrictive. However, the definitions of each category could be changed in many different permutations.

Do you agree with the four categories suggested for scale of housing growth?

Should any other categories be considered and if so, what should these be?

Location of housing growth

Corporate Plan Objective: to ensure an appropriate supply of new housing

Community Strategy Objectives: 1) ensure the availability of a range of decent housing to meet local needs,
2) realise the benefits to economic, social and environmental well being from housing and employment
development

5.13 To ensure the promotion of sustainable communities the scale of development permitted should reflect the
level of access to shops, services and employment opportunities available in a location. Thus, locations with best
access such as Market Towns would be permitted larger scale developments than Smaller Settlements which,
by virtue of their more limited services, offer a less sustainable residential environment for most people and hence
would be less appropriate for substantial numbers of new dwellings. This would only be applied to consideration
of sites that are not allocated in the Development Proposals DPD or the Huntingdon West AAP.

74

32



5

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

Policies need to define the location of developments of differing scales. This could be that housing development
on unallocated sites could be limited to the following:

within the defined limits of Market Towns: major, moderate and minor housing development, and
residential infilling

within the defined limits of Key Service Centres: moderate and minor housing development and residential
infilling

within the built-up framework of Smaller Settlements: residential infilling

within the countryside: limited and specific forms of housing development with an essential need to be
in the countryside

Reasonable alternatives?

5.14 The previously submitted Core Strategy proposed two categories of Key Centre and allowed for major
development proposals in the larger of these. This made no distinction between the scale of development
permissible in Market Towns and the six largest Key Centres. A greater amount of development could be permitted
in Key Service Centres by allowing major housing schemes and in Smaller Settlements by allowing minor housing
schemes in some or all of them. Either approach would lead to a more dispersed form of development contrary
to strategic policies which require most new housing to be located in larger settlements. There is no evidence that
greater dispersal would have a significant effect in retaining village facilities, and it would be likely to increase the
need to travel. Encouragement of greater levels of development in the countryside would be contrary to national
guidance.

Do you agree with the level of development permissible in:

Qoo

Market Towns

Key Service Centres
Smaller Settlements
the Countryside?

Should minor development proposals of up to 9 dwellings be permitted in Smaller Settlements where it can
be demonstrated that the settlement concerned offers at least a basic range of services and public transport
appropriate to the form of the housing to be provided and it secures the most sustainable solution for the

site?

Are there any other options that should be considered?

75
33



5

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

Affordable housing

Corporate Plan Objectives: 1) to ensure an appropriate supply of new housing, 2) to enable the provision of
affordable housing, 3) to achieve a low level of homelessness

Community Strategy Objectives: 1) ensure the availability of a range of decent housing to meet local needs,
2) realise the benefits to economic, social and environmental well being from housing and employment
development

5.15 It has become increasingly difficult for local people on low to modest incomes to gain access to suitable
housing. A growing gap between average earnings and housing costs, a limited supply of new affordable properties
and the loss of existing social housing through ‘right to buy’ / 'right to acquire’ provisions have all contributed to
this problem. The planning system has a key role to play in making more affordable properties available, through
securing contributions from market housing schemes and by enabling rural ‘exceptions’ sites to come forward. It
is necessary to define the scope of what constitutes ‘affordable housing’ in order to develop policies specifying
where and when its provision will be required.

The need to set target(s) and thresholds for affordable housing that reflects local circumstances.

5.16 PPS3 sets out up to date definitions of affordable housing, distinguishing between social rented and
intermediate housing tenures. It acknowledges that to be deemed 'affordable’ housing must be made available
at a cost low enough for eligible households to afford when compared to local incomes and house prices. It
specifies that low cost homes for sale can contribute towards the supply of intermediate housing but specifically
excludes low cost market housing from the definition of affordable housing.

5.17 Housing Needs Surveys in the district have shown a significant demand for affordable housing, far exceeding
that likely to be built. Thus, it is important to ensure that provision caters for priority needs. The Housing Needs
Surveys have advised that a district-wide target should be set to enable the Council to respond to its responsibility
at a district-wide level in order to meet need where it can best do so. A Strategic Housing Market Assessment is
currently being undertaken and outcomes will be taken into account in preparing later stages of the Core Strategy
as appropriate.

Policies will set a target of 40% of all housing on eligible sites throughout the district to be provided as
‘affordable housing'.

Reasonable alternatives?

76

34



5

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

5.18 Targets could be set at 40% within the Cambridge sub-region and 30% within the rest of the district of the
total number of dwellings on eligible developments. The average target of 35% included in the Regional Spatial
Strategy could be used but this is an average for the region and within Huntingdonshire the need for affordable
homes is greater than elsewhere in the region. A further variation would be to increase the thresholds to 50% for
the Cambridge sub-region and 40% elsewhere. This would bring Huntingdonshire in line with the targets sought
in South Cambridgeshire and Cambridge City and have the advantage of promoting a consistent approach
throughout the wider area. However, the housing market in Huntingdonshire differs from that in South
Cambridgeshire and Cambridge City and this approach would not reflect the variation in house and land prices.

Do you agree that a target should be set of seeking 40% of all housing on eligible sites throughout the district
to be provided as 'affordable housing'?

5.19 PPS3 sets a national indicative minimum site size threshold of 15 dwellings. Policies will need to set
thresholds to assess whether sites should be eligible for affordable housing requirements. In determining these
it should be borne in mind that the majority of development will be directed to Market Towns, followed by Key
Service Centres. The higher the threshold is set the lower the number of sites where affordable housing can be
required. However, the need for affordable housing has to be balanced with the viability of its provision.

Thresholds could be set only requiring the provision of affordable housing on sites for 15 or more houses
wherever they are located.

Thresholds could be set requiring the provision of affordable housing on sites categorised as major or
moderate development wherever they are located.

Reasonable alternatives?

5.20 Many permutations could be developed of site size threshold and different types of location. In particular,
it may be appropriate to relate the thresholds for seeking affordable housing to the scale of development permissible
in different categories within the settlement hierarchy. Option 23 above adheres strictly to PPS3 guidance with
no recognition of local circumstances. Option 24 attempts to respond to the high level of local need for affordable
housing and the concentration of housing development in Market Towns and Key Service Centres as the only
locations where it is suggested that developments of 10 or more houses will be permitted.

Which option do you prefer and why?

77

35



5

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

5.21 PPS3 also states that lower thresholds can be set where viable and practicable, including in rural areas.
These are in addition to 'rural exceptions' sites allowed solely for affordable housing in small rural communities.

Policies could set a threshold for seeking affordable housing on development sites of less than 15 houses
in Smaller Settlements.

Reasonable alternatives?

5.22 The previously submitted Core Strategy suggested a minimum site size threshold of 3 dwellings to try to
generate provision of some affordable housing on infill sites within Smaller Settlements. A number of concerns
were expressed over the viability and management implications of providing affordable housing at such a low
threshold.

Do you think a threshold should be included for seeking affordable housing on sites of less than 15 houses
in Smaller Settlements? If so, what should be the minimum site site eligible for seeking affordable housing?

Do you think some other combination of targets and thresholds more appropriate? If so, please suggest what
it should be.

Rural exceptions housing

Corporate Plan Objectives: 1) to ensure an appropriate supply of new housing, 2) to enable the provision of
affordable housing, 3) to achieve a low level of homelessness

Community Strategy Objectives: 1) ensure the availability of a range of decent housing to meet local needs,
2) realise the benefits to economic, social and environmental well being from housing and employment
development

5.23 House prices in many of our villages are unaffordable to many local people leading to significant demand
in some for provision of affordable housing to prevent people having to move away or to enable those with local
connections to return.

/8

36



5

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

The need to provide affordable housing in Smaller Settlements to meet local needs.

5.24 Although the suggested settlement hierarchy steers most new housing towards the Market Towns and Key
Service Centres, it is important to have a mechanism for addressing affordable housing needs that arise within
the district’s rural areas. Exceptions could be made to the normal limits on development in such locations just for
affordable housing for local people. It is important that occupiers of the new properties have access to at least a
basic level of facilities appropriate to their needs to help reduce the need to travel, for instance a food shop and
also a primary school where the houses will be occupied by families.

Policies will set out criteria to assess proposals in locations or on a scale that would not otherwise be
acceptable where the development is solely to provide affordable housing to meet local needs.

Reasonable alternatives?

5.25 No allowance could be made for 'rural exception' sites, but this would not enable identified needs for
affordable housing in rural areas to be addressed.

5.26 Exception sites could be allowed at all rural settlements, regardless of the level of facilities available within
them. However, this would mean that some residents of the new properties would not have easy access to a basic
level of services and facilities, increasing their need to travel (and contrary to the need to promote a more
‘sustainable’ pattern of development).

Should the provision of affordable housing be allowed in locations and on a scale that would not otherwise
be permitted for general housing where it is solely to provide for local needs?

Should 'rural exceptions' housing be concentrated in settlements with at least a basic level of services or
should it be encouraged wherever there is need?

Should sites for 'rural exception' housing be allocated in the Planning Proposals DPD?

79

37



5

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

Access to services and transport

Infrastructure requirements

Corporate Plan Objectives: 1) to support more opportunities for residents to walk, cycle and use public
transport, 2) to make town centres and key settlements accessible, 3) to enable residents to take an active
part in their communities, 4) improve access to and the provision of services in rural areas

Community Strategy Obijectives: realise the benefits to economic, social and environmental well being from
housing and employment development

5.27 Development can place additional demands upon physical infrastructure and social facilities, as well as
having impacts upon the environment. In many cases planning obligations will be required, so that provision is
made for the necessary improvements to services and facilities, or to secure compensatory provision for any loss
or damage created (e.g. a loss of open space). Obligations may also be necessary for wider planning objectives
to be secured — in particular, the provision of affordable and key worker housing where this is justified.

The need to ensure appropriate, timely provision of any infrastructure requirements associated with new
development.

5.28 The detailed framework for calculating and negotiating obligations will be set out in separate Supplementary
Planning Documents, which will be updated on a regular basis. Huntingdonshire forms part of a wider growth
area, and some of the items for which contributions will be required may be strategic in nature (such as strategic
open space). The formulae will allow for contributions from individual developments to be pooled where appropriate,
but in all such cases the nature and scale of contributions sought will be related to the size of scheme and the
extent to which it places additional demands upon the area.

Policies will require development proposals to contribute towards the cost of providing infrastructure, and of
meeting social and environmental requirements, where this is necessary to make a scheme acceptable in
planning terms.

Criteria will be proposed to allow assessment of the scale and nature of development proposals where
contributions are likely to be required.

Reasonable alternatives?

5.29 None. Existing national guidance (Circular 5/2005) requires development plans to set out policies indicating
the circumstances in which planning obligations may be sought and indicates that formulae and standard charges
may be used where appropriate.

80

38



5

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

What criteria should be used to determine if contributions are necessary?

A strong, diverse economy

Re-using military sites

Corporate Plan Objectives: 1) to encourage a strong business community which supports new enterprise,
2) to support town centres to be economically viable and vibrant, 3) to encourage the provision of a wide
range of jobs appropriate for existing and future residents, 4) to promote development opportunities in and
around the market towns

Community Strategy Objectives: 1) maintain business confidence to increase investment which creates
opportunities to work locally and reduces out commuting, 2) ensure an appropriate provision of land for
business, 3) development and promote the market towns, 4) develop the rural economy, especially the
Ramsey area, 5) realise the benefits to economic, social and environmental well being from housing and
employment development

5.30 The most appropriate future use of redundant military sites is expected to be a significant issue in
Huntingdonshire with large areas of land potentially becoming available for re-use during the lifetime of the Core
Strategy. The Panel Report into the Examination in Public of the Regional Spatial Strategy considered
representations made on Alconbury airfield suggesting mixed use development of warehousing and 3,000 houses
but concluded that 'the solution for Alconbury needs to emerge from full consideration of all the relevant issues
and should be reflected in the first review of the RSS'. Indeed, Alconbury Airfield is one of many sites put forward
for consideration for major development that the Panel recommended should be re-considered at the first review
of the RSS.” As a result of this RAF Alconbury is not identified as a strategic site in the RSS (Proposed changes,
December 2006).

5.31 New employment uses have recently been established on part of RAF Upwood with other areas still
potentially available for development. Significant redevelopment for military use is anticipated at RAF Wyton,
however, the actual airfield part of the base is likely to become redundant. The site is being considered for possible
relocation by Marshalls but no decision is expected from them until 2008. It is also possible that RAF Brampton
may be surplus to military requirements after 2011.

The need to identify the most appropriate future use of military sites which are, or become, redundant.

i East of England Plan December 2004, Examination in Public, Report of the Panel Volume 1, page 66, June
2006

81
39



5

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

5.32 Earlier consultation showed no clear preference among local people for Alconbury's future use. Due to its
relatively poor sustainability and transport links large scale housing growth has been ruled out at RAF Upwood

so alternatives are needed. Options could include employment uses, leisure or restoring some of it to countryside.
RAF Brampton is much more sustainably located and may have potential for significant mixed use redevelopment.

Policies could set out the strategic approach to re-use of military sites and include criteria against which to
assess potential suitability of different types of use.

The Core Strategy could state that due to the potential scale of development that could be accommodated
consideration of the future of Alconbury Airfield should await consideration at the first review of the Regional
Spatial Strategy.

What uses would you like to see RAF Upwood put to?

Should the future of Alconbury Airfield await consideration at the first review of the Regional Spatial Strategy
?

Disregarding the potential timing of any redevelopment, what uses would you like to see Alconbury Airfield
put to?

What uses would you like to see the airfield part of RAF Wyton put to?

If it becomes available, what uses would you like to see RAF Brampton put to?

82
40



6

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

6 Glossary

Adoption
The point at which the final agreed version of a document comes fully into use.

Affordable Housing

Housing available at a significant discount below market levels so as to be affordable to householders who cannot
either rent or purchase property that meets their needs on the open market. It can include social-rented housing
and intermediate housing.

Amenity
A positive element or elements that contribute to the overall character or enjoyment of an area. For example, open
land, trees, historic buildings and the inter-relationship between them, or less tangible factors such as tranquility.

Annual Monitoring Report (AMR)
Document produced each year to report on progress in producing the Local Development Framework and
implementing its policies.

Areas of Strategic Greenspace Enhancement
Areas which have been identified as having opportunities to expand and create strategic greenspace.

Biodiversity
The whole variety of life on earth. It includes all species of plants and animals, their genetic variation and the
ecosystems of which they are a part.

Brownfield

Previously developed land (PDL). In the sequential approach this is preferable to greenfield land.
Previously-developed land is that which is or was occupied by a permanent structure (excluding agricultural or
forestry buildings), and associated fixed surface infrastructure. The definition includes the curtilage of the
development. Previously-developed land may occur in both built-up and rural settings. A precise definition is
included in Planning Policy Statement 3 ‘Housing'.

Built-up Framework

Excludes buildings that are clearly detached from the main body of the settlement, and gardens and other
undeveloped land within the curtilage of buildings at the edge of the settlement, especially where those gardens
relate more to the surrounding countryside than they do to the built-up parts of the settlement.

Community Infrastructure
Facilities available for use by the community. Examples include village halls, doctors’ surgeries, pubs, churches
and children play areas. It may also include areas of informal open space and sports facilities.

Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO)
The power given to the Local Authority to acquire land for redevelopment which may include development by
private developers.

Conservation Area

A designated area of special architectural and/or historical interest, the character or appearance of which it is
desirable to preserve or enhance. It is a recognition of the value of a group of buildings and their surroundings
and the need to protect not just individual buildings but the character of the area as a whole.

The Core Strategy

83

41



6

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

This document which is a Development Plan Document containing the overall vision, objectives and policies for
managing development in Huntingdonshire.

County Structure Plan
An existing document containing strategic planning policies and proposals for the county. Under the new system
it will be phased out and replaced by policies in the Regional Spatial Strategy and Development Plan Documents.

Curtilage
The area occupied by a property and land closely associated with that property. E.g. in terms of a house and
garden, the garden forms the curtilage of the property.

Development Plan
The documents which together provide the main point of reference when considering planning proposals. Under
the new system the Development Plan includes the Regional Spatial Strategy and Development Plan Documents.

Development Plan Documents
A document containing local planning policies or proposals which form part of the Development Plan, which has
been subject to independent examination.

European Sites
Consist of Special Protection Areas (SPAs), Special Areas of Conservation (SACs) and sites on draft lists for
protection as outlined in Regulation 10 of the Habitats Regulations 1994.

Examination
Independent inquiry into the soundness of a draft Development Plan Document or Draft Statement of Community
Involvement, chaired by an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State, whose recommendations are binding.

Greenfield
Land which has not been developed before. Applies to most sites outside built-up area boundaries.

Habitat
The natural home or environment of a plant or animal.

Housing Needs Assessment

An assessment of housing needs in the local area. This assessment plays a crucial role in underpinning the
planning policies relating to affordable housing. In addition, the information on local needs is required to determine
the location of such housing and guide new investment.

Infrastructure
A collective term for services such as roads, electricity, sewerage, water, education and health facilities.

Issues and Options preliminary consultation document

This is the first stage in the production of development plan documents. The Council brings possible issues and
options for the District into the public domain, in order to generate responses to aid the development of the
‘Preferred Options’ development documents.

Key Workers
Essential public sector workers such as nurses, teachers and social workers.

Landscape Character Assessment
An assessment to identify different landscape areas which have a distinct character based on a recognisable
pattern of elements, including combinations of geology, landform, soils, vegetation, land use and human settlement.

84
42



6

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

Local Development Document
The collective term for Development Plan Documents, the Proposals Map, Supplementary Planning Documents
and the Statement of Community Involvement.

Local Development Framework
The collection of documents to be produced by Huntingdonshire District Council that will provide the new planning
policy framework for the district.

Local Development Scheme
Sets out the Council's programme for preparing and reviewing statutory planning documents.

Local Strategic Partnership
A group of public, private, voluntary and community organisations and individuals that is responsible for preparing
the Community Strategy.

Major development
The creation of 10 of more dwellings within one site.

Material consideration
Factors that may be taken into account when making planning decisions.

Minor development
The creation of up to 9 dwellings on one site.

Mitigation measures
These are measures requested/ carried out in order to limit the damage by a particular development/ activity.

ODPM - Office of the Deputy Prime Minister
The Government department responsible for planning and the production of planning guidance.

Open Space and Recreational Land

Open space within settlements includes parks, village greens, play areas, sports pitches, undeveloped plots,
semi-natural areas and substantial private gardens. Outside built-up areas this includes parks, sports pitches and
allotments.

Planning Policy Guidance Notes (PPG)/ Planning Policy Statements (PPS)
Central Government produce Planning Policy Guidance Notes, to be replaced by Planning Policy Statements
which direct planning in the country.

Preferred Options
Public consultation on the intended content of a Development Plan Document, prior to the DPD itself being drafted.
It is a statutory stage of the Local Development Framework preparation for the District.

Previously Developed Land (PDL)
(See Brownfield.)

Regional Spatial Strategies (RSS)
Plan covering the East of England as a whole, and setting out strategic policies and proposals for managing
land-use change.

Registered Social Landlords
These are independent housing organisations registered with the Housing Corporation under the Housing Act
1996. Most are housing associations, but there are also trusts, co-operatives and companies.

85
43



6

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

Residential infilling
The development of a small site within the built-up framework or defined limits of a settlement by up to 3 dwellings.

Rural Exception Site
Sites solely for the development of affordable housing on land within or adjoining existing small rural communities,
which would not otherwise be released for general market housing.

Sequential Approach

A planning principle that seeks to identify, allocate or develop certain types or locations of land before others. For
example, brownfield sites before greenfield sites, or town centre retail sites before out-of-centre sites. In terms of
employment a sequential approach would favour an employment use over mixed use and mixed use over
non-employment uses.

Settlement Hierarchy
Settlements are categorised in a hierarchy based on the range of services, facilities and employment opportunities
in the settlement, access to education and non-car access to higher-order centres.

Social rented

Social Rented Housing is housing available to rent at below market levels. Lower rents are possible because the
Government subsidises local authorities and registered social landlords in order to meet local affordable housing
needs.

Spatial Planning

Spatial planning goes beyond traditional land use planning. It brings together and integrates policies for the
development and use of land with other policies and programmes which influence the nature of places and how
they function. This will include policies which can impact on land use, for example, by influencing the demands
on or needs for development, but which are not capable of being delivered solely or mainly through the granting
of planning permission and may be delivered through other means.

Stakeholders
Groups, individuals or organisations which may be affected by or have a key interest in a development proposal
or planning policy. They may often be experts in their field or represent the views of many people.

Statement of Community Involvement
Document setting out the Council's approach to involving the community in preparing planning documents and
making significant development control decisions.

Statement of Compliance

A report or statement issued by the local planning authority explaining how they have complied with the Town
and Country Planning Regulations 2004 and their Statement of Community Involvement during consultation on
Local Development Documents.

Statutory Development Plan
The Development Plan for an area which has been taken to statutory adoption. In other words, it has been through
all the formal stages and has been approved by the relevant Government office and adopted by the Council.

Statutory Organisations
Organisations the Local Authority has to consult with at consultation stages of the Local Development Framework.

Strategic Greenspace
These are areas of greenspace that serve a wider population than just the District, for example Paxton Pits, The
Great Fen and Hinchingbrooke Country Park.

86

44



6

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

Submission
Point at which a draft Development Plan Document (or the draft Statement of Community Involvement) is published
for consultation. At the same time it is submitted to the Secretary of State in advance of its examination.

Supplementary Planning Guidance
Provides additional guidance on the interpretation or application of policies and proposals in the Local Plan or
Structure Plan. Under the new system this will be phased out and replaced by Supplementary Planning Documents.

Supplementary Planning Documents
Provides additional guidance on the interpretation or application of policies and proposals in a Development Plan
Document.

Sustainable Development

In broad terms this means development that meets the needs of the present without compromising the ability of
future generations to meet their own needs. The Government has set out five guiding principles for sustainable
development in its strategy “Securing the future - UK Government strategy for sustainable development’. The five
guiding principles, to be achieved simultaneously, are: Living within environmental limits; Ensuring a strong healthy
and just society; Achieving a sustainable economy; Promoting good governance; and Using sound science
responsibly.

Sustainability Appraisal (SA)/ Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA)

The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires Local Development Documents to be prepared with
a view to contributing to the achievement of sustainable development. Sustainability appraisal is a systematic
appraisal process. The purpose of sustainability appraisal is to appraise the social, environmental and economic
effects of the strategies and policies in a Local Development Document from the outset of the preparation process.
This will ensure that decisions are made that accord with sustainable principles.

Tenure
Refers to the way in which a property is held e.g. freehold, leasehold, shared equity or rented.

Tests of Soundness

These are tests to ensure that the document produced is sound. For further guidance please refer to 'Development
Plans Examination - A Guide to the Process of Assessing the Soundness of Development Plan Documents'
produced by the Planning Inspectorate (2005).

Use Class Orders
Planning regulations outlining a schedule of uses to which a given premises or building can be put. Some changes
of use require planning permission.

Vitality and Viability
In terms of retailing, vitality is the capacity of a centre to grow or to develop its level of commercial activity. Viability
is the capacity of a centre to achieve the commercial success necessary to sustain the existence of the centre.

Windfall site

A previously developed site not specifically allocated for development in a development plan, but which unexpectedly
becomes available for development during the lifetime of a plan. Most "windfalls" are referred to in a housing
context.

87

45



Appendix One

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

7 Appendix One

Housing Completions and Commitments

Settlements

Completions 2001-2006

Commitments 2001-2006

Market towns

Huntingdon* 509 1655
Ramsey and Bury 261 196
St Ives 118 308
St Neots 715 1591
Key Service Centres

Brampton 31 49
Fenstanton 145 19
Godmanchester 73 243
Little Paxton 85 560
Sawtry 15 23
Yaxley 404 416
Buckden 77 34
Kimbolton 3 7
Somersham 10 40
Warboys 49 43
Total 2495 5184
Rural Areas 410 476
Total 2905 5660

Progress towards Regional Spatial Strategy (RSS) housing requirements, as at 31.3.2006

*includes developments technically in The Stukeleys parish at Hinchingbrooke and Northbridge

88

46




Employment Land Completions

New Employment Land Completions Since 2002

Appendix One

Huntingdonshire District Council | Core Strategy 2007 - Issues and Options

Market Areas Light Industrial | Offices Warehousing Total Available
Central Hunts:
Huntingdon 8.78 ha (23,383 |5.5ha (16,880sq | 12.14 ha (35,537 | 26.4 ha 15 ha
sq m) m) sq m)
St Ives 0.35ha(1,649sq | 1.9 ha (7,703 sq | Nil 2.25 ha 12 ha
m) m)
Rural Nil Nil 4.07 ha (9,300 sq | 4.07 ha -
m)
South Hunts:
St Neots 2.8ha (10,546 sq | 1.68 ha (4,276 sq | 5.7 ha (23,253 sq | 10.2 ha 13.4 ha
m) m) m)
Kimbolton 1.72ha (6,223 sq | Nil 0.86 ha (3,110 sq | 2.58 ha 1.6 ha
m) m)
North Hunts:
Alwalton Nil 1.68 ha (5,054 sq | Nil 1.68 ha -
m)
Sawtry 4.39 ha (18,560 | Nil Nil 4.39 ha 2.5 ha
sqm)
Total 18.04 ha (60,361 | 10.76 ha (33,913 | 22.77 ha (71,200 | 51.6 ha
sq m) sq m) sq m)
Warboys 0.9 ha
Yaxley 14 ha*
Somersham Negligible 2.4 ha*
Ramsey 16.9 ha*
Earith 0.5 ha
Spaldwick 0.8 ha*
TOTAL 80 ha
*unlikely to come forward | -34 ha
Total available | 46 ha

89

47




This page is intentionally left blank

90



Development Control Policies
Development Plan Document -
Issues and Options

Huntingdonshire District Council

91



Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

Introduction 3
A clean 'green' attractive place 5
Housing that meets local need 23
Safe, active and inclusive communities 29
Healthy living 33
B  Access to services and transport 35
A strong, diverse economy 39
B Glossary 48

92



1

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

1 Introduction

1.1 The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 has introduced new types of plan for shaping and guiding
development, and new procedures for preparing them. The Local Development Framework (LDF) will replace the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan in setting out planning policies and proposals for the area. The LDF will comprise a
number of documents to be produced over a period of time.

1.2 The emerging Core Strategy Development Plan Document (DPD) will set out the spatial vision, spatial
objectives and core policies for the district and all other development plan documents must be in conformity with
it. The emerging Core Strategy draws on strategies produced by the local authority and other organisations that
have implications for the development of land.

1.3 This Development Control Policies DPD will set out local policies for managing development in
Huntingdonshire. The policies in this document will be used to assessed and determine applications for development
in the district. It is therefore important that policies in the Development Control DPD contribute towards the
achievement of the Council's wide aims and objectives, including those set out in the Council's Corporate Plan
Growing Success and in the Huntingdonshire Community Strategy, as well as being in conformity with the emerging
Core Strategy.

1.4 The Huntingdonshire Community Strategy was produced by the Huntingdonshire Strategic Partnership and
adopted by the Council in 2004. It sets out the long-term vision for the development of communities in
Huntingdonshire and a framework for delivery of this vision. The Huntingdonshire Community Strategy was
produced following extensive consultation.

1.5 Growing Success, the Council's Corporate Plan, is our plan of how we will achieve our part of the Community
Strategy. It is based on detailed research and importantly what our communities have told us. Growing Success
identifies the aims we will be working towards as a Council.

1.6 The aims set outin Growing Success and the outcomes identified in the Huntingdonshire Community Strategy
represent what people have told us they want. The issues and options in this report therefore aim to contribute
towards the achievement of these aims and outcomes and have been linked to the more detailed objectives
contained in each of these documents.

1.7 Each chapter of this Issues and Options report relates to one of the six community aims set out in Growing
Success;

° A clean, 'green' and attractive place

o Housing that meets local need

Safe, active and inclusive communities
Healthy living

Access to services and transport

A strong, diverse economy

1.8 Within each chapter there are issues relating to these aims and options for addressing these issues. The
report aims to identify all relevant issues and reasonable options for addressing these. However if you feel there
are issues and/ or options which have not been included then we would like to hear from you.

1.9 This Issues and Options report forms the first stage in the production of the document. This stage will be
followed by:

° Public consultation on preferred options (November 2007)

93

3



1

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

Submission of plan to the Secretary of State (July 2008)
Consultation on the Submission plan (July 2008)
Independent examination - Hearing (February 2009)
Adoption (September 2009)

1.10 Theissues and options contained in this paper have already been subject to extensive consultation as they
were originally included in the Core Strategy which was submitted to the Secretary of State in April 2006 and
subsequently withdrawn in April 2007.

1.11 The issues in this paper should be specific to Huntingdonshire and should not repeat national guidance,
therefore where an issue is adequately dealt with by national guidance it has not been included in this report.

Sustainability Appraisal and Appropriate Assessment

1.12 Sustainability Appraisal is a systematic process which is carried out during the production of Development
Plan Documents to ensure that policies and proposals contribute towards relevant environmental, social and
economic objectives. Sustainability Appraisal incorporates the 'Strategic Environmental Assessment' (SEA)
required as a result of the European Directive 2001/42/EC for plans and programmes that are likely to have a
significant effect upon the environment.

1.13 The Council has produced an Initial Sustainability Appraisal of the options included in this issues and
options report. This Initial Sustainability Appraisal accompanies the issues and options report and will assist the
consultation process and test and refine any policies and proposals.

1.14 In addition to Sustainability Appraisal, amendments made to the UK Conservation (Habitats and etc)
Regulations 2006 require an Appropriate Assessment under Article 6(3) and (4) of the Habitat Directive 92/43/EEC
for all land use plans likely to have a significant effect on a European site. To satisfy the requirements, Appropriate
Assessment should be undertaken before adoption of a DPD. European sites consist of Special Conservation
(SACs), Special Protection Areas (SPAs) and Offshore Marine Sites (OMS). The Development Control Policies
DPD contains general policies rather than site specific proposals, therefore the Council consider it is not possible
to assess the implications of these policies on specific international sites, this would need to be done when dealing
with site specific proposals.

Do you agree that Appropriate Assessment is not relevant to this DPD?

How to get involved

1.15 It is important that we get your views on the issues and options contained in this report. Copies of this
document have been sent to key stakeholders and are available at the District Council Offices at Pathfinder House.
An interactive version of the document is also available on the Council's website.

1.16 You can comment on the document on-line via our interactive version at http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk or
e-mail your comments to us at Idf@huntsdc.gov.uk or write to us at the following address:

1.17 Planning Division
Huntingdonshire District Council
Pathfinder House, St Mary's Street
Huntingdon PE29 3TN



2

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

2 A clean 'green’ attractive place

Community Strategy Outcome: A high quality built and natural environment.

2.1 Detailed research and consultation in the preparation of Growing Success and the Huntingdonshire Community
Strategy highlighted a number of issues which were raised by people who live and work in Huntingdonshire. Issues
raised included the loss of greenfield land and the need to minimise the environmental effects of development.
The following chapter identifies issues and options relating to the need to protect and enhance the natural and
built environment, the need to ensure new development is designed and built to a high standard and the need to
minimise the risk of flooding.

Landscape character

Community Strategy Objective: to improve the diversity of our natural environment.

2.2 National Guidance in Planning Policy Statement 7 requires local authorities to ensure the quality and character
of the countryside is protected and, where possible, enhanced.

2.3 As a predominantly rural district, Huntingdonshire’s landscapes play a major role in shaping the character
of our environment, stimulating leisure and tourism and supporting the overall ‘quality of life’. The Huntingdonshire
Landscape & Townscape Assessment identifies a number of landscape character areas across the district. These
range from the low-lying Fenland in the north east to the rolling uplands in the west. These landscape character
areas have evolved and are continuing to change. It is important that both the quality and distinctive characteristics
of these areas are conserved and enhanced when new development occurs.

The need to protect Huntingshire's characteristic landscape.

Policies will set out criteria to protect landscape character.

Reasonable alternatives?



2

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

2.4 The existing ‘Area of Best Landscape’ designation which covers parts of the district could be retained as an
alternative, or in addition to, the criteria-based approach. However, it is government policy that such local
designations should be maintained only where criteria-based policies would not provide sufficient protection. The
policy approach outlined above requires all proposals within or adjoining the countryside to be assessed carefully
for their potential landscape impact, regardless of whether they are in an area that might be regarded as ‘best’.
Therefore it protects the distinctive character of all Huntingdonshire’s landscapes, and provides clear criteria for
making appropriate judgements.

Do you think the criteria based approach to landscape character will provide sufficient protection? (please
give reasons)

Sustainable design

Corporate Plan Objective: to lower carbon emissions.

Community Strategy Objective: to promote a more sustainable use of natural resources.

2.5 ltis important that buildings are designed and constructed to maximise sustainability of development. This
can be done through a number of measures including:

The incorporation of energy efficient devices, energy efficient materials and on-site renewable energy sources
The incorporation of water efficiency measures

The use of locally sourced materials and materials of low embodied energy in construction

The incorporation of sustainable drainage or rainwater holding facilities

The incorporation of household recycling and composting facilities

Layouts which maximise the benefits of solar gain

The need to ensure development is built and constructed to maximise the sustainability of development.

2.6 In 2006 the Government launched The Code for Sustainable Homes. This is a voluntary code which sets a
national standard for sustainable construction and design for new homes. Using the Code homes are given a star
rating to rate the overall sustainability of the home. It is important that the achievement of the standards within
this Code are encouraged to ensure that development is sustainable.

Policies will encourage compliance with the Code for Sustainable Homes.



2

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

Reasonable alternatives?

2.7 None. The above option is consistent with national and regional guidance.

Do you agree that policies should encourage compliance with the Code for Sustainable Homes?

Do you think applicants should be required to submit a statement setting out how they have complied with
this code?

Renewable energy

Corporate Plan Objetcive: to lower carbon emissions.

Community Strategy Objective: to increase sources of renewable energy.

2.8 Together with energy conservation measures, the exploitation of renewable energy sources is central to the
Government's efforts to reduce our reliance on fossil fuels and achieve reductions in CO, emissions. Research
has demonstrated significant potential for renewable energy generation in the area, especially in relation to
biomass, wind and waste energy and solar power.

2.9 Government policy encourages renewable energy schemes unless the environmental impacts would outweigh
the wider social, economic and environmental advantages that stem from making greater use of renewable energy
potential. A criteria based policy can be applied to ensure that the risk of adverse impacts is minimised. A range
of issues will need to be considered, including the effects upon amenity such as noise generation, shadow flicker
and electromagnetic disturbance, as well as the impact upon the natural and built environment.

2.10 Renewable energy technology can change rapidly, hence it is reasonable to require arrangements for the
removal of any equipment should it cease to be operational, in order to prevent unnecessary environmental
intrusion (especially where masts and associated structures are situated in the open countryside). Appropriate
conditions will be imposed where feasible.

The need to minimise the environmental impacts of renewable energy development.



2

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

A criteria based policy will be included to minimise impact of renewable energy development on the character
and appearance of the surrounding landscape and on sites of national and international importance for
conservation and to require the removal of redundant equipment.

Reasonable alternatives?

211 None. This approach is required by national and strategic guidance.

Flood risk

Community Strategy Objective: to reduce the impact of flooding.

2.12 Flooding is an important issue facing the district. Parts of some towns and villages have suffered from
serious flooding during recent years, and episodes of heavy rain are forecast to increase as a result of climate
change. The damage caused by floods is costly, disruptive and distressing for those affected, so it is essential
that new development does not add to the risk of flooding that already exists.

The need to minimise the risk of flooding in new developments.

Development in areas at some risk of flooding will be unavoidable as large parts of all the major towns in the
district are within such areas. However, mitigation measures will be required so that there is no net increase in
risk. The use of Sustainable Drainage Systems (SUDS) to manage surface water flows can be an important tool
in minimising flood risk. SUDS can also assist pollution control through improved filtration and habitat creation
within new developments. In view of these benefits SUDS should be employed where ground conditions permit.

2.13 To determine whether a flood risk assessment would be required for their proposal applicants should refer
to PPS 25, and the Environment Agency's guidance on flood risk. The 1:10, 1:100 and the 1:1000 flood risk zones
are shown on the Council's Strategic Flood Risk Assessment maps.

Policies will set out criteria to ensure that development proposals minimise and manage the risk of flooding.

Reasonable alternatives?

2.14 None. Avoiding and managing flood risk is a requirement of national and strategic guidance. The above
option therefore represents the most appropriate way to minimise flood risk in new developments.

98

8



2

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

Trees, hedgerows and other environmental features

Corporate Plan Objective: to protect and improve wildlife habitats.

Community Strategy Objective: to improve the diversity of our natural environment.

2.15 Many development sites contain or adjoin features such as trees, small areas of woodland, hedgerows,
ponds and old boundary walls. These can be of great importance to the character and quality of the local
environment. Often they are attractive in their own right, but they can also provide important habitats, focal points,
a link with the past and contribute to the overall ‘sense of place’. It is particularly important in Huntingdonshire
that trees are given a high level of protection because the district has a low number of trees compared with other
areas of the Country. Old drainage ditches and road verges are also particularly significant within Huntingdonshire,
and play an important role in providing ‘green corridors’ for wildlife.

2.16 To ensure that these benefits are retained, development proposals should avoid harm to such features
wherever possible, and if necessary incorporate them within an appropriate landscape scheme. Mitigation,
replacement or compensatory measures will be required when this cannot be achieved, to ensure that there is
no loss of environmental value as a result of development.

The need to minimise risk of harm to trees, hedgerows or other environmental features of visual or nature
conservation value.

217 Where specific trees or groups of trees are of particular value (such that their removal would have a
significant impact upon the local environment and its enjoyment by the public), and are potentially under threat,
the Council will make Tree Preservation Orders (TPOs) to protect them.

In addition to the use of TPOs for important trees, policies will set out criteria to minimise the risk of harm to
trees, hedgerows and other environmental features.

Reasonable alternatives?

2.18 None. The approach taken to protect, conserve and enhance the natural environment is required by national
and regional guidance. A failure to do so would cause significant and detrimental harm to the character of
Huntingdonshire's environment.

What criteria would you like to be used to minimise risk of harm to environmental features?



2

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

Protected habitats and species

Corporate Plan Objective: to protect and improve wildlife habitats.

Community Strategy Objective: to improve the diversity of our natural environment.

2.19 The range and vitality of habitats and species is central to the operation of natural processes and our overall
quality of life. The need to consider this in all development proposals is highlighted by the criteria relating to the

pursuit of sustainable development outlined in the emerging Core Strategy. Huntingdonshire contains many sites
and species that are afforded special protection due to their particular importance. Within the planning process it
is important that these sites are given additional protection at a level appropriate to their significance for biodiversity
or geology.

The need to minimise harm to sites of importance for biodiversity or geology.

2.20 Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) are designated by English Nature under the Wildlife and Countryside
Act 1981.

2.21 The following option refers to harm to protected habitats and species; this includes both direct e.g land
take, and indirect impacts e.g changes to a watercourse and the potential combination of such impacts.

Policies will indicate that development proposals should not harm protected habitats or species.

Reasonable alternatives?

2.22 None. The approach taken to protect sites of national or international importance is required by national
and strategic guidance. The above option therefore represents the most appropriate means to protect these sites.

2.23 National planning guidance gives the highest protection to sites of international and national importance
but also requires local authorities to protect sites of regional and local biodiversity or geological interest through
the use of criteria based policies to judge proposals against. Sites to be protected include County Wildlife Sites,
Local Nature Reserves, Ancient Woodland, important species” and protected roadside verges.

i species protected by legislation, or recognised as being of principle importance for the conservation of
biodiversity in England

100
10



2

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

What criteria would you like to see used to protect sites of regional and local biodiversity or geological interest?

Biodiversity

Corporate Plan Objective: to protect and improve wildlife habitats.

Community Strategy Objective: to improve the diversity of our natural environment.

2.24 Biodiversity in developments and within green spaces which are used by wildlife and appreciated by people
has an important role to play in improving quality of life and creating a sense of well-being.

2.25 Proposals for development should consider the impact of the proposal on biodiversity. Where possible,
biodiversity should be incorporated into the proposal. Where it is not possible to incorporate existing biodiversity
into the proposal, and where the proposal is in the public interest, mitigation measures should be required. Mitigation
can include reducing disturbance, harm and potential impacts and creating alternative habitats for affected
populations.

The need to promote biodiversity within development proposals.

2.26 Biodiversity Action Plans have been produced at national and local levels which set out action plans for
habitats and species which are considered to be the most threatened at each level. Where a habitat is being
enhanced or created priority should be given to achieving the targets set out in these action plans.

2.27 When producing an assessment of habitats and species and details of any mitigation or enhancement
applicants should refer to the 'Biodiversity Checklist: Developers Guidance' or 'Biodiversity and Householder
Planning Applications' produced by the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Biodiversity Partnership.

Policies will indicate that development proposals should conserve and create biodiversity habitats to help
achieve Local Biodiversity Action Plan Targets.
Reasonable alternatives?

2.28 None. The protection of biodiversity is a requirement of national and regional guidance. The above option
therefore represents the most appropriate way to promote biodiversity and help achieve local biodiversity objectives.

101
11



2

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

Do you think sufficient emphasis is being placed on the promotion of biodiversity? (please give reasons)

Design quality

Corporate Plan Objective: to ensure good quality in the built environment.

Community Strategy Objective: to improve the quality and distinctiveness of the built environment of our
towns and villages.

2.29 A high standard of design is essential for the creation of attractive and successful places. The planning
system has a key role to play in encouraging schemes that will make a positive contribution to the area, by
promoting an understanding and application of key design considerations.

The need to promote a high standard of design in development.

2.30 This can be achieved through the inclusion of a criteria based policy that sets out basic principles which
need to be addressed if developments are to display character, complement their surroundings, and provide
attractive and sustainable environments for users. As well as being of critical importance for all new projects,
criteria can also be relevant when considering alterations and extensions to existing buildings.

2.31 More detailed guidance on the design process and principles is provided by the Huntingdonshire Design
Guide (2006). Some settlements have also produced Village Design Statements (VDS) which set out local design
aspirations for individual settlements and can help provide guidance on the preferences of residents.

Policies will indicate that proposals should demonstrate a high quality of design and will set out criteria which
will be used to assess this. Policies will also require that planning applications will be accompanied by
sufficient supporting information to demonstrate how design-related considerations have been addressed.

Reasonable alternatives?

2.32 None. This approach is required by national and strategic guidance.

102
12



2

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

What criteria would you like to see included in this policy?

Street scene

Corporate Plan Objective: to ensure good quality in the built environment.

Community Strategy Objective: to improve the quality and distinctiveness of the built environment of our
towns and villages.

2.33 The character of streets and other public spaces has a major impact upon the quality of our environment.
It derives from many factors, design criteria are fundamental but so too are many other influences such as the
nature of shop fronts, street furniture, lighting and signage.

2.34 Making street frontages 'active' adds interest, safety, life and vitality to the public realm. Street frontages
provide the setting for buildings and help to make an essential contribution to what constitutes the character of
an area. The quality of the built environment is greatly enhanced by considering site planning and the integrated
use of hard landscaping (e.g. paving, street furniture). However, careful thought needs to be given to the scale,
position and potential impact of signage, lighting and street furniture: the objective should be to minimise visual
‘clutter’ whilst also ensuring that places are safe, convenient and comfortable to use.

2.35 Shop fronts are important visual components of both individual buildings and the street scene. Many are
changed or renewed frequently, and it is essential that the design and materials relate effectively to the scale and
character of the premises and their neighbours. Solid security shutters can harm the vitality of town and village
centres outside opening hours by obscuring shop displays, attracting graffiti and creating a ‘fortress’ effect. Hence
it is important to promote the use of more subtle security measures wherever possible.

The need to create a high quality public realm.

Policies will indicate that development proposals should make a positive contribution to the character and
appearance of streets and public spaces and will set out criteria which will be used to assess this.

Reasonable alternatives?

2.36 None. The promotion of good design is required by national and strategic guidance, and this must include
clear criteria designed to ensure that appropriate regard is paid to the quality of the public realm.

103
13



2

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

What criteria would you like to see included in this policy?

Transport impacts

Corporate Plan Objective: to ensure good quality in the built environment.

Community Strategy Objective: to improve the quality of the built environment of our towns and villages.

2.37 ltis important that development does not have an unacceptable impact on the transport network, and that
opportunities are taken to promote sustainable forms of travel. The ability to achieve a suitable connection to the
highway is a basic planning consideration. It is essential that access is planned and designed to be safe for vehicle
users, cyclists and pedestrians, both on and off-site. Equally, an applicant should demonstrate that their proposal
will not overload the surrounding road network.

2.38 Road traffic can have a significant effect on the environment of both rural and urban areas, and this will
also need to be considered in assessing the appropriateness of development. Close attention will need to be paid
to proposals that could generate a large net increase in trips, movements of heavy vehicles, or high levels of
on-street parking in the surrounding area.

2.39 Where a proposal could have significant transport implications a full transport assessment would be required;
this should identify potential impacts and propose suitable mitigation measures. In the case of minor developments
a simpler ‘transport statement’ which identifies potential trip levels and addresses any localised transport issues
will be more appropriate.

2.40 When a development scheme could have significant transport impacts, the preparation of a travel plan
enables options for promoting sustainable forms of movement to be explored, including measures to promote
walking, cycling and the use of public transport. Early implementation of a travel plan is beneficial as it helps
people make sustainable travel choices as soon as development is occupied.

The need to ensure safe access to the transport network, to prevent unacceptable impacts on the transport
network and to promote sustainable forms of transport.

Policies will set out criteria for assessing development proposals and will require an all modes transport
assessment or transport statement.

104
14



2

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

Reasonable alternatives?

2.41 The requirement for safe access to the highway network, and for the traffic volumes generated to be within
the capacity of the highway network, is required by national and strategic guidance.

Development in the countryside

Corporate Plan Objective: to minimise the development of greenfield land.

Community Strategy Objectives: to promote a more sustainable use of natural resources.

2.42 ltis government policy that development in the countryside should be strictly controlled in order to conserve
its character and natural resources. The plan needs to contain a policy which sets out the limited circumstances
in which development outside settlements will be allowed.

The need to conserve the character of the countryside.

Policies will set out criteria to restrict development outside the settlements.

Reasonable alternatives?

2.43 None. Controlling development in the countryside is a requirement of national and strategic guidance.

What criteria should be used to assess proposals in the countryside?

2.44 In order to assess whether a proposal is outside of a settlement the plan needs to define the distinction
between settlements and the open countryside. This can be done in two ways; a line could be drawn around the
settlement to give a clear delineation between the settlement and the countryside or a criteria based policy referring
to the built-up framework could be used to assess each proposal on its own merits. The built-up framework is the
existing built form. It excludes buildings that are clearly detached from the main body of the settlement, gardens
and other undeveloped land within the curtilage of buildings at the edge of the settlement, especially where those
gardens relate more to the surrounding countryside than they do to the built-up parts of the settlement.

105
15



2

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

2.45 The advantage of drawing settlement boundaries is that these provide certainty as to whether a piece of
land is within the settlement or the countryside. However, adding settlement boundaries may imply that development
within these boundaries is, in principle, acceptable, using the built-up framework criteria this can be avoided as
each proposal is assessed individually.

2.46 The approach to drawing or not drawing settlement boundaries could be different depending upon the place
of a settlement in the settlement hierarchy, for example settlement boundaries could be drawn around Market
Towns and Key Service Centres, where most growth is likely to occur, and Smaller Settlements could use the
built-up framework criteria.

Should settlement boundaries be drawn or should the built-up framework criteria be used for a) Market
Towns, b) Key Service Centres, c) Smaller Settlements.

Housing density

Corporate Plan Objective: to minimise the development of greenfield land.

Community Strategy Objectives: to promote a more sustainable use of natural resources.

2.47 Appropriate densities for new housing development will vary according to the type of settlement and the
specific characteristics of the proposed site. Building at moderate to high densities wherever possible will enable
best use to be made of development sites, and help safeguard the countryside from unnecessary development.
Denser forms of development can also generate the ‘critical mass’ of people that may be needed to support local
facilities.

The need to ensure the density of development makes efficient use of land.

2.48 Planning Policy Statement 3 sets a minimum national density of 30 dwellings per hectare. Exceptionally,
there may be instances where applying the minimum density requirement is not appropriate due to the character
of the site and its surroundings; this is a material consideration but would need to be justified through a design
statement submitted with a planning application. National planning guidance allows local planning authorities to
set density targets appropriate to the plan area, this could be through a target for the whole area or for a density
range reflecting the location and character of the area and amenities available.

2.49 Inlocations with good access to a range of services, facilities and employment opportunities higher minimum
densities are appropriate. Maximising the amount of housing in relatively sustainable locations should help to
offer greater opportunities for people to make sustainable choices and limit the need to travel. Good access to
high quality public transport should be considered to be any proposed site within easy walking distance of a railway
station or a bus route with high frequency services to a city or market town.

106
16



2

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

A single net density for development proposals will be applied across the district.

A range of densities will be applied for development proposals according to settlement type, character and
amenities.

Reasonable alternatives?

2.50 Ensuring development makes efficient use of land by using appropriate densities is required by national
and strategic guidance, therefore the two options above represent the full range of options. Option 12 would
ensure that a standard density is achieved in development across the district regardless of the type and character
of settlements and the amenities available. Option 13 uses a range of densities which can be applied to
development. The type and character of a settlement as well as the amenities available will be taken into
consideration when applying a net density. This option would ensure that settlements which are more sustainable
have higher densities for development than settlements which are less sustainable.

Which option do you prefer and why?

Listed buildings

Corporate Plan Objective: to conserve and enhance local heritage.

Community Strategy Objective: to improve the quality and distinctiveness of the built environment of our
towns and villages.

2.51 Listed buildings are of national importance, representing the best of our historic and architectural built
heritage. Huntingdonshire contains nearly 2,800 listed structures, and it is vital that any works affecting them are
guided by an appreciation of both their importance and the planning controls that apply.

2.52 Applications affecting Listed buildings should meet the requirements set out in Planning Policy Guidance
Note 15 (PPG15) and the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation) Act 1990 which give detailed guidance
on development affecting Listed buildings.

107
17



2

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

2.53 There is a presumption in favour of preserving listed buildings and their features of architectural or historic
interest. The best way of securing their upkeep is usually to keep them in active use. Applications for alternative
uses will need to be supported with detailed information on the building and details of any alterations which may
be required to accommodate the new use.

There is rarely a good reason for allowing the demolition of a listed building, but PPG15 recognises the very limited
circumstances in which total or partial demolition may be necessary and ensures that demolition is allowed only
as a last resort (and that neglect cannot be used to justify the loss of listed structures). Where the demolition of

a listed building is considered acceptable, the Council will require applicants to arrange the recording of features
that would be lost in the course of the works. The requirement that detailed plans for reconstruction / redevelopment
are agreed is to make certain that a suitable replacement will be erected.

2.54 The Council will monitor the condition of listed buildings to ensure that support and control from the local
authority is applied at the appropriate time. The Council will maintain a register of Buildings at Risk

Conservation areas

Corporate Plan Objective: to conserve and enhance local heritage.

Community Strategy Objective: to improve the quality and distinctiveness of the built environment of our
towns and villages.

2.55 Conservation areas exist to assist the preservation and enhancement of areas of particular architectural
or historic interest. Applications affecting conservation areas should meet the requirements set out in Planning
Policy Guidance Note 15 (PPG15) and the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation) Act 1990 which give
detailed guidance on development affecting conservation areas.

2.56 The character of conservation areas is often the product of various elements such as the mixture and style
of buildings, the extent and form of open spaces and the amount of tree cover. This does not mean that there
should be an embargo on new development in conservation areas, but it does require that their preservation and
enhancement should be an important factor in determining planning applications.

2.57 ltis particularly important that traditional features that contribute to their overall character are recognised

and respected in development proposals. At the same time, new development does not have to mimic the past:

carefully considered, high quality designs that provide a successful contrast with their surroundings can preserve
and enhance character, as well as schemes that employ authentic historical forms and features.

2.58 The demolition of buildings within conservation areas can have a damaging effect by removing structures
that contribute to their character or leaving unsightly gaps in the built-up environment. As with listed buildings,
where buildings in conservation areas contribute positively to the street scene, there will be a presumption in
favour of retention. However, where this is not the case, the criteria in PPG15 will ensure that demolition is allowed
only when detailed plans for the site’s redevelopment have been approved, to ensure that the scheme will preserve
and enhance the character of the area.

108
18



2

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

Sites of archaeological interest

Corporate Plan Objective: to conserve and enhance local heritage.

2.59 Archaeological remains constitute an important part of the area’s heritage. They are a finite resource, and
easily damaged or destroyed when development takes place. Known sites of national importance are designated
as Scheduled Ancient Monuments, but the majority of sites do not enjoy this degree of protection. Indeed, most
archaeological remains exist below ground, so their extent and significance may not be known in advance.

2.60 Planning Policy Guidance (PPG16) sets out the approach to protecting sites of archaeological importance
and this DPD should not repeat national guidance.

In relation to sites of archaeological importance are there any issues which are not addressed in PPG16 that
you would like addressed in this DPD?

Historic parks and gardens

Corporate Plan Objective: to conserve and enhance local heritage.

Community Strategy Objective: to improve the quality and distinctiveness of the built environment of our
towns and villages.

2.61 Huntingdonshire contains several historic parks and gardens which have been registered by English Heritage
as being of national significance. As well as being an important part of our local heritage these sites merit special
protection due to their wider value as key examples of park or garden history. It is essential that the particular
qualities of these sites are recognised and respected in any development proposals that might affect them.

2.62 Any development proposal should demonstrate a clear understanding of the park's or garden’s historic
importance and that it would not harm the overall condition of the park or garden or any features that contribute
to its special interest. Where appropriate, it should support the long-term preservation of the park or garden and
its setting through sensitive restoration, adaptation and re-use.

The need to protect historic parks and gardens.

109
19



2

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

Policies will set out criteria to ensure development proposals do not harm historic parks and gardens.

Reasonable alternatives?

2.63 None. This approach is required by national and strategic guidance.

Re-use and re-development of rural buildings

Corporate Plan Objective: to conserve and enhance local heritage.

Community Strategy Objective: to improve the quality and distinctiveness of the built environment of our
towns and villages.

2.64 Huntingdonshire contains large numbers of old farm buildings, mills and other structures that are of historic
or visual interest and these buildings make an important contribution to the character of the area. Many of these
buildings can be re-used for a variety of purposes but it is important to ensure that any proposal is appropriate
both for the building itself and for the area in which it lies.

2.65 Many proposals for the conversion of modern farm buildings are also received. In such cases particular
regard will be had to other policies in the Local Development Framework concerning the impact of development
on its surroundings, including the scale and nature of traffic generated. These considerations apply to all proposals,
but are particularly relevant to the re-use of modern buildings in the countryside, as most are large and of utilitarian
appearance.

2.66 The re-use and re-development of existing buildings in the countryside for business purposes is encouraged
by national guidance. However, there may be limited circumstances in which converting a building in the countryside
for business purposes is not possible, or is undesirable due to the volume of traffic that might be generated.
Appropriate criteria can be used for judging proposals in those circumstances. Where residential use is proposed
applicants should demonstrate that re-use or re-development for business purposes is not viable or would generate
significantly more vehicle movements than a residential alternative.

2.67 The re-development of buildings can range from partial reconstruction to its complete replacement. Additional
safeguards are needed to ensure that this does not result in an increased scale of development or the loss of
buildings that should be retained. Re-development will not be permitted where a building is in a ruinous condition
or only its site remains, as this would be tantamount to constructing a new building in the open countryside where
the previous structure has, in effect, disappeared (or is in the process of doing so).

2.68 Strict limits on re-use or re-development for retail purposes will be imposed given the need to sustain the
vitality and viability of existing village services and limit unnecessary car-borne trips. However, farm shops can
make a useful contribution to farm diversification schemes and will be permitted provided their scale and range
of goods is limited and there is no conflict with other policies in the Local Development Framework .

110
20



2

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

The need to ensure that re-use and re-development of rural buildings is appropriate for the building itself
and the area in which it lies.

Policies will set out that re-use and re-development of rural buildings for business purposes will be preferable
and will set out criteria against which proposals will be assessed.

Reasonable alternative?

2.69 None. The re-use or re-development of existing buildings in the countryside for business purposes is
encouraged by national guidance, subject to appropriate criteria being included in plans or supplementary guidance.

What criteria should be used to assess proposals?

Alteration or replacement of existing dwellings in the countryside

Corporate Plan Objective: to conserve and enhance local heritage.

2.70 To help conserve the character of the countryside, limits need to be placed upon the extent to which existing
dwellings may be enlarged. Otherwise, the ability to create much larger properties on existing plots could increase
the intrusiveness of built development in countryside locations. For the same reason, new dwellings will be resisted
where a previous residential use has in effect been abandoned, such that only the site of the previous dwelling
remains. Advice on appropriate design principles is contained in the Huntingdonshire Design Guide.

The need to restrict the intrusiveness of built development in countryside locations.

Policies will be included that limit alterations and extensions that can be made to existing dwellings and
restricts replacement dwellings being built in the countryside.

111
21



A clean 'green’ attractive place

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

Reasonable alternatives?

2.71 None. The protection of the character of the countryside is required by national guidance. The above option
therefore represents the most appropriate means to conserve the intrinsic character of the countryside and restrict

the intrusiveness of built development.

Do you think this option will sufficiently protect the character of the countryside?

112
22



3

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

3 Housing that meets local need

Community Strategy Outcome: a balanced housing market.

3.1 Detailed research and consultation in the preparation of Growing Success and Huntingdonshire Community
Strategy has highlighted a number of issues which were raised by people who live and work in Huntingdonshire.
A particular issue that people raised is the affordability of housing, although this issue is covered in the emerging
Core Strategy, it is recognised that the availability of housing is a key issue. The following chapter looks at how
we can provide a balanced housing market across the district; it covers issues and options relating to the location
of housing, housing for agricultural workers, retirement housing and nursing and care homes and accommodation
for travellers, gypsies and travelling showpeople.

Mix of property sizes

Corporate Plan Objective: to ensure an appropriate mix of new housing.

Community Strategy Objective: ensure the availability of a range of decent housing to meet local needs.

3.2 To ensure the private housing market meets the needs of as wide a section of the community as possible,
it is important that new development proposals consider the needs of all household types. Both the Housing Needs
Survey Update 2006 and housing completions 1999-2006 indicate a dearth in the provision of one and two bedroom
properties suitable for smaller households.

3.3 Within major residential development proposals a range of accommodation sizes and types should be
provided to meet the needs of different household types. Proposals for minor and infill residential schemes should
consider the mix of properties in the vicinity and how the development proposal can contribute to developing a
mixed and sustainable community. Potential developers should consider the changing demographic composition
of the district's residents and refer to the most up to date assessments of housing need and supply when submitting
an application in order to determine an appropriate mix of dwellings to meet the future needs of the community
where development is proposed.

The need for new housing developments to reflect the economic and social needs of the district and promote
the creation of sustainable communities.

3.4 A Strategic Market Housing Assessment is being carried out for Cambridgeshire, this assessment will identify
the long term need and demand for market and affordable housing. This assessment will be used to inform policies
on the mix of housing required in new development.

113
23



3

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

Policies will indicate that proposals should provide an appropriate mix of housing schemes according to their
scale.

Reasonable alternatives?

3.5 None. Achieving a good mix of housing is a requirement of national guidance therefore the above option
represents the most appropriate means to ensure mixed, sustainable communities are created.

Housing for agricultural and related workers

Corporate Plan Objective: to ensure an appropriate mix of new housing.

Community Strategy Obijectives: realise the benefits to economic, social and environmental well being from
housing and employment development.

3.6 It will often be possible for workers in agricultural and land-based occupations to live in a town or village
near to their business location. However, occasionally the nature of agricultural and some other rural businesses
make it essential for someone to live on, or in close proximity to the business. The construction of new dwellings
in the countryside to meet the housing needs of such workers requires special justification as it is important to
avoid sporadic development in the countryside.

3.7 A criteria based policy could be used to consider where a new dwelling in the countryside is claimed as
being necessary. A clear evidence of need would need to be provided.

The need to provide housing that meets the needs of agricultural and related workers whilst protecting against
sporadic development in the countryside.

Policies will indicate that development proposals in the countryside should be restricted and will set out
criteria against which proposals will be assessed.

Reasonable alternatives?

3.8 None. Restricting development in the countryside is a requirement of national guidance. The above option
therefore represents the most appropriate means to protect the countryside whilst supporting agricultural and
related business.

114
24



3

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

What criteria should be used to assess proposals?

Retirement housing

Corporate Plan Objective: to support opportunities for the vulnerable to live independently.

Community Strategy Objectives: ensure the availability of a range of decent housing to meet local needs
and support vulnerable people to lead active lives and live independently in their own homes.

The number of elderly people is expected to increase significantly in the period to 2021, and provision needs to
be made to help meet their particular housing needs. This policy concerns housing for elderly people who wish
to continue to live independently but with access to levels of support appropriate to their needs.

Schemes for retirement housing should be designed with flexibility in mind to enable people to remain for their
lifetime. The entrance area, communal areas and at least some living units should be designed to wheelchair user
standards. A communal lounge is desirable to facilitate social interaction.

The need to provide housing to meet the specialist needs of the elderly.

Itis important that such developments are located so that elderly households can have access to a suitable range
of facilities. Residents of such developments are more likely to shop locally (and are less likely to travel by car)
than other occupiers.

The option below facilitates the provision of high quality sustainable living environments that will meet residents
needs as they become older and frailer.

Policies will set out criteria to assess proposals for specialist retirement housing.

Reasonable alternatives?

The provision of housing for the elderly is encouraged in national guidance. The above option enables provision
to be made for specialist retirement housing. However, in order to provide greater choice for potential residents
and opportunities to maintain a relatively rural lifestyle, it may be appropriate to have retirement housing schemes
in more rural locations and on a scale that would otherwise not be permitted for general housing. Locations will
be assessed against the settlement hierarchy to ensure they have access to a range of essential services that

115
25



3

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

limit car borne trips. It is however, acknowledged that the provision of communal facilities and support services
can require development of a sufficient scale to be viable. To ensure that this is not abused larger proposals for
rural locations will be assessed against criteria for sustainable development and design.

Should the provision of retirement housing be allowed in locations and on a scale that would not otherwise
be permitted for general housing?

What sort of services do you think will be required to support elderly residents in retirement housing?

Nursing and care homes

Corporate Plan Objective: to ensure an appropriate mix of new housing.

Community Strategy Objective: ensure the availability of a range of decent housing to meet local needs.

Nursing and care homes entail the provision of specialist residential accommodation and care to people in need.
This covers a range of uses such as care homes for the elderly, centres for those with severe disabilities and
hostels for social rehabilitation purposes. The nature and mobility of occupiers varies greatly, so it is inappropriate
to specify in any detail the level of access to facilities that may be required. Nonetheless, it is important that nursing
and care homes are directed towards locations that are relatively sustainable, enabling access by non-car modes
to relevant facilities and contributing to the best possible quality of life for their residents.

The need to provide specialist accommodation and care to people in need.

The option below facilitates the provision of specialist accommodation which meet the changing needs of residents
in sustainable locations. To provide choice and opportunity for residents, it may be appropriate to develop nursing
and care homes in locations and on a scale that would not otherwise be permitted for general housing. This
recognises that specialist accommodation often requires a minimum number of units to be viable, and that a rural
location may sometimes be appropriate in addressing the care needs of residents. To ensure this is not abused,
larger schemes in rural locations will be carefully assessed against criteria for sustainable development and design
quality.

116
26



3

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

Policies will set out criteria to assess proposals for nursing and care homes.

Reasonable alternatives?

The provision of housing that meets specialist needs of specific groups such as the disabled, is encouraged in
national guidance. The above option enables provision to be made for nursing and care homes. However, in order
to provide greater choice for potential residents and opportunities to maintain a relatively rural lifestyle, it may be
appropriate to have nursing and care homes in more rural locations on a scale that would not otherwise be
permitted for general housing. Locations will be assessed against the settlement hierarchy to ensure they have
access to a range of essential services in order to limit car borne trips. It is however, acknowledged that the
provision of communal facilities and support services can require development of a sufficient scale to be viable.
To ensure that this is not abused larger proposals for rural locations will be assessed against criteria for sustainable
development and design.

Should the provision of nursing and care homes be allowed in locations and on a scale that would not
otherwise be permitted for general housing?

What sort of services do you think will be required to support residents of nursing and care homes?

Accommodation for gypsies, travellers and travelling showpeople

Corporate Plan Objective: to ensure an appropriate supply of new housing.

3.9 National guidance indicates that authorities should allocate sites to meet the identified accommodation needs
of gypsies, as well as setting out appropriate criteria for making decisions about sites where allocations have not
been made.

The need to ensure identified accommodation needs of gypsies, travellers and travelling showpeople are
adequately met.

117
27



3

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

3.10 Itis recognised that many gypsies, travellers and travelling showpeople prefer to buy and manage their
own sites, often living in relatively small family groups. Private sector provision of sites will be encouraged and
the need for allocations will be considered through preparation of a separate DPD. There is, however, still a role
for provision of public sites and sites managed by registered social landlords to help meet the needs of those who
cannot develop their own sites or prefer to rent, as well as transit sites and emergency stopping places.

3.11  Gypsies and travellers are defined in Circular 01/2006 wherein it is acknowledged that traditional patterns
of working are changing, resulting in the community generally becoming more settled, although the ability to travel
remains an integral part of gypsy and traveller culture. Organised groups of travelling showpeople are specifically
excluded from the definition of ‘gypsies’ used by Circular 01/2006, but their way of life and accommodation
requirements are similar. Hence it is appropriate to address their requirements within the same policy.

3.12 ltis recognised that gypsy sites need to be situated in places which meet the current working patterns of
gypsies and travellers and these may include countryside locations. However, issues of sustainability are important
and decisions about the acceptability of particular sites need to take into account access to essential services
and the impact on the settled community in the vicinity in order to promote coexistence between potential residents
and the local community.

Policies will set out criteria to ensure sites are provided which meet the identified accommodation needs of
gypsies, travellers and travelling showpeople.

Reasonable alternatives?

3.13 None. The provision of sites to meet identified accommodation needs of gypsies and travellers is a
requirement of national and strategic guidance. The above option represents the most appropriate means to meet
the identified accommodation needs of this group. The need for allocations will be considered in the context of
preparing a separate DPD.

Do you think a criteria based approach will adequately meet the identified accommodation needs of gypsies,

travellers and travelling showpeople? (please give reasons)

What criteria would you like to see included in this policy?

118
28



4

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

4 Safe, active and inclusive communities

Community Strategy Outcomes:

Vibrant , confident and effective communities
Good opportunities for learning

Good culture and leisure opportunities

Low crime

Low fear of crime

4.1 Detailed research and consultation in the preparation of Growing Success and the Huntingdonshire Community
Strategy has highlighted a number of issues which were raised by people who live and work in Huntingdonshire.
This research highlighted that although the majority of people in the district enjoy a high quality of life there are
some communities which have more needs than others. It also highlighted that these are a few communities
where crime is relatively high and has a detrimental effect on daily life. This chapter looks at how we can achieve
safe, active and inclusive communities and identifies issues and options relating to accessibility, security, amenity
and mixed use development.

Accessibility, adaptability and security

Corporate Plan Objectives: to work to ensure that communities are inclusive and to prevent crime and
anti-social behaviour.

Community Strategy Objectives: to reduce anti-social behaviour and create a safe environment.

4.2 Akey aspect of planning for sustainable development is ensuring that places are accessible and safe to use
for all groups in society. Criteria are required to help guide and assess new development in relation to this. In part
they require measures to minimise the risk of crime (and the fear of crime) for all users. New development must
also address the specific requirements of all potential user groups, such as people with disabilities, women, the
young, the elderly and minority ethnic communities and be capable of adapting to their changing needs and
circumstances.

4.3 Major development should consider an appropriate mix of uses and facilities (such as the availability of local
shops and child care facilities) dependent on potential user groups, as well as the design of individual buildings

and the layout of external areas. All such decisions will need to be informed by early consultation with potential

users.

The need to ensure places are accessible and safe to use for all groups in society.

119
29



4

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

Policies will set out criteria to ensure proposals are appropriately located, enable easy access and minimise
the risk and fear of crime.

Reasonable alternative?

4.4 None. Local planning authorities are required to include policies on access, while national guidance indicated
that community cohesion and the needs of all groups in society should be addressed. A criteria based policy
provides the most appropriate way of indicating how these matters can be considered in the development process.

Amenity

Corporate Plan Objective: to protect the health of individuals.

Community Strategy Objective: to improve the quality of the built environment of our towns and villages.

4.5 The Council seeks to protect the amenity of existing and future occupiers. An important role of the planning
system is to protect the public interest by preventing harm to people and places potentially affected by development.
Criteria can be used to judge whether a proposal could have a detrimental impact upon amenity. Further guidance
on how this can be achieved is contained in the Huntingdonshire Design Guide.

The need to protect the amenity of existing and future occupiers.

Policies will indicate that development proposals should not have an unreasonable impact on living conditions
for existing or future occupiers in terms of access to daylight and sunlight, privacy, noise and disturbance,
fumes and other pollutants and safety and security.

Reasonable alternatives?

120
30



4

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

4.6 None. Safeguarding amenity is an important planning function, and one which needs clear criteria to articulate
the key matters that need to be assessed.

Mixed development

Corporate Plan Objective: to ensure that people feel safe and have a sense of community.

Community Strategy Objective: to promote social inclusion.

4.7 Mixed development provides an essential element of the Government's aim to promote and create socially
inclusive communities. It can be a mix of uses within an individual building (for example ground floor retail and
upper floor residential), a series of different use functions grouped together in several buildings or as a predominant
characteristic across an urban area, readily identifiable by a mix of functions.

4.8 A mix of uses within an area can help to create diverse and interesting places, reduce the need to travel
between home, work, and services, and cut the risk of crime by ensuring that the area is populated at all times of
the day. It can be achieved in various ways: by incorporating an appropriate mix of uses in the development of
large sites, through the incremental redevelopment of small sites in ways which increase diversity, and by including
a mix of compatible uses within individual buildings where suitable opportunities arise such as utilising vacant
space above retail units. A compatible mix of uses will be dependent on the character and function of the location.
However, within new neighbourhoods a compatible mix of uses may be residential (including live/work units),
economic, retail, sport and leisure, education and health.

4.9 Live/work units are a particular form of mixed use development which combine residential and business
uses in one property. They are attractive to people establishing or seeking to expand a business while working
from home, and may be appropriate in a variety of locations: for example, as an element within large new residential
and mixed-use developments, or within established mixed-use areas such as town centres. It is essential that the
residential element of the live/work unit should complement the work aspect of the unit.

The need to foster sustainable, inclusive communities.
4.10 This option indicates the importance of pursuing mixed development where possible, and highlights particular
opportunities that exist within Huntingdonshire.

Policies will indicate that mixed development will be preferable in appropriate sustainable locations.

Reasonable alternatives?

121
31



Safe, active and inclusive communities

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

4.11 None. Mixed use development is promoted in national guidance as contributing to the creation of sustainable
communities. The above option therefore represents the most appropriate way to promote sustainable and inclusive
communities.

122
32



5

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

5 Healthy living

Community Strategy Outcome: A healthy population.

5.1 Detailed research and consultation in the preparation of Growing Success and Huntingdonshire Community
Strategy has highlighted a number of issues which were raised by people who live and work in Huntingdonshire.
The provision of open space and recreational land is a key factor in the promotion of healthy, sustainable
communities. Although the majority of residents in Huntingdonshire enjoy a good quality of life and life expectancy
in the district is higher then the national average, it is recognised that this is not true across the district for all
communities - there are health inequalities experienced by different communities in parts of Huntingdonshire. The
following chapter looks in detail at the issues and options for the provision of open space and recreational land.

Open space and recreational land

Corporate Plan Objectives: to promote healthy lifestyle choices and to ensure good quality in parks and
green spaces.

Community Strategy Objectives: promote healthy lifestyles, promote the contribution of the environment to
health and support communities in protecting and valuing open spaces and historic sites.

5.2 Open space and recreational land can make an important contribution to the character and attractiveness
of places and have an important role to play in improving quality of life, health and well-being and contributing
towards sustainable development. Planning Policy Guidance Note 17 sets out the importance of providing adequate
open space and requires local authorities to carry out an audit of existing open space, sports and recreational
land and an assessment of existing and future need.

5.3 Many open spaces within Huntingdonshire’s towns and villages make a significant contribution to their
character and attractiveness. For the purpose of this document ‘open space’ within settlements includes land
such as parks, village greens, play areas, sports pitches, undeveloped plots, semi-natural areas and substantial
private gardens. It is important to prevent its loss where this would harm the visual quality of a settlement.

5.4 Equally, many such spaces play a vital role in providing opportunities for formal or informal recreation, as
do parks, sports pitches and allotments located outside the built-up areas. It is important to safeguard all such
sites of recreational value, unless there would be no shortfall of recreation land when assessed against the
Council’s standards, any replacement facility provides net benefits to the community, and there would be no visual
harm as a result of development.

The need to protect open space within settlements and outdoor recreation facilities and allotments.

123
33



5

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

Policies will protect open space and recreation land.

Reasonable alternatives?

5.5 The approach taken to safeguarding land of recreational value is required by national and regional guidance.
There are two approaches which could be used to identify open space and recreation land that should be
protected. A criteria based policy could be to assess whether spaces should be protected or these spaces could
be identified on the Proposals Map. Identifying these sites on the Proposals Map would give certainty about the
areas covered by the policy. However, it would be difficult to do this in a sufficiently exhaustive and consistent
manner across the whole district, given Huntingdonshire's size and the variety of spaces involved. As a result,
spaces that 'missed' being designated would come under inappropriate pressure for development. The use of a
criteria based approach avoids this risk, and means that the character of spaces will need to be given full and
careful consideration if their development is proposed.

Would you prefer a criteria based policy to be used to protect open space or would you prefer all open spaces
to be identified and designated?

124
34



6

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

6 Access to services and transport

Community Strategy Outcome: Easy and affordable access to services and facilities.

6.1 Detailed research and consultation in the preparation of Growing Success and Huntingdonshire Community
Strategy has highlighted a number of issues which were raised by people who live and work in Huntingdonshire.
Issues that were raised include the lack of an adequate range of services in many rural areas, in particular public
transport, congestion on the A14 and around market towns on local roads at peak times.The following chapter
looks at how we can provide easy and affordable access to services and facilities; it covers issues and options
relating to the retention of key local services and facilities, car and cycle parking, rights of way and other public
routes.

Retention of key local services and facilities

Corporate Plan Objective: to make town centres and key settlements accessible.

Community Strategy Objective: improve access to and the provision of services in rural areas.

6.2 The loss of the last remaining shop, public house or other key facility in a village or neighbourhood can have
a serious impact upon access to services (particularly for those without the use of a car), as well as increasing
the need to travel and potentially harming the overall vitality of that community.

6.3 In Key Service Centres, proposals that would result in a significant loss of facilities (even though this may
not involve the last shop or service of a particular type), could also have a serious impact upon the vitality and
viability of that centre. This is due to the role that these centres play in providing a range of facilities for the
surrounding area — a role which could be undermined should significant losses occur. It is important to use
safeguards to prevent the premature loss of such uses where a demand for them still exists, in order to maintain
the availability of important local facilities wherever possible.

The need to prevent the loss of local services and facilities in villages and Key Service Centres.

Policies will require development proposals which result in the loss of a last remaining key facility to
demonstrate that the facility is no longer needed as there is not public support for its retention.

125
35



6

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

Reasonable alternatives?

6.4 National guidance (PPS7) requires local planning authorities to have policies for supporting the retention of
key village facilities. The policy could be extended to cover the loss of any facility of this type in a village or Key
Service Centre regardless of whether it is the last remaining. However, this would not be reasonable where several
facilities of a particular type exist; the underlying purpose is to ensure that people living in rural areas do not suffer
the unnecessary loss of key facilities.

Car and cycle parking

Corporate Plan Objectives: to support more opportunities for residents to walk, cycle and use public transport
and to make town centres and key settlements accessible.

Community Strategy Objective: improve travel routes for pedestrians, cyclists and those with mobility difficulties.

6.5 The availability of car and cycle parking can have a significant impact on people’s choice of transport. Limiting
car parking spaces in new developments, alongside encouraging the use of more sustainable transport modes,
can help to reduce car use and associated fuel consumption, pollution and congestion. Car parking can occupy
a great deal of space, affecting both the appearance and the density of new development. Local authorities should
develop residential parking policies which taking account of expected levels of car ownership, the importance of
good design and the need to use land efficiently. The one exception to the use of maximum standards is the
provision of spaces for people with disabilities, for whom adequate parking in convenient locations is essential.

6.6 Itis important to set minimum bicycle parking standards because the availability of a secure place to park
cycles is a key determinant in whether people choose to use this method of transport.

6.7 Encouraging the shared use of car parking spaces, particularly in town centres, by taking advantage of
activities where the peak demands do not coincide, can help reduce the overall number of spaces required and
hence the amount of land-take involved. However the proximity of public car parking in town centres should not
result in the relaxation of the parking standard for new residential development where this would result in public
spaces not being available for their intended purpose.

The need to promote appropriate levels of car parking and to encourage cycling through the provision of
bicycle parking.

Policies will set out that development proposals should limit car parking and provide cycle parking and
disabled parking to levels set out in the Council's parking standards.

Reasonable alternatives?

126
36



6

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

6.8 None. This approach is required by national and strategic guidance.

Car parking and cycle parking standards will be produced using the interim standards that accompany the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan and benchmarking with other local authority standards. Do you agree this is an
appropriate approach?

Rights of way and other public routes

Corporate Plan Objective: to support more opportunities for residents to walk, cycle and use public transport.

Community Strategy Objective: improve travel routes for pedestrians, cyclists and those with mobility difficulties.

6.9 Rights of way and other routes with established public access such as permissive paths and the national
cycle network are key assets, linking residential areas to services, facilities and places of employment, and
providing many informal recreation opportunities. There is considerable scope for their use to increase. A 10 year
vision for the public path network in the county is set out in the Cambridgeshire Rights of Way Improvement Plan.
Within Huntingdonshire, 72% of all trips are fewer than five miles in length, and 50% fewer than two miles in length,
suggesting that car-borne trips could be reduced if the quality and convenience of routes is improved, particularly
in conjunction with improvements to associated facilities such as secure cycle parking. In addition, the growing
interest in healthier lifestyles and outdoor pursuits places increasing demands upon the existing network, especially
in popular parts of the countryside.

It is important to prevent any adverse impact upon the existing rights of way network, or upon other routes with
established public access, unless very good reasons exist for closure or diversion and suitable alternative routes
are provided where feasible. Equally, opportunities should be taken to link, extend or improve the quality of
footpaths, bridleways and cycle routes where possible.

The need to maintain and enhance rights of way and other routes.

Policies will indicate that development proposals should maintain, and where possible, enhance the network
of rights of way and other routes.

Reasonable alternatives?

127
37



Access to services and transport

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

None. The safeguarding and creation of convenient routes for pedestrians and cyclists is required by national and
strategic guidance.

128
38



I

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

7 A strong, diverse economy

Community Strategy Outcomes:

° A sustainable, buoyant and balanced local economy
° Improved and sustainable infrastructure for communities

7.1 Detailed research and consultation in the preparation of Growing Success and Huntingdonshire Community
Strategy has highlighted a number of issues which were raised by people who live and work in Huntingdonshire.
The district is generally a prosperous area with high levels of economic growth. However, the Council recognises
that this general picture does not apply to all individuals and all communities. Rural areas in particular, often rely
on employment opportunities characterised by lower wage opportunities. A particular issue that the district faces
is people commuting out of the district to work. The following chapter looks at how we can help promote a
sustainable, buoyant and balanced local economy and improved and sustainable infrastructure for communities.
It covers issues and options relating to the location of office, industrial and warehouse development, redevelopment
of office, industrial and warehouse sites, the location of tourist facilities, farm diversification, town centres, primary
shopping areas and primary frontage, the location of retail and leisure development and telecommunications.

Location of office development

Corporate Plan Objectives: to encourage the provision of a wide range of jobs appropriate for existing and
future residents, to support town centres to be economically viable and vibrant, to promote development
opportunities in and around the market towns and to support more opportunities for residents to walk, cycle
and use public transport.

Community Strategy Objectives: develop and promote the market towns and ensure an appropriate provision
of land for business.

7.2 Office buildings tend to be used more intensively than other types of business premises (in terms of the
number of workers per given area of floorspace). Hence to help reduce the need for travel by private car, it is
important to locate large office developments in areas where there is relatively good access by public transport.
National guidance suggests that such proposals are most appropriately located in town centres wherever possible;
as well as being accessible locations, this can help to support the vitality and viability of other town centre uses
such as shops and restaurants. Where a suitable town centre site is not available, policies could steers office
proposals to the next most accessible locations.

7.3 Small office schemes do not need to follow the sequential approach, as it is recognised that modest
employment-generating uses can help to provide jobs in rural areas, and do not have the same potential impact
as larger schemes in terms of trip generation. Nonetheless, it will be important to ensure that any increase in traffic
that may be generated does not have an adverse impact upon the rural road network.

129
39



7

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

The need to ensure office development is located to reduce the need to travel by the private car.

Policies will set out a sequential test for large office developments, smaller office developments will not be
subject to this sequential test.

Reasonable alternatives?

7.4 The requirement to adopt a sequential approach to locating office developments is required by national
guidance (PPS6).

7.5 A threshold needs to be set to assess what constitutes a large office development to which the sequential
test applies. This could be 1ha or 1000m?, in line with the DCLG definition for major development, or a lower
threshold of 0.5ha or 500m? which may be more appropriate in the local context given the need to steer high-density
forms of employment towards the most sustainable locations.

What size threshold should be used to determine large scale office development?

Location of industrial and warehouse development

Corporate Plan Objectives: to encourage a strong business community which supports new enterprise, to
encourage the provision of a wide range of jobs appropriate for existing and future residents and to support
more opportunities for residents to walk, cycle and use public transport.

Community Strategy Objective: ensure an appropriate provision of land for business.

7.6 As well as being occupied less intensively than office buildings, industrial and warehouse developments are
much more likely to generate heavy vehicle movements, making them less appropriate for town centre locations.
Nonetheless, in order to prevent inappropriate building in rural areas and limit the loss of undeveloped land, it is
important to site major industrial or warehouse schemes in urban locations or in places where similar development
already exists. In all cases consideration should be given to reducing the need to travel, and increasing opportunities
to make journeys by foot, cycle or public transport.

130
40



I

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

7.7 As with office developments, a more flexible approach is appropriate in relation to small industrial and
warehouse schemes, which can also help to provide jobs in rural areas. However, given their potential to generate
heavy vehicle movements, it will be important to ensure that even small schemes will not have an adverse impact
upon the rural road network.

The need to ensure industrial and warehouse development takes place in appropriate locations.

Policies will set out locations for large scale industrial and warehouse development in sustainable locations,
and will allow small scale industrial and warehouse development in a wider range of locations.

Reasonable alternatives?

7.8 None. National and strategic guidance indicates the importance of focusing such schemes on urban areas
and previously-developed sites, and taking account of access by non-car modes

7.9 A threshold needs to be set to assess what constitutes large scale industrial and warehouse development.
This could be 1ha or 1000m?, in line with the DCLG definition of major development but this would limit it to only
the very large proposals. A more local threshold of 0.5ha or 500m? may be more appropriate as developments
above this threshold are more likely to harm the character of rural areas.

What size threshold should be used to determine large scale industrial and warehouse development?

Redevelopment of office, industrial and warehouse sites

Corporate Plan Objectives: to encourage a strong business community which supports new enterprise, to
encourage the provision of a wide range of jobs appropriate for existing and future residents and to support
more opportunities for residents to walk, cycle and use public transport.

Community Strategy Objectives: maintain business confidence to increase investment which creates
opportunities to work locally and reduces out commuting and develop further opportunities for local people
to improve or gain work related skills.

7.10 Government guidance encourages the re-use of industrial and commercial land for housing and mixed-use
development, in circumstances where an oversupply of land for business purposes exists, or sites are no longer
appropriate for business use. At the same time, the priority given to previously-developed land within larger

131
41



7

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

settlements in finding sites for housing can lead to pressure for re-using industrial and commercial sites even
when they are in active use. The unacceptable loss of business land can harm local firms (who may find it difficult
to find suitable replacement sites), lead to a loss of local employment, create pressure for development at the
edge of settlements, and increase the need to travel to work. The availability of local employment that is suited
to the skills of the local workforce is particularly important given high levels of net out-commuting from
Huntingdonshire.

7.11 ltis important to balance the Government's emphasis on re-use of previously developed land before
greenfield land with the need to ensure that housing, jobs, leisure and retail are accessible by public transport,
walking and cycling. The Council would like to retain a compatible mix of uses and keep a balance between
residential, employment and other uses ensuring that sustainable communities are retained by putting reasonable
checks in place to ensure that industrial and commercial sites are not lost prematurely.

The need to ensure employment sites are not lost prematurely.

Policies will set out criteria to ensure that development proposals do not result in the premature loss of
employment sites.

Reasonable alternatives?

7.12 No restrictions could be placed on the re-use of industrial and commercial land for other purposes, but this
could be harmful to local firms and employment opportunities, increase the pressure for development outside
urban areas, and increase the need to travel to work.

Do you agree that policies should be included to prevent the premature loss of employment sites?

7.13 A size threshold would need to be included in policies to set out which sites will be protected. A 1ha or
1,000m? threshold, in line with the DCLG definition of major development, could be used. However a lower threshold
of 0.5ha or 500m? would increase the extent to which the need for employment sites' retention could be checked
prior to their conversion to other uses.

What size threshold should we use for protecting employment sites?

132
42



I

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

Location of tourist facilities

Corporate Plan Objective: to support more opportunities for residents to walk, cycle and use public transport.

Community Strategy Obijectives: develop the tourist product and develop existing and new opportunities for
cultural and leisure activities.

7.14 Tourism and leisure are important contributors to the local economy, although there is further scope for
growth of the sector, drawing particularly upon the district’s environmental assets. It is important that tourism-related
development takes place in a sustainable manner, and in particular to conserve the countryside and promote
schemes in locations accessible by non-car modes. Directing most tourist-related development to the Market
Towns and Key Service Centres will help to achieve these ends.

7.15 Policies should apply both to accommodation for visitors and to attractions and should recognise that
benefits can accrue from allowing existing facilities to expand, or through the conversion or re-development of
existing buildings. Greater flexibility is also appropriate for small developments, which can help provide jobs in
rural areas; as well as enabling such schemes within Smaller Settlements. Limited development in the countryside
is allowed if associated with farm diversification, strategic green space enhancement projects or waterways (these
last two categories offering particular scope for broadening visits to Huntingdonshire).

The need to ensure tourism development is sustainable, conserves the countryside and is accessible by
non-car modes of travel.

Polices will set out where proposals for major and minor tourist facilities and touring caravan and camp sites
can be located to ensure development is sustainable. They will also include criteria to ensure development
is accessible by a choice of means of transport and to limit occupation to holiday and seasonal occupation.

Reasonable alternatives?

7.16 None in relation to the overall approach to locating tourist facilities in the most sustainable locations, limiting
the impact on the countryside and promoting accessibility by non-car modes as this is required by national and
strategic guidance.

7.17 A threshold needs to be set to assess what constitutes major and minor tourists facilities. This could be
1ha or 1000m?, in line with the DCLG definition of major development but this would limit it to only the very large
proposals. A more local threshold of 0.5ha or 500m? may be more appropriate as developments above this
threshold are more likely to harm the character of rural areas.

133
43



7

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

What size threshold should be used to determine major and minor tourist facilities?

Farm diversification

Community Strategy Objective: develop the rural economy, especially the Ramsey area.

7.18 There is a need to facilitate the appropriate diversification of farm-based operations in order to support
agricultural businesses and sustain the rural economy. Farm diversification can entail various types of related
enterprise, ranging from food processing, farm shops, tourist accommodation and providing recreation facilities
to the creation of workshops for letting to local firms. It is important to ensure that diversification schemes bring
long-term and genuine benefits to individual farm operations and the wider rural area.

7.19 Diversification will in most cases involve changing the use of land and/or re-using (or redeveloping) existing
buildings. Development on new sites will be discouraged unless it enables the clearance and replacement of a
badly-sited or inappropriate structure.

The need to facilitate the appropriate diversification of farm-based operations to support agricultural businesses
and sustain the rural economy.

Criteria based policy to set out the circumstances in which developments forming part of a rural diversification
scheme would be allowed including the criteria which need to be met if the proposed development is on
previously developed land.

Reasonable alternatives?

7.20 Any building on previously undeveloped land in association with farm diversification schemes could be
prohibited in order to maximise protecting of the countryside from further development. However, this would place
a more stringent limitation on the ability of farm businesses to diversify, which in itself could harm the character
of the countryside as healthy farm businesses are necessary if farmers are to be able to maintain their holdings.

134
44



I

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

Do you agree that development on previously undeveloped land in association with farm diversification should
be allowed in limited circumstances?

Town centres, primary shopping areas and primary frontages

Corporate Plan Objectives: to support town centres to be economically viable and vibrant and to promote
development opportunities in and around the market towns.

Community Strategy Objective: develop and promote the market towns.

7.21 Huntingdonshire’s town centres perform a variety of functions. As well as providing a wide range of shops
and services, they are centres of employment, entertainment and tourism, and a focus for public transport routes.
They also offer opportunities for providing housing in locations where the need to travel is minimised. Maintaining
the vitality and viability of these centres is important if these functions are to be retained and enhanced.

7.22 Defining the town centres and primary shopping areas provides a clear basis for the operation of policies
to guide the location of retail, leisure and business development, and to promote higher residential densities in
places with good access to facilities. Identifying primary shopping frontages within the town centres is an important
tool in maintaining their attractiveness as shopping destinations, as a concentration of retail facilities contributes
strongly to the vitality and viability of a centre. It also helps to ensure the continued availability of a wide range of
shops that can be accessed by a choice of transport modes.

7.23 A concentration of non-retail uses in primary frontages can have an adverse impact upon their appearance
and role as core shopping areas. However, policies can allow for a limited amount of non-retail use within primary
frontages, in recognition of the fact that complementary activities (such as food and drink outlets and financial
services) can support the attractiveness of these areas so long as they do not come to dominate them.

The need to retail retain uses within primary shopping areas.

Policies will define town centres, primary shopping areas and primary shopping frontages and will limit the
percentage of non-retail uses within primary shopping frontages.

Reasonable alternatives?

135
45



7

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

7.24 The identification of town centres is required by national and strategic guidance, and it is appropriate to
draw their boundaries so as to reflect the role that they perform.

7.25 There could be no attempt to designate primary shopping frontages, allowing instead greater diversity of
employment, services and facilities to be located throughout the town centres without distinguishing any particular
locality where retail uses should predominate. However, this could reduce the concentration of A1(shop) uses
within the core shopping areas, thereby having a detrimental impact on the vitality and viability of both these areas
and the town centres as a whole.

Do you agree that policies should define primary shopping frontages and limit the amount of non-retail
development within these?

Location of retail and leisure development

Corporate Plan Objectives: to support town centres to be economically viable and vibrant, to make town
centres and key settlements accessible and to support opportunities for residents to walk, cycle and use
public transport.

Community Strategy Objective: develop and promote the market towns.

7.26 Directing large retail and leisure developments to the town centres helps to underpin their vitality and viability
and limits the need to travel by car. It also means that services and facilities are accessible to those who do not
have access to private transport. Where suitable sites within the town centres do not exist, and there is a need
for the development, schemes should be located in the most sustainable locations possible in terms of accessibility.
Proposals should not have an adverse impact upon town centre facilities as it is important to safeguard against
harm to the centres of Huntingdonshire’s market towns.

7.27 Greater flexibility can be allowed in locating smaller retail and leisure developments that are unlikely to
have a detrimental impact upon the town centres, will attract fewer numbers of people, and which will in some
cases provide for neighbourhood or village shopping needs. Nevertheless, it is still important to locate these
facilities where the best opportunities exist to reach them by non-car modes.

The need to maintain the vitality and viability of town centres.

136
46



I

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

Criteria based policy to set out a sequential approach to the location of large and minor retail and leisure
development and to maximise accessibility by walking, cycling and public transport.

Reasonable alternatives?
7.28 None. This approach is required by national and strategic guidance.

Telecommunications

Corporate Plan Objective: to work to ensure that communities are inclusive.

Community Strategy Objective: improve access to and the provision of services in rural areas.

7.29 Modern telecommunications are an important part of life for local communities and make a significant
contribution to the national economy. They have a specific role in promoting sustainable communities, by helping
to counteract the effects of relative remoteness in rural areas, and limiting the need to travel for work,
information/learning and shopping. It is government policy to facilitate the growth of new and existing
telecommunications systems whilst keeping the environmental impact to a minimum. Policy should reflects this
advice by setting out appropriate criteria to guide the location and design of necessary development.

7.30 As telecommunications technology changes rapidly, it is likely that some equipment will become redundant
over time. Hence it is reasonable to impose conditions requiring its removal should this occur, in order to prevent
unnecessary environmental intrusion (especially where masts and associated equipment are situated in the open
countryside).

The need to ensure the environmental impact of telecommunications equipment is minimised.

A criteria based policy will ensure that impact of telecommunications development is minimised and that
redundant equipment is removed.

Reasonable alternatives?

7.31 None. This approach is required by national guidance.

137
47



8

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

8 Glossary

Adoption
The point at which the final agreed version of a document comes fully into use.

Affordable Housing

Housing available at a significant discount below market levels so as to be affordable to householders who cannot
either rent or purchase property that meets their needs on the open market. It can include social-rented housing
and intermediate housing.

Amenity
A positive element or elements that contribute to the overall character or enjoyment of an area. For example, open
land, trees, historic buildings and the inter-relationship between them, or less tangible factors such as tranquility.

Annual Monitoring Report (AMR)
Document produced each year to report on progress in producing the Local Development Framework and
implementing its policies.

Areas of Strategic Greenspace Enhancement
Areas which have been identified as having opportunities to expand and create strategic greenspace.

Biodiversity
The whole variety of life on earth. It includes all species of plants and animals, their genetic variation and the
ecosystems of which they are a part.

Brownfield

Previously developed land (PDL). In the sequential approach this is preferable to greenfield land.
Previously-developed land is that which is or was occupied by a permanent structure (excluding agricultural or
forestry buildings), and associated fixed surface infrastructure. The definition includes the curtilage of the
development. Previously-developed land may occur in both built-up and rural settings. A precise definition is
included in Planning Policy Statement 3 ‘Housing'.

Built-up Framework

Excludes buildings that are clearly detached from the main body of the settlement, and gardens and other
undeveloped land within the curtilage of buildings at the edge of the settlement, especially where those gardens
relate more to the surrounding countryside than they do to the built-up parts of the settlement.

Community Infrastructure
Facilities available for use by the community. Examples include village halls, doctors’ surgeries, pubs, churches
and children play areas. It may also include areas of informal open space and sports facilities.

Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO)
The power given to the Local Authority to acquire land for redevelopment which may include development by
private developers.

Conservation Area

A designated area of special architectural and/or historical interest, the character or appearance of which it is
desirable to preserve or enhance. It is a recognition of the value of a group of buildings and their surroundings
and the need to protect not just individual buildings but the character of the area as a whole.

The Core Strategy

138
48



8

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

This document which is a Development Plan Document containing the overall vision, objectives and policies for
managing development in Huntingdonshire.

County Structure Plan
An existing document containing strategic planning policies and proposals for the county. Under the new system
it will be phased out and replaced by policies in the Regional Spatial Strategy and Development Plan Documents.

Curtilage
The area occupied by a property and land closely associated with that property. E.g. in terms of a house and
garden, the garden forms the curtilage of the property.

Development Plan
The documents which together provide the main point of reference when considering planning proposals. Under
the new system the Development Plan includes the Regional Spatial Strategy and Development Plan Documents.

Development Plan Documents
A document containing local planning policies or proposals which form part of the Development Plan, which has
been subject to independent examination.

European Sites
Consist of Special Protection Areas (SPAs), Special Areas of Conservation (SACs) and sites on draft lists for
protection as outlined in Regulation 10 of the Habitats Regulations 1994.

Examination
Independent inquiry into the soundness of a draft Development Plan Document or Draft Statement of Community
Involvement, chaired by an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State, whose recommendations are binding.

Greenfield
Land which has not been developed before. Applies to most sites outside built-up area boundaries.

Habitat
The natural home or environment of a plant or animal.

Housing Needs Assessment

An assessment of housing needs in the local area. This assessment plays a crucial role in underpinning the
planning policies relating to affordable housing. In addition, the information on local needs is required to determine
the location of such housing and guide new investment.

Infrastructure
A collective term for services such as roads, electricity, sewerage, water, education and health facilities.

Issues and Options preliminary consultation document

This is the first stage in the production of development plan documents. The Council brings possible issues and
options for the District into the public domain, in order to generate responses to aid the development of the
‘Preferred Options’ development documents.

Key Workers
Essential public sector workers such as nurses, teachers and social workers.

Landscape Character Assessment
An assessment to identify different landscape areas which have a distinct character based on a recognisable
pattern of elements, including combinations of geology, landform, soils, vegetation, land use and human settlement.

139
49



8

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

Local Development Document
The collective term for Development Plan Documents, the Proposals Map, Supplementary Planning Documents
and the Statement of Community Involvement.

Local Development Framework
The collection of documents to be produced by Huntingdonshire District Council that will provide the new planning
policy framework for the district.

Local Development Scheme
Sets out the Council's programme for preparing and reviewing statutory planning documents.

Local Strategic Partnership
A group of public, private, voluntary and community organisations and individuals that is responsible for preparing
the Community Strategy.

Major development
The creation of 10 of more dwellings within one site.

Material consideration
Factors that may be taken into account when making planning decisions.

Minor development
The creation of up to 9 dwellings on one site.

Mitigation measures
These are measures requested/ carried out in order to limit the damage by a particular development/ activity.

ODPM - Office of the Deputy Prime Minister
The Government department responsible for planning and the production of planning guidance.

Open Space and Recreational Land

Open space within settlements includes parks, village greens, play areas, sports pitches, undeveloped plots,
semi-natural areas and substantial private gardens. Outside built-up areas this includes parks, sports pitches and
allotments.

Planning Policy Guidance Notes (PPG)/ Planning Policy Statements (PPS)
Central Government produce Planning Policy Guidance Notes, to be replaced by Planning Policy Statements
which direct planning in the country.

Preferred Options
Public consultation on the intended content of a Development Plan Document, prior to the DPD itself being drafted.
It is a statutory stage of the Local Development Framework preparation for the District.

Previously Developed Land (PDL)
(See Brownfield.)

Regional Spatial Strategies (RSS)
Plan covering the East of England as a whole, and setting out strategic policies and proposals for managing
land-use change.

Registered Social Landlords
These are independent housing organisations registered with the Housing Corporation under the Housing Act
1996. Most are housing associations, but there are also trusts, co-operatives and companies.

140
50



8

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

Residential infilling
The development of a small site within the built-up framework or defined limits of a settlement by up to 3 dwellings.

Rural Exception Site
Sites solely for the development of affordable housing on land within or adjoining existing small rural communities,
which would not otherwise be released for general market housing.

Sequential Approach

A planning principle that seeks to identify, allocate or develop certain types or locations of land before others. For
example, brownfield sites before greenfield sites, or town centre retail sites before out-of-centre sites. In terms of
employment a sequential approach would favour an employment use over mixed use and mixed use over
non-employment uses.

Settlement Hierarchy
Settlements are categorised in a hierarchy based on the range of services, facilities and employment opportunities
in the settlement, access to education and non-car access to higher-order centres.

Social rented

Social Rented Housing is housing available to rent at below market levels. Lower rents are possible because the
Government subsidises local authorities and registered social landlords in order to meet local affordable housing
needs.

Spatial Planning

Spatial planning goes beyond traditional land use planning. It brings together and integrates policies for the
development and use of land with other policies and programmes which influence the nature of places and how
they function. This will include policies which can impact on land use, for example, by influencing the demands
on or needs for development, but which are not capable of being delivered solely or mainly through the granting
of planning permission and may be delivered through other means.

Stakeholders
Groups, individuals or organisations which may be affected by or have a key interest in a development proposal
or planning policy. They may often be experts in their field or represent the views of many people.

Statement of Community Involvement
Document setting out the Council's approach to involving the community in preparing planning documents and
making significant development control decisions.

Statement of Compliance

A report or statement issued by the local planning authority explaining how they have complied with the Town
and Country Planning Regulations 2004 and their Statement of Community Involvement during consultation on
Local Development Documents.

Statutory Development Plan
The Development Plan for an area which has been taken to statutory adoption. In other words, it has been through
all the formal stages and has been approved by the relevant Government office and adopted by the Council.

Statutory Organisations
Organisations the Local Authority has to consult with at consultation stages of the Local Development Framework.

Strategic Greenspace

These are areas of greenspace that serve a wider population than just the District, for example Paxton Pits, The
Great Fen and Hinchingbrooke Country Park.

141
51



8

Huntingdonshire District Council | Development Control Policies Development Plan Document - Issues and Options

Submission
Point at which a draft Development Plan Document (or the draft Statement of Community Involvement) is published
for consultation. At the same time it is submitted to the Secretary of State in advance of its examination.

Supplementary Planning Guidance
Provides additional guidance on the interpretation or application of policies and proposals in the Local Plan or
Structure Plan. Under the new system this will be phased out and replaced by Supplementary Planning Documents.

Supplementary Planning Documents
Provides additional guidance on the interpretation or application of policies and proposals in a Development Plan
Document.

Sustainable Development

In broad terms this means development that meets the needs of the present without compromising the ability of
future generations to meet their own needs. The Government has set out five guiding principles for sustainable
development in its strategy “Securing the future - UK Government strategy for sustainable development’. The five
guiding principles, to be achieved simultaneously, are: Living within environmental limits; Ensuring a strong healthy
and just society; Achieving a sustainable economy; Promoting good governance; and Using sound science
responsibly.

Sustainability Appraisal (SA)/ Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA)

The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires Local Development Documents to be prepared with
a view to contributing to the achievement of sustainable development. Sustainability appraisal is a systematic
appraisal process. The purpose of sustainability appraisal is to appraise the social, environmental and economic
effects of the strategies and policies in a Local Development Document from the outset of the preparation process.
This will ensure that decisions are made that accord with sustainable principles.

Tenure
Refers to the way in which a property is held e.g. freehold, leasehold, shared equity or rented.

Tests of Soundness

These are tests to ensure that the document produced is sound. For further guidance please refer to 'Development
Plans Examination - A Guide to the Process of Assessing the Soundness of Development Plan Documents'
produced by the Planning Inspectorate (2005).

Use Class Orders
Planning regulations outlining a schedule of uses to which a given premises or building can be put. Some changes
of use require planning permission.

Vitality and Viability
In terms of retailing, vitality is the capacity of a centre to grow or to develop its level of commercial activity. Viability
is the capacity of a centre to achieve the commercial success necessary to sustain the existence of the centre.

Windfall site

A previously developed site not specifically allocated for development in a development plan, but which unexpectedly
becomes available for development during the lifetime of a plan. Most "windfalls" are referred to in a housing
context.

142
52



Huntingdon West Area Action Plan
- Issues & Options

Huntingdonshire District Council

143



Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

Introduction 3
What is the AAP 3
What will the AAP include 3
Purpose 3
Next Steps 3
How to get involved 4
Local and Policy Context 5
Area Covered & Description 5
Why does Huntingdon West need an Area Action Plan 9
Vision and Objectives 10
Draft Vision 10
Draft Objectives 1
Key Issues and Options 13
Sustainable Development 16
Movement 18
Green Space 22
Design 25
Ermine Street/ George Street area 26
Huntingdon Railway Station 4
Hinchingbrooke 44
Thrapston Road/ Huntingdon Road, Brampton 52
Alternatives 54
Phasing and Implementation 55
B Glossary 57
Appendix 1 62
National Policy 62
Regional Policy 62
Local Policy & Related Plans 62
Sustainability Appraisal & Appropriate Assessment 63

144



1

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

1 Introduction

What is the AAP

1.1 National planning guidance recommends Area Action Plans be produced for areas where significant levels
of change or conservation are needed. Huntingdonshire District Council has therefore decided to prepare an Area
Action Plan for Huntingdon West which will provide a framework for development in the short, medium and long
term. It is needed because significant land-use changes are likely to come forward, including mixed-use
redevelopment of the Ermine Street/ George Street area, changes to the road system as a result of the A14
improvements, and the need to guide development of the Hinchingbrooke Community Campus including an
extension to the Country Park.

1.2 The Area Action Plan, once adopted, will form part of the Huntingdonshire Local Development Framework
and will be in conformity with the Regional Spatial Strategy. It will also need to be consistent with the
Huntingdonshire Core Strategy which is also in production.

What will the AAP include

1.3 The Area Action Plan will include site specific allocations and general policies for the area. It will:

° consider land uses

° consider the form of development
° set out specific standards which will be applied to the area.

1.4 The Area Action Plan will need to take into account:

existing and surrounding uses
the impact of proposals on other parts of the town
transport links

impact on landscape, amenity and the existing built environment, including listed buildings and the
conservation area.

1.5 Further detail on the proposals included in the Area Action Plan will be provided in the form of a master plan.

Purpose

1.6 This Issues and Options document is the first formal stage in the production of the Area Action Plan. Its
purpose is to give the opportunity to comment on the key issues identified and on the options identified to address
these issues. It also gives the opportunity to raise additional issues and to put forward alternative options. The
representations made will be considered and used to help produce the Preferred Options paper which will set out
the Council's favoured approach to development of the area.

Next Steps

1.7 The Area Action Plan will go through a number of stages in its production. The first of these is this Issues
and Options document. It will be followed by:

° Preferred Options Consultation (December 2007)
° Draft Plan Submission to the Secretary of State (September 2008)

145
3



1

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

Consultation on the Submission Plan (September 2008)
Consultation on site allocation objections put forward by objectors
Independent examination - Hearing (February 2009)

Adoption (December 2009)

How to get involved

1.8 Itis important that we get your views on how Huntingdon West should be developed. Copies of this document
have been sent to key stakeholders and are available at Libraries and Access Points across the District and at
the District Council Offices at Pathfinder House, St Mary's Street, Huntingdon. An interactive version of the
document is also available on the Council's website.

1.9 You can comment on the document online via our interactive version at http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk or email
your comments to us at I[df@huntsdc.gov.uk or write to us at the following address:

Planning Division
Huntingdonshire District Council
Pathfinder House

St Mary's Street

Huntingdon

PE29 3TN

146
4



2

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

2 Local and Policy Context

Area Covered & Description

2.1 The site covered by the Area Action Plan is illustrated on maps 2.1 and 2.2. It comprises approximately 247
hectares of land encompassing the Ermine Street/ George Street area, Huntingdon railway station, Hinchingbrooke
Community Campus and Hinchingbrooke Country Park.

2.2 The Ermine Street/ George Street area is one where there is potential for major redevelopment. It is located
immediately west of the town centre and east of the railway line. The site is currently in mixed use including
factories, offices, car parking and housing.

2.3 The remainder of the site lies to the west of the town. It is bounded by the A14 to the north and west, and
Huntingdon/Brampton Road to the south. This section comprises the Hinchingbrooke Community Campus, that
is, the Fire Service HQ, Cambridgeshire Constabulary HQ, Hinchingbrooke Hospital, Hinchingbrooke School and
Hinchingbrooke House. Hinchingbrooke Country Park. Land to the south west is also included within the Area
Action Plan as is Hinchingbrooke Business Park and adjacent housing and Huntingdon railway station.

2.4 Map 2.1 identifies potential areas of change within Huntingdon West. Map 2.3 shows the 1:100 year floodplain
and County Wildlife Sites within this area.

2.5 The local landscape character areas comprise:

o the Ouse Landscape” underlying the Hinchingbrooke Community Campus in the western section of the area

° Central Claylands" underlying the Ermine Street/ George Street area on the eastern boundary of the Area

Action Plan.

2.6 Understanding the landscape is important to formulating policies that are sensitive to, and protective of, their
locality. These landscapes influence the architecture and wildlife.

i as defined in the Landscape and Townscape Assessment 2006
ii as defined in the Landscape and Townscape Assessment 2006

147
5



e
X
O]

-
C
@)

@)
>

O

c
<
o

c
9
)

Q
<

©

O]

—
<
-

0
=

c

o
e

(@]
=
=

[

>
I
©

c

=]

o]
(&)
-

o
‘=
-
2
(a]

[}
=
<

[72]

c

o
o

o

=
=

c

=]
I

Local and Pol

Issues & Options

uoness
Kemjey

. @jooiqBuysuiy .

abueyo Jo seale |enusiod |z dep

a2 UOIOWER.G

7, NOLIWVYE

peoy uopbunjuny K
/peoy uojsdeayy

/
/

" L
abueys jo seaay

148



Local and Policy Context

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

Huntingdon Weﬂ-nraa Action Plan

Map 2.2 Huntingdon West aerial photo

149
7



Local and Policy Context

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

AN THTN A5 -/'i‘;g,

Assessment 100
year Floodplain
County Wildlife Site
Linear County g
Wildlife Site

|

_-'f il
Strategic Flood Risk
Foem bitimas
oy
-:'.-":e,._‘

5 2
toc
SR & 0
G52 S
< .= S ®
mmg\ E 5
o090 : 8
PE G 5 w
SEQ = C
cEo E ¢
Ssc8 s 5
SRR < 3
v @ (h
E
|;>'a ™
s CcC N
TW @ a
\ ©
(=



2

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

Why does Huntingdon West need an Area Action Plan

2.7 There are a number of reasons why Huntingdon West requires an Area Action Plan. Huntingdon’s existing
town centre has reached capacity and to maintain Huntingdon town centres role as a principal retail and employment
centre and enable the town’s economy to grow, this needs to expand. Within Huntingdon West there are two sites
which are close to the town centre which, following government guidance, are the next sequentially preferential
locations for town centre uses.

2.8 The Huntingdon West area is in a very sustainable location. It is close to the town centre, railway station
and public transport routes and within it there are a number of facilities including the hospital and Hinchingbrooke
School. It is therefore a suitable location for additional growth to be focused and for additional facilities to be
provided.

2.9 Congestion on the Huntingdon ring road is a significant problem and an Area Action Plan will help to address
this issue in the context of additional development in Huntingdon West. In addition to this the potential removal
of the viaduct between Huntingdon and Godmanchester as part of the proposed A14 improvements may provide
the opportunity for re-configuration of the road system in Huntingdon West.

2.10 The population of Huntingdon is growing and therefore there is an increasing need for recreational
space. Within Huntingdon West there are opportunities to increase the amount and quality of recreational space
at Hinchingbrooke Country Park and at Views Common.

Do you agree that the area defined on map 2.1 is the correct area for the Huntingdon West Area Action Plan
to cover?

Hinchingbrooke Business Park

151
9



3

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

3 Vision and Objectives

Draft Vision

3.1 The draft vision for the Area Action Plan draws on the Huntingdonshire Community Strategy, the Corporate
Plan 'Growing Success'and the Government's vision for sustainable development in Securing the Future, delivering
the UK's Sustainable Development Strategy.

3.2 The creation of cleaner, safer, greener and healthier communities is an important part of the sustainable
development agenda. The Community Strategy's vision for Huntingdonshire is to be a 'place where future
generations have a balanced and good quality of life'. To support this vision Growing Success sets out that the
Council will strive to: make the most of opportunities that come from growth by promoting the development of
sustainable communities, enable people to realise their full potential and have access to suitable jobs, homes
and services, work towards a balance between social, economic and environmental needs and maintain 'excellent’
standards.

3.3 The following draft vision has been produced as a starting point. We are seeking your views on whether this
is the right vision for the area.

Vision Statement

Huntingdon West will create a vibrant new quarter for the town by rejuvenating this part of the town which
will contribute towards the character of Huntingdon. It will provide an attractive green gateway into the town
and will be characterised by high quality greenspace with enhancement of Hinchingbrooke Country Park
and Views Common.

The Ermine Street/ George Street and Railway Station area will be transformed into a thriving area offering
modern office development, a range of high quality residential developments, a retail centre which will
complement the existing town centre and enhance the vitality and viability of Huntingdon, and a high quality
transport hub.

The Hinchingbrooke Community Campus could become a hub for educational and other community institutional
uses and associated employment development.

The Thrapston/ Huntingdon Road area in Brampton could be a location for high quality development which
will be sensitive to the location and will help maintain the separation between Huntingdon and Brampton.

Huntingdon West will be an exemplar for sustainable living where development will link living, working and
leisure and will be built to a high standard with excellent pedestrian, cycle and public transport links to the
surrounding area.

Is this the right vision for Huntingdon West?

152
10



3

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

If not, what do you think the vision should be?

Draft Objectives

3.4 To realise the vision a set of objectives need to be developed. The following draft objectives draw on the
Huntingdonshire Core Strategy, the Corporate Plan, the Community Strategy and on national planning objectives.

Sustainability

Objective 1 - To ensure development is sustainable
Objective 2 - To maximise the re-use of previously developed land
Objective 3 - To protect, preserve and enhance wildlife and biodiversity

Function

Objective 4 - To create an appropriate mix of uses

Objective 5 - To ensure that development complements the existing town centre and strengthens its vitality
and viability

Objective 6 - To enhance opportunities for recreation

Local Distinctiveness

Objective 7 - To create an attractive new gateway into the town

Objective 8 - To ensure a green gap is retained between Huntingdon and Brampton
Objective 9 - To create a high quality built environment

Objective 10 - To protect and enhance the landscape

Objective 11 - To retain the setting of Hinchingbrooke House

Accessibility

Objective 12 - To maximise walking, cycling and use of public transport
Objective 13 - To improve links with the surrounding area

Implementation

Objective 14 - To determine appropriate phasing for development
Objective 15 - To identify funding requirements
Objective 16 - To secure appropriate infrastructure

Reasonable alternatives?

3.5 No otherreasonable alternatives have been identified as these objectives are essential to ensure development
of the area is consistent with national and strategic objectives.

153
11



Vision and Obijectives

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

Do you agree that these objectives are appropriate and all relevant issues are addressed?

|
Residential-BDevelopment at Hinchingbrooke

154
12



4

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

4 Key Issues and Options

4.1 Huntingdonshire faces a number of issues in the period up to 2021. The District needs to meet the targets
set out in the draft Regional Spatial Strategy (RSS) and national planning policy. Huntingdon West offers opportunity
to contribute towards the achievement of these. The main issues which have been identified are:

How can the Area Action Plan contribute towards achieving sustainable development and re-using previously
developed land?

4.2 The Area Action Plan needs to consider the principles of sustainable development ™ as outlined in the
Government's Securing the Future, delivering UK sustainable development strategy.

How can the Area Action Plan contribute towards providing housing for all members of the community?

4.3 The draft RSS requires Huntingdonshire to provide 11,200 homes between 2001 and 2021. Huntingdon and
the neighbouring market towns of St Neots and St Ives are part of the Cambridge Sub-Region defined in draft
RSS14 and the Structure Plan. The Cambridge Sub-Region included Cambirdge and the ring of market towns
which surround it.

4.4 The provision of affordable housing is a priority set out in the Council's Housing Strategy 2006-11. Affordable
housing includes social rented and intermediate housing, such as key worker housing. In 2006 an update to the
Huntingdonshire Housing Needs Assessment (2002) highlighted a need for an additional 585 affordable units per
annum in the District to address the current shortfall, 4 of which should be for Key Worker households. The
emerging Core Strategy will include a requirement for affordable housing which will be applied in Huntingdon
West. A Market Housing Assessment is being prepared for the Cambridge Sub-Region which will estimate housing
need and demand in terms of affordable and market housing, determined how the distribution of need and demand
varies across the Sub-Region and consider future demographic trends and identify the accommodation requirements
of specific groups. The Market Housing Assessment is expected to be completed in spring/ summer 2007.

4.5 Higher densities where appropriate can assist the provision of sustainable development as they promote
sustainable travel patterns and help make local services viable. Developing at higher densities also ensures more
efficient use of land.

How can the Area Action Plan contribute to the provision of employment opportunities?

i World Commission on Environment & Development, 1987

155
13



4

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

4.6 The Employment Land Review (HDC, 2007) identified a net take-up of just over 8 hectares of new employment
land per annum in the District over the five years from 2002 and identified 32 hectares of new and deliverable
employment land available for development. To support economic growth it is important that sufficient land is
brought forward in suitable locations to accommodate this growth. Huntingdon West includes sites which are in
close proximity to the town centre and the railway station which could be suitable to meet some of the District's
employment land needed to 2021 and could offer a unique quality environment that is not available in other sites.

How can the Area Action Plan contribute to future shopping opportunities in the town?

4.7 In 2006 an update to the Huntingdonshire Retail Assessment (HDC, 2005) identified an aspirational target
of 20,000 sq.m additional comparison shopping floorspace across the District by 2021; this is the equivalent of
5.1 Huntingdon Sainsburys' or 14.3 Huntingdon Waitrose's. It suggests that around 12,000 sg.m of this should
be in Huntingdon; this is the equivalent of 3 Sainsburys' or 8.6 Waitrose's. Huntingdon West provides an opportunity
to accommodate some of this additional floorspace.

4.8 Interms of convenience shopping the assessment identified a modest requirement of around 3,900 sq.m of
additional floorspace in the latter part of the plan period, this is equivalent to 1 Huntingdon Sainsburys.

How can the Area Action Plan address the reconfiguration of the road system to meet the needs of Huntingdon
West and the wider town?

4.9 There are two important issues to consider in relation to the road system. The first is the rerouting of the
A14 between Ellington and Fen Drayton. Although this has not yet been finalised, the viaduct which currently runs
over Views Common and the Railway Station may be removed if the decision is taken to create a three lane A14
south of Huntingdon. If this viaduct is removed the existing A14 could become a local road between Hinchingbrooke
Hospital and Cambridgeshire Constabulary Headquarters to join the local road network at Brampton Road.

4.10 The second is the opportunity to create a link road in the Ermine Street/ George Street area to relieve
congestion on the ring road. This new link road is proposed in the Huntingdon and Godmanchester Market Town
Transport Strategy as part of the proposed town centre and ring road measures. The Huntingdon and
Godmanchester Market Town Transport Strategy is included in appendix 8d of the Cambridgeshire Local Transport
Plan 2006-2011 (2006). The potential for the Ermine Street/ George Street link road is not dependent upon the
removal of the viaduct between Huntingdon and Godmanchester and could go ahead even if this does not take
place.

4.11 The proposed new road layout is shown on map 4.1.

What additional infrastructure is needed in Huntingdon West?

156
14



4

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

4.12 ltis important that development is supported by adequate infrastructure. Development in Huntingdon
West should not put added pressure on existing infrastructure. Therefore, the provision of additional infrastructure
will be required in line with the Council's forthcoming Supplementary Planning Document on Planning Contributions.

How can the Area Action Plan help address the shortfall of car parking in Huntingdon?

413 Car parking is a key issue in Huntingdon. A report undertaken for Huntingdonshire District Council by
consultants identified an immediate need for short-term parking provision and in the long term the need for long-stay
charging. The study found that at peak time on and off street parking is at effective capacity and the loss of parking
at Pathfinder House and that associated with development at Princes Street will place an immediate short-term
problem on the available public parking. To address these issues the study recommended that 165 spaces be
provided within the ring road and that outside the ring road further provision should be investigated at Bridge Place
and/ or Brampton Road north of Huntingdon Railway Station. In addition to this west of the town centre was seen
as a possible area for short-term parking, subject to landowner negotiations, and also as part of a longer term
strategy for parking in this area. The Area Action Plan needs to consider allocation of public car parks within
Huntingdon West. In addition to the shortage of car parking for the town centre, there are also issues with the
amount of parking at Huntingdon Railway Station being inadequate and with rail users parking in spaces provided
for the town centre; this issue also needs to be addressed through the Area Action Plan.

How does the Area Action Plan ensure the various elements of the plan link together?

4.14 The Area Action Plan is split into various geographical and topic based sections and options are provided
for development within each of these. However, when considering these options the balance of development in
the whole area needs to be considered to ensure that development is complementary throughout the whole
area. Therefore each section should not be considered in isolation.

Do you agree that these are the key issues which the Huntingdon West Area Action Plan needs to consider?

4.15 The following sections of the Area Action Plan look at these issues in more detail and address Area Action
Plan wide uses as well as site-specific issues.

157
15



Key Issues and Options

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

Huntingdon West Area Action Plan 7
Proposed new road layout -’
Ly, 5, N

Map 4.1 Road layout

Sustainable Development

Energy

4.16 A key factor in achieving sustainable development is a reduction in use of energy and in use of energy
from non-renewable energy sources. The emerging Core Strategy will set out a requirement for the percentage
of energy to be provided by on-site renewable energy sources. In addition to this requirement, within Huntingdon
West there are also opportunities to reduce further the carbon footprint of development. This could include the
use of a decentralised energy supply such as combined heat and power or district heating schemes. Combined
heat and power re-uses by products that are normally wasted into the atmosphere and generates heat and power
simultaneously and can achieve a 35% reduction in energy use. Combined heat and power plants can be fuelled
using a variety of fuels including gas, biomass, coppice wood and forestry waste.

158
16



4

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

In addition to renewable energy requirements set out in the Core Strategy, the Area Action Plan will strongly
support, and if possible, require the provision of decentralised energy supplies to meet the energy needs of
a significant proportion of new developments.

Reasonable alternatives?

4.17 Noreasonable alternatives have been identified as the above option is consistent with national and regional
policy and guidance.

Do you agree the above option is appropriate?

4.18 In addition to the use of decentralised heating systems it is also important that new developments are
designed and constructed to maximise sustainability of development. This can be done through a number of
measures including:

° The incorporation of energy efficient devices, energy efficient materials and on-site renewable energy sources,
such as solar panels

The incorporation of water efficiency measures

The use of locally sourced materials and materials with low embodied energy in construction

The incorporation of sustainable drainage or rainwater holding facilities

The incorporation of household recycling and composting facilities

Layouts which maximise the benefits of solar gain

4.19 In 2006 the Government launched The Code for Sustainable Homes. This is a voluntary code which sets
a national standard for sustainable construction and design for new homes. Using the code homes are given a
star rating to rate the overall sustainability of the home. Within Huntingdon West it is important that the achievement
of the standards within this code are encouraged to ensure that development is sustainable.

Within Huntingdon West compliance with the Code for Sustainable Homes will be encouraged.

Reasonable alternatives?

4.20 No reasonable alternatives have been identified as the above option is consistent with national and regional
policy and guidance.

159
17



4

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

Do you agree with the above option?

4.21 Achievement of the highest star rating within the Code for Sustainable Homes requires a zero carbon
development. This means that there are zero net emissions of carbon dioxide from all energy use in the home.

Do you think the Area Action Plan should allocate a site for a zero carbon development?

Movement

4.22 The Area Action Plan needs to consider how people and goods move within Huntingdon West and between
this area and other parts of Huntingdon. Policies in the Area Action Plan should promote sustainable forms of
travel within Huntingdon West and create good links with surrounding areas.

Reconfiguration of the Road Network

4.23 Asdiscussed in the key issues section there is an opportunity within the Ermine Street/ George Street area
to create a new link road to help relieve congestion on the ring road and to allow better circulation around the
town. At the moment the way the Huntingdon ring road operates creates unnecessary vehicle movements for
traffic due to the need to navigate the one way system. A link road between Ermine Street and George Street
would enable traffic to flow in the opposite direction to the ring road and would therefore provide a link between
the northern entry to the town and the western area of Huntingdon. This would reduce the amount of traffic travelling
around the ring road. The new link road could run from George Street, opposite the station entrance, to Ermine
Street adjacent to the Travis Perkins site, see map 4.1. At this point Ermine Street is narrow with a built-up frontage
and the junction width and traffic generated would need to be taken into account.

Do you agree that a new link road is essential for redevelopment of the Ermine Street/ George Street site?

4.24 Congestion is also a significant problem along Hinchingbrooke Park Road particularly at peak times of day,
the majority of traffic is generated by people working at or visiting the Hospital or picking children up from
Hinchingbrooke School. If the rerouting of the A14 results in the removal of the viaduct and the reconfiguration of
the road network as shown on map 4.1 then there may be opportunities to improve the flow of traffic along
Hinchingbrooke Park Road.

Could the reconfiguration of the road network create an opportunity for improvements to traffic flows along
Hinchingbrooke Park Road? If yes how could this be done?

160
18



4

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

Public Transport

4.25 There are a number of public transport routes which serve Huntingdon West although in some cases, such
as the bus service to the Hinchingbrooke Business Park, these are limited to certain times of the day.

Should provision of public transport in Huntingdon West be extended and if so how would you like it to
change?

4.26 As part of the Huntingdon and Godmanchester Market Town Strategy a new bus/rail interchange is being
created at Huntingdon Railway Station. This interchange will allow buses to enter the station and to turn around
and wait in a bus only turning area. Buses will still be unable to turn left out of the station due to the angle of the
exit onto Brampton Road but a new stairway is being created to provide access between the railway station and
a bus lay-by on Brampton Road. The Area Action Plan needs to consider how proposals in Huntingdon West
could help improve access to the station for public transport services, for example the creation of the link road
between Ermine Street and George Street could enable a roundabout to be built with direct access to the railway
station. A link road between Ermine Street and George Street would also improve bus links between the north of
the town and railway station.

How could we better integrate the railway station with other public transport services?

4.27 As part of the programme of public transport improvements in the County a high quality public transport
corridor is being created between Huntingdon and Cambridge. The Guided Bus is proposed in the Cambridgeshire
Local Transport Plan 2006-2011 (2006) and was one of the main recommendations coming out of the Cambridge
to Huntingdon Multi-Modal Study. Between Cambridge and St lves a guideway will be built along the disused
railway line between Cambridge and St lves and on-road bus priority measures will be introduced between St
Ives and Huntingdon. Construction of the Guided Bus has started and it is scheduled to open early in 2009. As
part of the bus priority measures a contra-flow bus lane is currently being created along Walden Road to allow
buses travelling along George Street to turn right along Walden Road to the bus station. This will mean buses no
longer have to go all the way around the ring road and should save approximately 10 minutes journey time.

How should the bus priority measures serving the Guided Bus reflect the proposals contained in the Area
Action Plan?

Walking and Cycling

4.28 The Area Action Plan should maintain existing pedestrian and cycling links and improve pedestrian and
cycling links within the Area Action Plan area and between this area, the town centre and surrounding areas. New
walking/ cycling routes are a key concept of the Huntingdon Vision (2006). Map 4.2 illustrates a number of areas
where improvements to the walking and cycling network could be made including:

161
19



4

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

o Between Hinchingbrooke Business Park and the rest of the Hinchingbrooke development

o Between Brampton and Huntingdon via an extension to the Country Park

° Between Ermine Street/ George Street area and the town centre and links to Stukeley Meadows and Views
Common

° Between Brampton and Hinchingbrooke Community Campus/ Hinchingbrooke Business Park

° Between residential development adjacent to Hinchingbrooke Business Park and the town centre

° Between Hinchingbrooke Campus and the town centre

The Area Action Plan will include new and improved walking and cycling links within the development and
to surrounding areas

Reasonable alternatives?

4.29 No reasonable alternatives have been identified because walking and cycling are sustainable forms of
transport and there is potential for the number of trips made by walking and cycle to increase around the town. This
will result in a fewer number of shorter trips being made by car.

Are there other areas where walking and cycling links need to be improved?

162
20



/)]
C
O
-——
(@R
@
©
c
©
7p]
o
-}
/)]
i)
>
()
X

(2]
c
el
=
o
©]
o3
N
[}
=)
2]
@
1
c
<
o
c
el
i3]
<
©
(O]
—
<
-
N
2
c
o
e
(@]
=
=
c
>
I
©
c
=]
o]
(&)
-
(2]
‘=
=
2
o
[
=
<
(]
c
o
©
o
=
=
c
=]
I

syull BuloAo pue Bupjiem aining z' dep

/

d2 NOLdWvddg

-,

sjuaLuaadu b -
pul pesodosd Ly g

Aem jo
- yfi oygnd

163
21

aming |
unpfug

S _8yooiqbuiysuly

« jaomiau BuioAo pue Bunjjem ayjy o}
~ sjuswaroisduwil pue syulj jeijuajod
uejd uonoy ealy 3sop uopbuiuny



4

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

Green Space

4.30 The Area Action Plan needs to consider how the environment in and around Huntingdon West can be
protected and enhanced.

Biodiversity

4.31 Biodiversity is the wealth of wildlife in terms of numbers of species and their habitats and covers species
considered to be rare as well as common place. The Area Action Plan includes a County Wildlife Site (CWS) -
Hinchingbrooke Gravel Pits, which covers the southern area of Hinchingbrooke Country Park, around the lakes. The
on-going management of the Park and its habitats is crucial to protect and enhance biodiversity within and outside
of the Park.

4.32 Urban spaces can also provide a haven for wildlife. There are two types of urban spaces, green areas
within the built environment, such as parks, and the built development. A range of measures can be incorporated
into new development to encourage biodiversity such as green roofs, nesting and roofing boxes, wildlife friendly
landscaping and sustainable drainage systems. Re-development within Huntingdon West provides an opportunity
to encourage biodiversity through creative design.

4.33 The promotion of biodiversity is interlinked with encouraging green infrastructure. The provision of improved
linkage between existing and proposed green infrastructure resources is key to encouraging biodiversity corridors
and habitats. Footpaths, cycleways and bridleways can double as biodiversity corridors.

How and where within Huntingdon West would you like to see biodiversity enhanced and created?

How much emphasis should be placed on the enhancement and creation of biodiversity habitats?

Hinchingbrooke Country Park

4.34 Hinchingbrooke Country Park covers an area of roughly 70 hectares of grassland, meadows, woodland
and lakes and is home to a wealth of wildlife. The Park is now at capacity and it could be beneficial to expand the
Country Park to offer greater opportunities to local residents. This extension could run south of Alconbury Brook
to include an additional section of Hinchingbrooke Lakes. This would enable walks/ footpaths to be created around
the lakes and would improve links between Brampton and the Country Park and the Hinchingbrooke area. This
would provide a good link for people living in Brampton and work at Hinchingbrooke Business Park.

Do you think the Country Park needs to expand?

164
22



4

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

If yes, how far should the Country Park expand?

How can the Country Park be improved (e.g. what additional features would you like included)?

Views Common

4.35 Views Common is an important area of green open space which is home to a wealth of wildlife. As part of
the proposals to re-route the A14 the viaduct, which currently bisects Views Common, may be removed. This
would make the Common more visually attractive and enhance its status as an important area of green space.

Do you agree that Views Common is an important green space?

If the A14 viaduct is removed should this area remain an important green space?

4.36 Views Common is owned by the Freemen of Huntingdon, it is not access land “’ and the public do not have
the right to roam under the Countryside and Right of Way Act 2000. However, there are a number of footpaths
which cross the Common which people are allowed to use. A new footpath has been created across Views
Common and a hard surface link has been created on land at the Police HQ to link this with Hinchingbrooke

iv  as defined in the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000, Section 1(1)

165
23



4

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

School. This footpath completes a pedestrian route from Stukeley Meadows to Hinchingbrooke Road and follows
on from a link between Handcrofts Lane, Lake Way and Hinchingbrooke Hospital. This pedestrian route will
improve linkages in this area of the Area Action Plan and forms an important part of the green infrastructure.

Would you like to see Views Common become a public open space?

4.37 The Common is currently used for cattle grazing which helps to maintain the land. There may be opportunities
to enhance the landscape of the area through, for example, leveling the land and improved landscaping, better
management which could link to the Country Park, reducing the sound from the road network and re-seeding the
area to improve the flora and fauna.

How do you think Views Common could be improved (eg land levelling, new management and re-seeding
to improve the flora and fauna)?

Views Common

Open Space and Recreation

4.38 People living and working within Huntingdon West should have adequate access to open space and
recreational facilities. These facilities help create a high quality living environment and enable people to lead
healthy lifestyles.

4.39 Aforthcoming supplementary planning document on Planning Contributions will set standards for provision
of open space, facilities for children and young people and allotments. In addition to this provision should also be
made for strategic open space. Strategic open space includes open spaces which are important at a regional and
sub-regional level such as Hinchingbrooke Country Park and the corridors which link these. In Huntingdon
West Hinchingbrooke Country Park and links to it could be extended and improved.

4.40 The main issue to consider is whether open space should be provided within sites where development will
take place or whether some of the open space and recreational facilities should be provided through provision off
site, either within Huntingdon West or the immediate vicinity, or through improvements to an existing area or
facility.

166
24



4

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

How would you like to see open space and recreation facilities provided in Huntingdon West?

Design

4.41

The Area Action Plan can emphasise the need for a high quality of urban design. This can be achieved by

developing a clear set of design principles and factors which need to be taken into account when developing and
redeveloping the area. The following design principles have been developed taking into account national and
regional policy and local issues.

Draft Design Principles:

Development should promote community security by ensuring buildings overlook streets, open spaces
and recreation areas

Layout of development should promote walking and cycling

Development should create attractive frontages

Development should create a high quality public environment

Development should be sympathetic to existing development in terms of layout, form, height, detail
and materials

Layout of development should maximise solar gain

Development should include landmark buildings and focal points and should enhance views into and
out of the site

Development should promote a mix of uses that creates activity within the development site

Do you agree that design principles should be included in the Area Action Plan?

Do the design principles above address all issues or are there any other principles which should be included?

4.42 There is the opportunity for the Area Action Plan to designate landmark buildings to help create an attractive
entrance into Huntingdon and to provide attractive views and vistas.

167
25



4

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

Within Huntingdon West where would you like to see landmark buildings located?
For example:

Along Brampton Road/ George Street into Huntingdon
At key locations within the site

In the Ermine Street/ George Street area

At Hinchingbrooke Community Campus

At the Railway Station

On the sites along Thrapston/ Huntingdon Road

~0 Q0T

Ermine Street/ George Street area

4.43 This area includes the land between Ermine Street, George Street, the railway line and the ring road, as
shown in Map 4.3. Currently, the site is in mixed use, with a significant proportion of this in commercial/industrial
use alongside residential. The site is classified as previously developed land and redevelopment will therefore
make efficient use of land. The site also offers a prime sustainable location as it is close to the town centre with
good public transport links. Using the site for mixed use redevelopment can contribute to sustainability, as this
promotes sustainable travel patterns and a diverse and vibrant locality.

168
26



Key Issues and Options

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

f .. N 4 |
Huntingdon West Area Action Plan
Map to show Ermine Street/ George Street Area

Map 4.3 Ermine Street/ George Street area

e

169
27



4

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

4.44 This area requires comprehensive redevelopment and it provides the opportunity to link the town centre
with the railway station and beyond. The area has previously been the subject of an urban design framework
“which appraised various land use options on the site. Given the existing uses and location of the site, development
will be mixed use, with various options for that mix.

4.45 Because of the historical and existing uses of the site and other uses in the surrounding area there are a
number of significant constraints including contamination, noise, environmental and built heritage and existing
vehicular and pedestrian routes. These are shown on the diagrams below. When considering redevelopment it
is important that these constraints are taken into account.

Contamination of land

4.46 As a result of the industrial use of the land the site is in an area of moderate sensitivity to chemical
contamination of groundwater and surface water resources. There are also high levels of metal concentrations
in ground soil across the site. The level of some metal concentrations are considered to be sufficiently high to
present a hazard to future residents.

4.47 Employing appropriate contamination remediation methods can remove the risk associated with contaminated
land “. As the majority of contamination in this area is soil based, appropriate remediation methods may include
the removal of a certain amount of soil and replacement with clean fill material. Soil removal may also be appropriate
to mitigate groundwater contamination in some circumstances.

4.48 Despite there being evidence of contamination on some of the land between Ermine Street and George
Street, development is considered to be beneficial and should be encouraged subject to appropriate remediation
methods being implemented.

4.49 Issues of contamination will be an important consideration when allocating land. Map 4.4 shows the levels
of possible contamination in this area.

Noise

4.50 The main sources of noise pollution are from the east coast mainline railway and the A14. Noise primarily
affects the existing industrial area between Ermine Street and George Street. The north western edge of the area
between Ermine Street and George Street abuts the railway line. The noise produced by the railway line is
particularly acute where it moves onto the embankment. Any development scheme proposed for this area must
therefore take into account the noise and possible vibration originating from the railway line.

4.51 Towards the southern section of the area between Ermine Street and George Street heavy traffic noise
from the A14 will need to be considered, as will the lesser traffic noise originating from the ring road to the east.

4.52 The impact of noise in an important consideration in determining the design and layout of a development
scheme which can help alleviate the impact of noise. Map 4.5 shows noise corridors in this area.

Environmental and Built Heritage

4.53 This includes Listed buildings, Conservation Areas and Tree Preservation Orders. There are 19 Listed
Buildings in the Ermine Street/ George Street area as shown on map 4.6, these include the Alms Houses and the
Old Post Office on George Street, No's 14, 16 and 18 St John's Street, 81 High Street and 14 and 32-36 Ermine
Street A small section in the north east of the Ermine Street/ George Street area is in the conservation area and
this runs along the eastern edge of the area, a proposed extension to the conservation area includes a much

v The Civic Trust (2002) West of Huntingdon Town Centre Urban Design Framework
vi  as defined in PPS23 Annex 2, para 2.5

170
28



4

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

larger section of the site as shown on map 4.6. There are also four tree preservation orders within the Ermine
Street/ George Street area. New development in the area will need to be integrated sensitively, and take into
account the character and setting of areas of importance. Map 4.6 shows areas of high, medium and low values
landscape as identified in the West of Huntingdon Town Centre Urban Design Framework (Civic Trust, 2002).

- y .|-.-1-

m @ O M

,-‘l
BB OB W

BuTlt“Flerrtatge in George Street/ Ermme SJreL.\" klde%

Access and Links

4.54 Map 4.7 shows the existing pedestrian, cycle and vehicle routes in the Ermine Street/ George Street
area. The main vehicle routes run around the site, vehicle routes into the site are all dead ends. There are therefore
opportunities to improve connectivity through redevelopment of the area. There are several existing pedestrian
routes which link to the surrounding area. These need to be taken into account when considering the form of new
development in this area.

Future Access and Links

4.55 Map 4.8 shows the potential reconfiguration of the road system if the viaduct is removed as part of the
rerouting of the A14. This would create a link road between Ermine Street and George Street which would reduce
traffic on the Huntingdon Ring Road and would create a link between the north and west of the town.

171
29



Key Issues and Options

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

Huntingdon West Area Action Plan
Land Contamination in Ermine Street /George Street Area

- l =
AN _ i _—
REE: Civic Trust: West of mmmum—#i )
High Possibility -Pmiﬂ Law Possibility
ol Cantaminaton of Contamination of Contamination

Map 4.4 Contamination

172
30



Key Issues and Options

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

Huntingdon West Area Action Plan
Moise Constraints Ermine Street/ George Street Area

Maoise corridor
A4

Moise corridar
Mainline Railway

Map 4.5 Noise

173

31



Key Issues and Options

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

| i

_l"i

Listed H;':':':l.hl Wadium valug Lo vk . e | L h
Biding Towieeage Towmscape  Tecaps  TPO  Ave(akeung sceed Gty |
|

i ;o — —— -
Huntingdon West Area Actlon Plan
Townscape and Built Heritage Ermine Street! George Street Area

Map 4.6 Built heritage

174
32



Key Issues and Options

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

Huntingdon West Area Action Plan:
Access & Links in Ermine Street Area | George Street

+I‘I‘ﬁ:¢l“ﬂﬂ Ay e pedestrian links- arrows indicate

% minorroad seess guided bus route T
- i righils of way

ﬂ brunk roubs +Em ---} m

Map 4.7 Access and links

175
33



Key Issues and Options

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

Huntingdon West Area Action Plan
Proposed new road layout

Tz

Proposed new
road

Map 4.8 Proposed new road layout

176
34



4

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

Overall development of the site

4.56 Taking into account the constraints identified above there are several options for how the site could be
developed. The Urban Design Framework (2002) highlighted that there is a strong market for residential
development in this area but there are also opportunities for other types of development to be located in this
area. The key issues to consider are whether this should become a residential quarter or an extension to the town
centre.

What should the Ermine Street/ George Street area's primary function be?

° Residential or
° Business (including retail and employment)

Residential development
4.57 The proximity of the site to the town centre, railway station and local employment makes this a sustainable

location for residential development. In relation to residential development there are several issues which need
to be considered including the amount and density. The sections below cover these issues.

Do you think this is a suitable location for residential development?

If yes, where should this be located?

4.58 The emerging Huntingdonshire Core Strategy will include targets and thresholds for the provision of
affordable housing. The targets and thresholds included this will be applied within Huntingdon West.

[
L . - -

; fypica_l HoUsiﬁgjn Georg: reet/ Ermin&Street Area

177
35



4

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

Density

The emerging Development Control Policies Development Plan Document will set out density ranges for
development. The Ermine Street/ George Street area is close to the town centre and railway station and would
therefore require higher densities to ensure the land is used efficiently. The following photos show examples of
different densities:

Picture 4.1 58 dwellings per hectare

Picture 4.2 80 dwellings per hectare

178
36



4

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

Picture 4.4 137 dwellings per hectare

Which of these densities would you like to see in the Ermine Street/ George Street area?

179
37



4

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

Employment Development

4.59 Employment development includes business, industrial and storage and distribution. The Council considers
that office development would be the most appropriate use given the proximity to the town centre and railway
station.

Do you think this is a suitable location for employment development?

If yes, where should this be located and what type?

16 Street/ George Street.Industrial Are

Live/ work units

4.60 Live/ Work units provide accommodation for both residential and business use. The use of live/ work units
differs from ordinary home working in the nature and intensity of the business use involved. Ordinary home working
is secondary to the domestic use where as live/ work units have more space devoted to the work use or they may
be able to accommodate more workers.

4.61 Live/ work units can play an important role in creating sustainable communities through the reduction in
car travel and can help the establishment or expansion of small businesses. Live/ work units may be suitable in
a variety of locations including within established mixed use areas such as town centres or in large new mixed
use developments. It is therefore appropriate that the inclusion of this type of accommodation is considered in
the Ermine Street/ George Street area.

Should live/ work units be located within the Ermine Street/ George Street area?

180
38



4

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

Retail and leisure development

The relationship between the Ermine Street/ George Street area and other shopping areas in the town needs to
be considered and it is important that any shopping and leisure development in this part of the town needs to
complement the town centre rather than detract from it. The retail study update (2006) advised that after Chequers
Court the next sequentially preferable location for shopping development is the Ermine Street/ George Street area
but that it should only be developed following the implementation of the Chequers Court improvement scheme.The
study considers that Ermine Street/ George Street should be earmarked as a longer-term (post 2011) opportunity
for shopping uses as part of a comprehensive mixed-use development. The retail study identified a need for
12,000 sg.m, approximately 3 Huntingdon Sainsburys or 8.6 Huntingdon Waitrose, of additional comparison
shopping floor space, approximately 4600 sq.m (50,000 sq ft) of this could be provided within the exiting town
centre. Therefore the remaining amount, approximately 8300 sq.m (89,000sq ft), the equivalent of 2 Huntingdon
Sainsburys or 6 Huntingdon Waitrose, needs to be found elsewhere.

4.62 The Area Action Plan needs to make decisions about the type (e.g. large retailers, specialist shops, trade
store etc), and quantity of retail development which could be located in the Ermine Street/ George Street area.

Do you agree that this area is an appropriate location for shopping development; if not, where within
Huntingdon do you think shopping development should be located?

What type of shopping development would you like to see in this area?

Large supermarket

Large DIY type stores

Smaller budget supermarket

A range of comparison shops selling, for example, clothes, household furniture etc

How much shopping development would you like to see in this area?

4.63 In addition to retail development Planning Policy Statement 6 also encourages a nhumber of other uses to
be located near to the town centre, these include:

° Leisure, entertainment facilities and more intensive sport and recreation facilities (including restaurants, bars
and pubs, nightclubs, health and fithess centres)

° Arts, culture and tourism (including theatres, museums, hotels and conference facilities)

181
39



4

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

Which of these other uses would you like to see in the Ermine Street/ George Street area?

Car Parking

4.64 The Huntingdon Town Vision (2006) and the Steer Davies Gleave Parking Study identify the Ermine Street/
George Street area as a location for additional public car parking. The advantage of using this area is that is could
be reached by two feeder roads and would therefore reduce the amount of traffic travelling around the ring road
to get to other long stay car parks. It would also be needed to serve any new shopping development in this area.

Do you think that additional public car parking should be provided in the Ermine Street/ George Street area?

If you do not think public car parking should be provided in this location, where in Huntingdon should it be
provided?

182
40



Key Issues and Options

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

Huntingdon Railway Station

Huntingdon West Area Action Plan
Huntmgdun Hallway Statlun Area

"'| P

Il_ L":'..-L—"J-"

Map 4.9 Huntingdon Railway Station

4.65 Huntingdon railway station, see map 4.9, provides good quality links with London, Peterborough and St
Neots. The location of the railway station is currently dominated by the A14 viaduct but if this viaduct was to be
removed as part of the rerouting of the A14 there would be an opportunity to enhance this area and to provide a
more attractive gateway into Huntingdon.

4.66 Car parking is currently an important issue at the railway station and the train operating company is
investigating the possibility of increasing car parking at the railway station.

Do you think this is an appropriate location for additional levels of car parking to be provided for people using
the station?

183
41



4

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

4.67 There is an area of land north of the station north of Brampton Road shown on map 4.9 which is currently
unused. The land could be used to provide additional car parking for the Railway Station and town centre.

Do you think it would be appropriate to use this land for additional car parking for the railway station and/ or
the town centre?

4.68 Map 4.10 shows the potential reconfiguration of the road system if the viaduct is removed as part of the
rerouting of the A14. The reconfiguration of the road system allows an additional access to be created into the
Railway Station car park. These changes to the road system could result in the reconfiguration of the area in front
of the station. As part of this additional development could take place, for example commercial development.

Do you think this would be an appropriate location for a landmark commercial building?

RailwayArea

184
42



Key Issues and Options

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

Huntingdon West Area Action Plan
Prupused new road layout

- .-. ﬂ'_ i
I L

Proposed new
road

Map 4.10 Reconfiguration of the road network

185
43



Key Issues and Options

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

Hinchingbrooke

Huntingdon West Area Action Plan:
Hinchingbrooke Campus Area

Map 4.11 Hinchingbrooke Community Campus

4.69 The Hinchingbrooke Community Campus includes Hinchingbrooke Hospital, Hinchingbrooke School, the
Fire Headquarters and the Police Headquarters and associated playing fields, see Map 4.11.

4.70 There are a number of issues which affect the opportunities for development on this site, these include:

186
44



4

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

° the future of Hinchingbrooke Hospital and the need in the future for this to reduce in size, in particular the
future of the wards adjacent to the playing fields which are surplus to requirements.

° the A14 and whether this is down-graded and the viaduct over Views Common and the Railway Station is
removed. If this is the case then the down graded A14 would run through the site from Views Common down
to Brampton Road, see map 4.15 This would significantly affect the availability of land within the site.

4.71 There are also a number of constraints which need to be considered. These include the landscape setting,
the environment and built heritage and access and links.

Landscape Setting

4.72 The Hinchingbrooke landscape is one of the most important historic elements in the Huntingdon landscape,
map 4.12 shows an extract of the area from the 1809 Ordnance Survey. Hinchingbrooke House was built in the
16th Century and the landscape remains largely unchanged since this time. The best preserved parts of the
Hinchingbrooke landscape are the former pleasure grounds and gardens and the Rose and Yew gardens. These
features form the core of the landscape area and are of more than local importance. Beyond this core area features
are more patchy but lend character to the local landscape. It is important that any development in the Hinchingbrooke
Community Campus is sensitive to this historic landscape.

Environment and built heritage

4.73 Listed buildings within the Hinchingbrooke Community Campus are focused around Hinchingbrooke
School. There are a number of listed structures including Hinchingbrooke House, the Brewhouse and laundry at
Hinchingbrooke House and gates, walls and a well at Hinchingbrooke House and Hinchingbrooke park as shown
on map 4.13. The majority of the Hinchingbrooke Community Campus area is included in a proposed extension
to the Conservation Area and the whole area is covered by a blanket Tree Preservation Order. New development
in the area will need to take into account the character and setting of these features.

Hinchi .‘y_ﬁtbnké House

Access and links

4.74 Map 4.14. shows the existing pedestrian, cycle and vehicle routes in the Hinchingbrooke Community
Campus area. These need to be taken into account when considering development in the area.

Future Access and Links

4.75 Map 4.15 shows the potential reconfiguration of the road system if the viaduct is removed as part of the
rerouting of the A14. This new road layout includes a link between the downgraded A14 and Brampton Road and
potentially offers the opportunity to help relieve congestion on Hinchingbrooke Park Road as discussed earlier.

187
45



Key Issues and Options

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

Huntingdon West Area Action Plan
Historic Map, extract from 1809 Ordnance Survey

Heries

¥

Source: Huntingdon County Record Office.

Rt

- - .-un?
\ L |

A e walercouses
e estimated AAP boundary

Built-up town of The Views, Hinchingbrooke
Huntingdon pasiure Park
" Huntingdon, at the end of the18th Century, Hinchingbrooke House and Park

- was a coaching town along the route south o
 London, along Ermine Strest,

Commons: The Views

The town of Huntingdon has historically been
surrounded by “commons®, open land
administered by the Borough of Huntingdon.
This land was rented for grazing. It was also
once Medieval strip farming (arable crops),
part of the open fields of Huntingdon which fed
the larger town. In 1850 the Views was divided
into Views Common and Mill Common.

Map 4.12 Historic context

Originally a medieval nunnery, at the
dissolution of the monasteries in 1539 the
property was obtained by the Cromwell family.
The church and priory buildings were then
converted into a country residence. Inthe 17th
century the Montagues, who became the Earls
of Sandwich after the Restoration, broughtthe
land and the house and park has evolved with
the successive generations. In 1967 the 101
Ear of Sandwich sold the house to the District
Council and it became part of Hinchingbrooke
schoal,

188
46



Key Issues and Options

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

Huntingdon West Area Action Plan:
Built Heritage Hinchingbrooke C
ﬂﬂﬁ,"nﬂﬁlﬁ?' BT, ., LN

3%
7.

s
o i Cimbnd
L Connatadury

* Hinchingbrocke House
Listed Structuras

Fouh ot Consarvation Area
3 ) proposed exiension
house and
= Listed Buidings
& Stnuctures

whlls, hause
terracns

& Stairs 1

Tree Presarvalion Cudens
{TPOs) area eoverned

Map 4.13 Environment and built heritage

189
47



Key Issues and Options

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

Huntingdon West Area Action Plan:
Access and links in
Hinchingbrooke Campus Area

ol T ) o
ﬁﬁ!‘l =0 Wie o L%
A : s “l‘

|L"-";1"" T ) ) =
major road -9 railway ling we— cycleway L ')'
& footpath
minor road —% guidedbus ==ees=s adopted foolways = = = ==
roLte

trunk route m public rights of way ===

Map 4.14 Access and links

190
48



Key Issues and Options

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

Huntingdon West Area Action Plan
Proposed new road layout

S Fme 'i'_.

\ Priotr(h &) | -
/ - o |
o Proposed new
F i T . road —
e = 1 Beidae -
— 3 ""—-__....---—__...-*-""rrp. ‘-“"’ " : i . = -
- - T EHE

Map 4.15 Future access and links

191
49



4

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

Overall development of the site

4.76 The key issue to consider in this area is whether further development should be of an institutional nature
or whether other uses should be incorporated. It is important that any development is able to fully integrate with
existing uses.

Should further development be primarily institutional, residential or employment?

Institutional uses

4.77 The Hinchingbrooke Community Campus is dominated by institutional uses, such as the hospital, school
and police headquarters.

Do you think there should be additional institutional use in this area?

If yes, where would you like these to be and what type of institutional use? e.g. additional education uses
Employment development

4.78 Employment development includes business, industrial and storage and distribution. The Council consider
that office development would be the most appropriate use given the proximity to the railway station.

Do you think this is a suitable location for employment development?

If yes, where should this be located and what type?

Residential Development

4.79 In terms of residential development there are several options to consider including the location of housing
and density.

192
50



Key Issues and Options

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

Do you think there should be further residential development in this area?

If yes, where should this be located?

Car parking

4.80 Car parking in this area is already at full capacity. The Huntingdon Town Centre Vision (2006) identified
this as a location for additional public car parking spaces.

Do you think additional public car parking should be provided in the Hinchingbrooke Community Campus
area to serve the town centre?

If you think that additional public car parking should be provided in this location who should this additional
car parking be provided for? (i.e. town centre users, people using the school or hospital or for people using
the Guided Bus)

193
51



4

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

Thrapston Road/ Huntingdon Road, Brampton

Huntingdon West Area Action Plan
Thrapston Road/ Huntingdon Road Area

' Visitors
"%, Hinchingbrooke | Centrs -
% Country Park

A
A Y

N AP
rﬁ“- 'l i
e -
A ‘1-@?’: - Hinch
P - 15 |* - 4
e e "" *\"“‘h_;{fh—u

qﬂ | ‘\4‘_:\ M, O

Muns b
Meadows o

* . Boa

e |

-' :-.. .: ) ! i I|lr _. ;:!

f;— = { Ir;.L-l_“ — N | o
y = o T2 . B e 7 :
E:lal;:['l ETh By -.E-‘EIH!L!%J“_;I.I :-ﬁ;_.l ; -

Centre [SHFREN) T AT
age Lentre Fp_, T TR\ aay P "-:'Et:%&?: P O\
Tl AL SFSNEERETTHE o [ h 7 L4 1| |~ Laborsior

Map 4.16 Thrapson Road/ Huntingdon Road sites

4.81 Along Thrapston Road/ Huntingdon Road, Brampton there are several sites which overlook the Country
Park (see map 4.16). The Area Action Plan needs to consider whether these sites are suitable for development
and if so what type of development.

Residential development

4.82 These sites have been put forward by developers for residential development and were included in the
Council's recently completed Housing Land Availability Assessment. These sites are relatively close to services
in Brampton but are separated from the village by Thrapston Road/Huntingdon Road which is a busy road leading
into Huntingdon. It would therefore be difficult to integrate the sites into the village. Two of these sites and a section
of the third are in the 1:100 year floodplain as shown on map 4.17. PPS 25 states that residential development

194
52



4

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

should not be allowed within the 1:100 year floodplain unless the exceptions test is met; these sites would not
pass this test. Therefore, only the site which is notin the 1:100 year floodplain should be considered for residential

development.

Do you think the site which is not in the 1:100 year floodplain is an appropriate location for residential

development?

Huntingdon West Area Action Plan
Strategic Flood Risk Assessment for
Thrapston Road/ Huntingdon Road Area

Key: extent of
flood risk
1:10 floods
1:100 floods
POtap:
as of Cha lake
Nge
Biow e 05 W p%”*‘?o;;?- — _ '“""’?
- | Brampton ol L (3
Y =) | i
- Village Centre adon Road

i

Map 4.17 Flood risk

195
53



4

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

Employment development

4.83 These sites are in a prestigious location overlooking Hinchingbrooke Country Park with good access to the
railway station and Huntingdon town centre and may have potential to be developed for high quality employment
developments such as a high quality business park or science park. A development of this type would link with

the wider economy of the Huntingdon area and would therefore not need to be as closely integrated into the village
as residential development, although it would provide employment opportunities for residents living in Brampton.

Do you think these sites are appropriate locations for employment development?

If yes, which of the sites would you like to see developed for employment development?

Car parking

4.84 ltis currently possible to access Hinchingbrooke Country Park on foot from Brampton but vehicle access
is limited to the Hinchingbrooke side of the Country Park. It may be possible to create an additional surface level
car park on one of these sites to provide access to the Country Park from the Brampton side. This would enable
visitors travelling from this direction to park on this side to save them driving through the Hinchingbrooke estate.
This car park could also be used as a tourist information point to promote tourism.

Do you think that it would be appropriate for one of these sites to be used as a surface level car park to give
an additional access to Hinchingbrooke Country Park?

If yes, which of these sites would you like to see developed for a surface level car park?

Alternatives
4.85 This Issues and Options paper attempts to identify all relevant issues and reasonable options for addressing

these. However, if you feel there are relevant issues or reasonable options which have not been considered then
please put these forward.

196
54



5

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

5 Phasing and Implementation

5.1 The phasing and implementation of the Area Action Plan is vital to ensure the proposals contained in it are
delivered and therefore need to be considered early in the process. Delivery of the Area Action Plan will involve
a wide range of partners from the public and private sector. It is therefore important that development is phased
to ensure that infrastructure is provided at the right time and in the right place. The timescale for the Area Action
Plan is from adoption of the plan to 2021.

Phasing

5.2 The re-routing of the A14 and subsequent removal of the viaduct are beyond the scope of this Area Action
Plan; therefore phasing and implementation of the proposals need to take account of this but not be dependent
upon it. The A14 is scheduled to be completed in 2015, but redevelopment of the area will take place prior to this.

5.3 Interms of phasing the Area Action Plan needs to determine which projects should take place before the
A14 is finished (before 2015) and which should take place after the A14 is finished (post 2015). The following
schedule is based on those projects which need to take place once the A14 has been completed and those which
can take place prior to this.

Before 2015 Post 2015

Redevelopment of Ermine Street/ George Street area Improvements to Railway Station

Creation of Ermine Street to George Street link road  Improvements to Views Common

Improvements to footpath and cycle path network Reconfiguration of roads through Hinchingbrooke
Community Campus

Developments at Hinchingbrooke Community Campus
(dependent upon when part of hospital is available for
redevelopment)

Development at Thrapston Road/ Huntingdon Road

Extension to Hinchingbrooke Country Park

Improvements to parking at the Railway Station

Do you agree that this schedule is appropriate? If not how should it be changed?

Funding

5.4 The Council is producing a Planning Contributions SPD. This SPD will set out the district-specific standards
for social and physical infrastructure that may be required with new development, including open space and will
be the basis for section 106 agreements. In Huntingdon West contributions will be sought towards the following
infrastructure:

197
55



5

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

Ermine Street to George Street link road

Improvements to Hinchingbrooke Country Park
Improvements to Views Common

Open Space and recreation

Education - improvements or extensions to existing schools
Affordable Housing

Car parks, footpaths, cycleways, highways and public transport
Community facilities

Environmental improvements

Health and social care

Drainage/ flood prevention

Waste recycling facilities

Do you think this list is appropriate and is there any other infrastructure you think should be required in this
area?

Construction Strategy

5.5 The Area Action Plan will need to consider how construction waste and spoil will be dealt with. Within the
Ermine Street/ George Street area there is a significant amount of existing buildings and hardstanding which will
need to be removed before redevelopment can take place. A considerable amount of contamination remediation
work will also need to take place. The key issue is whether spoil and waste are transported elsewhere or whether
the materials can be incorporated into the new development. For example, hardstanding could be crushed to
provide aggregate for foundations. In terms of sustainability it is preferable for waste materials to be recycled and
used on-site and for spoil to be used for on-site landscaping or transported short distances for appropriate disposal.

Do you agree that waste materials should be recycled and used on-site?

Do you agree that spoil should be used for on-site landscaping or where this is not possible transported short
distances for appropriate disposal?

198
56



6

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

6 Glossary

Access land
Mapped areas of mountain, moor, heath, down and registered common land which, under the Countryside Right
of Way Act 2000, the public are allowed to freely walk on without the need to stick to paths.

Adoption
The point at which the final agreed version of a document comes fully into use.

Affordable Housing

Housing available at a significant discount below market levels so as to be affordable to householders who cannot
either rent or purchase property that meets their needs on the open market. It can include social-rented housing
and intermediate housing.

Amenity
A positive element or elements that contribute to the overall character or enjoyment of an area. For example, open
land, trees, historic buildings and the inter-relationship between them, or less tangible factors such as tranquility.

Areas of Strategic Greenspace Enhancement
Areas which have been identified as having opportunities to expand and create strategic greenspace.

Biodiversity
The whole variety of life on earth. It includes all species of plants and animals, their genetic variation and the
ecosystems of which they are a part.

Brownfield

Previously developed land (PDL). In the sequential approach this is preferable to greenfield land.
Previously-developed land is that which is or was occupied by a permanent structure (excluding agricultural or
forestry buildings), and associated fixed surface infrastructure. The definition includes the curtilage of the
development. Previously-developed land may occur in both built-up and rural settings. A precise definition is
included in Planning Policy Statement 3 ‘Housing’.

Carbon footprint
Indicates the impact of development on the environment by measuring the levels of carbon dioxide emitted.

Community Infrastructure
Facilities available for use by the community. Examples include village halls, doctors’ surgeries, pubs, churches
and children play areas. It may also include areas of informal open space and sports facilities.

Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO)
The power given to the Local Authority to acquire land for redevelopment which may include development by
private developers.

Conservation Area

A designated area of special architectural and/or historical interest, the character or appearance of which it is
desirable to preserve or enhance. It is a recognition of the value of a group of buildings and their surroundings
and the need to protect not just individual buildings but the character of the area as a whole.

The Core Strategy
This document which is a Development Plan Document containing the overall vision, objectives and policies for
managing development in Huntingdonshire.

199
57



6

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

County Structure Plan
An existing document containing strategic planning policies and proposals for the county. Under the new system
it will be phased out and replaced by policies in the Regional Spatial Strategy and Development Plan Documents.

County Wildlife Site
Areas of land rich in wildlife that are statutorily protected.

Decentralised energy system
Generates heat and electricity in smaller, more localised units.

Density
Density is a measure of the number of dwellings which can be accommodated on a site. The minimum density is
30 dwellings per hectare (dph) as set out in PPS3 Housing.

Department for Communities and Local Government
The Government department responsible for planning and the production of planning guidance.

Development Plan
The documents which together provide the main point of reference when considering planning proposals. Under
the new system the Development Plan includes the Regional Spatial Strategy and Development Plan Documents.

Development Plan Documents
A document containing local planning policies or proposals which form part of the Development Plan, which has
been subject to independent examination.

European Sites
Consist of Special Protection Areas (SPAs), Special Areas of Conservation (SACs) and sites on draft lists for
protection as outlined in Regulation 10 of the Habitats Regulations 1994.

Examination
Independent inquiry into the soundness of a draft Development Plan Document or Draft Statement of Community
Involvement, chaired by an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State, whose recommendations are binding.

Greenfield
Land which has not been developed before. Applies to most sites outside built-up area boundaries.

Green Infrastructure
The sub-regional network of protected sites, nature reserves, greenspaces and green linkages.

Habitat
The natural home or environment of a plant or animal.

Housing Needs Assessment

An assessment of housing needs in the local area. This assessment plays a crucial role in underpinning the
planning policies relating to affordable housing. In addition, the information on local needs is required to determine
the location of such housing and guide new investment.

Infrastructure
A collective term for services such as roads, electricity, sewerage, water, education and health facilities.

Issues and Options preliminary consultation document

200
58



6

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

This is the first stage in the production of development plan documents. The Council brings possible issues and
options for the District into the public domain, in order to generate responses to aid the development of the
‘Preferred Options’ development documents.

Key Workers
Essential public sector workers such as nurses, teachers and social workers.

Landscape Character Assessment
An assessment to identify different landscape areas which have a distinct character based on a recognisable
pattern of elements, including combinations of geology, landform, soils, vegetation, land use and human settlement.

Local Development Document
The collective term for Development Plan Documents, the Proposals Map, Supplementary Planning Documents
and the Statement of Community Involvement.

Local Development Framework
The collection of documents to be produced by Huntingdonshire District Council that will provide the new planning
policy framework for the district.

Local Development Scheme
Sets out the Council's programme for preparing and reviewing statutory planning documents.

Local Strategic Partnership
A group of public, private, voluntary and community organisations and individuals that is responsible for preparing
the Community Strategy.

Major development
The creation of 10 of more dwellings within one site.

Material consideration
Factors that may be taken into account when making planning decisions.

Minor development
The creation of up to 9 dwellings on one site.

Mitigation measures
These are measures requested/ carried out in order to limit the damage by a particular development/ activity.

Mixed use development
Development comprising two or more uses as part of the same scheme. Mixed use development can help create
vitality and diversity and can help reduce the need to travel, which is more sustainable.

ODPM - Office of the Deputy Prime Minister
The Government department formerly responsible for planning and the production of planning guidance.

Open Space and Recreational Land

Open space within settlements includes parks, village greens, play areas, sports pitches, undeveloped plots,
semi-natural areas and substantial private gardens. Outside built-up areas this includes parks, sports pitches and
allotments.

Permissive Right of Way
These are routes where a landowner allows access over their land without dedicating it as a right of way.

201
59



6

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

Planning Obligation

A binding legal agreement requiring a developer or landowner to provide or contribute towards facilities,
infrastructure or other measures, in order for planning permission to be granted. Planning Obligations are normally
secured under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Planning Policy Guidance Notes (PPG)/ Planning Policy Statements (PPS)
Central Government produce Planning Policy Guidance Notes, to be replaced by Planning Policy Statements
which direct planning in the country.

Preferred Options
Public consultation on the intended content of a Development Plan Document, prior to the DPD itself being drafted.
Itis a statutory stage of the Local Development Framework preparation for the District.

Previously Developed Land (PDL)
(See Brownfield.)

Regional Spatial Strategies (RSS)
Plan covering the East of England as a whole, and setting out strategic policies and proposals for managing
land-use change.

Section 106
See Planning Obligations.

Sequential Approach

A planning principle that seeks to identify, allocate or develop certain types or locations of land before others. For
example, brownfield sites before greenfield sites, or town centre retail sites before out-of-centre sites. In terms of
employment a sequential approach would favour an employment use over mixed use and mixed use over
non-employment uses.

Social rented

Social Rented Housing is housing available to rent at below market levels. Lower rents are possible because the
Government subsidises local authorities and registered social landlords in order to meet local affordable housing
needs.

Spatial Planning

Spatial planning goes beyond traditional land use planning. It brings together and integrates policies for the
development and use of land with other policies and programmes which influence the nature of places and how
they function. This will include policies which can impact on land use, for example, by influencing the demands
on or needs for development, but which are not capable of being delivered solely or mainly through the granting
of planning permission and may be delivered through other means.

Stakeholders
Groups, individuals or organisations which may be affected by or have a key interest in a development proposal
or planning policy. They may often be experts in their field or represent the views of many people.

Statement of Community Involvement
Document setting out the Council's approach to involving the community in preparing planning documents and
making significant development control decisions.

Statement of Compliance

A report or statement issued by the local planning authority explaining how they have complied with the Town
and Country Planning Regulations 2004 and their Statement of Community Involvement during consultation on
Local Development Documents.

202
60



6

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

Statutory Development Plan
The Development Plan for an area which has been taken to statutory adoption. In other words, it has been through
all the formal stages and has been approved by the relevant Government office and adopted by the Council.

Statutory Organisations
Organisations the Local Authority has to consult with at consultation stages of the Local Development Framework.

Strategic Greenspace
These are areas of greenspace that serve a wider population than just the District, for example Paxton Pits, The
Great Fen and Hinchingbrooke Country Park.

Submission
Point at which a draft Development Plan Document (or the draft Statement of Community Involvement) is published
for consultation. At the same time it is submitted to the Secretary of State in advance of its examination.

Supplementary Planning Guidance
Provides additional guidance on the interpretation or application of policies and proposals in the Local Plan or
Structure Plan. Under the new system this will be phased out and replaced by Supplementary Planning Documents.

Supplementary Planning Documents
Provides additional guidance on the interpretation or application of policies and proposals in a Development Plan
Document.

Sustainable Development

In broad terms this means development that meets the needs of the present without compromising the ability of
future generations to meet their own needs. The Government has set out five guiding principles for sustainable
development in its strategy “Securing the future - UK Government strategy for sustainable development’. The five
guiding principles, to be achieved simultaneously, are: Living within environmental limits; Ensuring a strong healthy
and just society; Achieving a sustainable economy; Promoting good governance; and Using sound science
responsibly.

Sustainability Appraisal (SA)/ Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA)

The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires Local Development Documents to be prepared with
a view to contributing to the achievement of sustainable development. Sustainability appraisal is a systematic
appraisal process. The purpose of sustainability appraisal is to appraise the social, environmental and economic
effects of the strategies and policies in a Local Development Document from the outset of the preparation process.
This will ensure that decisions are made that accord with sustainable principles.

Tenure
Refers to the way in which a property is held e.g. freehold, leasehold, shared equity or rented.

Vitality and Viability
In terms of retailing, vitality is the capacity of a centre to grow or to develop its level of commercial activity. Viability
is the capacity of a centre to achieve the commercial success necessary to sustain the existence of the centre.

Zero carbon development
Development that achieves zero net carbon emissions from energy use on site on an annual basis.

203
61



1

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

1 Appendix 1

National Policy

1.1 The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires local authorities to prepare a Spatial Planning
Strategy in the form of a Local Development Framework which comprises a portfolio of Local Development
Documents.

1.2 The Government sets out national policy in Planning Policy Statements (PPSs) which are replacing Planning
Policy Guidance Notes (PPGs).

1.3 Sustainable development is an overarching objective within the planning system. The Government set out
its vision for achieving sustainable development in its strategy 'A Better Quality of Life, a Strategy for Sustainable
Development'in 1999 and has recently reviewed and updated this in a new strategy 'Securing the Future, delivering
the UK Sustainable Development Strategy' (2005).

Regional Policy

1.4 The Regional Spatial Strategy for the East of England (RSS14) covers the period to 2021. It identifies the
scale and distribution of new housing in the region, indicates areas for regeneration and expansion and specifies
priorities for the environment, transport, infrastructure, economic development, agriculture, minerals and waste
treatment and disposal. It is at an advanced stage of preparation with Proposed Changes published in December
2005. This is expected to be improved in summer 2007. The Area Action Plan will be in conformity with the RSS14.

1.5 The following Draft RSS14 policies have helped guide the production of the emerging Core Strategy but are
also particularly relevant to the Area Action Plan; Policy SS1, Policy SS2, Policy SS4, Policy SS6, Policy E2,
Policy H1, Policy H3, Policy T1, Policy T4, Policy T8, Policy T9, Policy T13, Policy T14, Policy ENV1, Policy ENV3,
Policy ENV6, Policy ENV7, Policy ENG1, Policy WAT2, Policy WAT4, Policy WM6, Policy CSR1, Policy CSR2
and Policy CSR4.

1.6 RSS14 will, once finalised, replace most of the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan 2003. The
Structure Plan provides the strategic policy framework for planning and development that will take place locally
up to 2016. It guides more detailed local plans that are produced by Local Planning Authorities within the
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough area. The Council has requested that some of the Structure Plan policies that
will not be replaced in the final RSS be saved. Saved policies that are most relevant to the Area Action Plan
include; Policy P1/3, Policy 5/2, Policy 7/3, Policy 8/2, Policy 8/9, Policy P9/1, Policy P9/4 and Policy P9/9.

Local Policy & Related Plans

The overarching document in the LDF is the Core Strategy which sets out the Council's overall approach to
development. Alongside this a Development Control DPD will set out key policies that will be used for determining
planning applications.

1.7 The Area Action Plan will also need to have regard to the Huntingdonshire Community Strategy which sets
out a long term vision for Huntingdonshire and a series of outcomes and results needed to achieve this.

Supporting Documents

1.8 A number of background documents will inform the production of the Area Action Plan:

204
62



1

Huntingdonshire District Council | Huntingdon West Area Action Plan - Issues & Options

° The Huntingdon Town Centre Vision: Vision, Spatial Strategy and Action Plan (2006) looks at the potential
for development on fourteen sites across the town, including a site in Huntingdon West.

. The Urban Design Framework for West of Huntingdon Town Centre, produced in 2002 by the Civic Trust
focuses on the potential redevelopment of the Ermine Street/George Street area.

° The Huntingdon and Godmanchester Market Town Strategy is in appendix 8d of the Cambridgeshire County
Council Local Transport Plan 2006-2011 (2006) and aims to provide a programme of integrated transport
initiatives for Huntingdon and Godmanchester.

Sustainability Appraisal & Appropriate Assessment

1.9 The Area Action Plan will need to undergo sustainability appraisal (SA). This is a systematic process which
is carried out during the production of the plan to ensure that the policies and proposals contribute towards relevant
environmental, social and economic objectives

1.10 The SA process incorporates the ‘strategic environmental assessment’ (SEA) required as a result of the
European Directive 2001/42/EC for plans and programmes that are likely to have a significant effect upon the
environment

1.11  The Council has produced an Initial Sustainability Appraisal of the options included in this Issues and
Options document. Sustainability Appraisal is an integral part of the process of developing the Area Action Plan.
It will assist the consultation process and test and refine any policies and proposals. The Council has produced
a Scoping Report which identifies appropriate high-level objectives for appraising policies and examines ‘baseline’
conditions in the District.

1.12 In addition to the sustainability appraisal, amendments made to the UK Conservation (Habitats & C)
Regulations 2006 require an Appropriate Assessment under Article 6(3) and (4) of the Habitat Directive 92/43/EEC
for all land use plans likely to have a significant effect on a European site. To satisfy the requirements, Appropriate
Assessment should be undertaken before adoption of a DPD. European sites consist of Special Areas of
Conservation (SACs), Special Protection Areas (SPAs) and Offshore Marine Sites (OMS). The only European
site which is within the vicinity of Huntingdon West is Port Holme which is a SAC and is located approximately
500m south/ south east of Huntingdon West.

205
63



This page is intentionally left blank

206



